Preparation for Direct Voice

Volume 2

April 20 to October 21, 2017

Preface

This document has now been edited such that it can be shared publicly. We have deliberately at this point not identified who the individuals were who participated in the Direct Voice program. Copyright exists with the authors of each message, and thus these are subject to copyright.

This is the second of five volumes as of 2020.

March 10th, 2020.

Background

I first met Al Fike in 2012. I can't recall when I first heard about the activities of one of his mentors – Alec Gaunt. However I did hear that Alec was extremely keen to develop "Direct Voice" mediumship, and that such a project was unsuccessful in the 1960's and was one of the many activities that he undertook and probably led to his premature death. He had devoted an enormous amount of energy to that project, as well as others and he was literally burning the candle at both ends. Anyway, sadly with his death, that project came to a sudden end. Seretta Kem commented on May 18th 2018 as follows:

Our beloved friend Alec was very eager to have this gift come forth. He indeed was dedicated and expended much energy towards these efforts and came close to the realization of this desire to bring direct voice to the world. But there was one flaw; his physical was not strong enough to withstand the intensity of this development regime. As he continued to focus on other projects as well, putting upon him great expectations and pressures, which led for his heart to fail.

As someone who has studied not only the theory of mediumship of all kinds, but has also studied the output of many mediums, I accept that mediumship is more art than science.

Whether a particular channeled message is highly accurate, accurate, or poor will vary by medium, and by day. It's impossible and indeed not smart to categorize a style of mediumship as being inherently better than another style, and it's also very silly to categorize all the work of a medium into one bucket. We are all aware that mediumship requires

the communication to go through the brain of the medium. And therein lies one of the limitations. If a medium has a brain that has not been trained in a subject, say medicine, or psychology, that medium will not have the ability to communicate complex messages on those subjects even though the spirit may be an expert. What is worse however is that if the medium has a strong opinion, that opinion may seriously distort what is received, even to the extent of aligning it with the medium's point of view, as opposed to what the spirit is trying to communicate. So I could see some benefit in attempting to obtain a "clear channel" using a process whereby the spirit creates a materialized voice box and speaks without using the brain of the medium. But this was not to my point of view something that would change the world. And my indifference to this project continued for some time.

However at some stage I was shared additional material. Direct Voice was not just about getting a pure channel. It was about materializing spirit in the daylight, such that observers could see and listen directly to the spirit. This was an astounding bit of information, and I immediately could see this could change the world – literally. I was aware that spirits have been materialized for a great many years by material mediums. But this happens in almost complete darkness, using ectoplasm, and light cannot be allowed to intrude, or the medium will be severely injured, and could be killed. The other point is that these dark séances are not conducive to getting people to believe that things are as they appear. They are still extremely suspicious, and the dark room does not help to remove that suspicion.

Sometime early in 2017 this additional information came my way, and as I say I then became very supportive of this curiously named D.V. project. I find it hard to believe that I was the last man on board, but it should be admitted that things moved very fast once I was committed. Al now started to receive the communications that start in this book.

Eventually a group of seven was "selected" because spirit were involved in this process. Apparently it needed a very specific mix of persons, as well as only people who would be very harmonious. That said, we had to work hard on the harmony!

Our first retreat as a group was from Monday 23rd
October till Sunday December 17th 2017 – two months largely in isolation, and we were praying close to three hours a day! Eventually this group of seven was given the name "*The Water Carriers*" by Mary the mother of Jesus. That's a pretty awesome name considering Jesus was the first water carrier! Our second "refresher" isolation retreat was a week in Hawaii in March 2018.

Between the date of the first message in this book, and the time of publication of this volume (May 2018) we have enough D.V. messages to fill over 600 pages. And we are certainly not finished at this stage. Much of this material is very new to us, and can be considered quite advanced. Because it is directed at us personally – the group of seven – we have published very little of this material, and it is only as of 2020 that we have begun this process of publication.

This particular volume contains all the communications leading up to the start of the first D. V. retreat held in 2017.

Geoff Cutler March 2020.

Code of Conduct:

This code of conduct has been modified from that suggested by the Scole Experimental group and we thank them for this effort. At the start of our closed retreat we soon found that we needed to have certain rules. Our angel communicators provided some of those, but these are the ones we settled on:

"The sitting itself should last exactly an hour, and should end, as it began, with a prayer. A definite break at the end of a sitting is essential. Never, never omit it.

Now I have known many circles observe all these rules and yet fail to get results, and so eventually break up. It is because they have not observed the last and most important rule of all - be harmonious. Harmony amongst the sitters is the one condition that brings speedy results.

In our own home circle we got very speedy results because we purposely set out to cultivate harmony among the sitters:

- -We saw little of each other immediately before the sitting so that no controversial conversation might take place.
 - -We did not permit criticism of anybody or anything.
- -We consciously tried to see the best in each other, and avoided being irritated by mannerisms.
- -We became, if you like, a mutual admiration society, but we preserved harmony.
- -There was not a shred of malice or unkindness or envy or jealousy, or even questioning amongst the whole lot of us.
 - -Tolerance and harmony reigned supreme.

The controls or operators on the other side of life who are responsible for bringing about the phenomena necessary in a direct-voice circle cannot even begin their work until complete harmony is established. If they see a sincere and earnest effort on the part of the sitters to produce this state

Direct Voice Volume 2

of harmony, they will do their utmost to help. But if they see little progress towards this end they soon cease to cooperate. Remember it has taken them years to study and master this wonderful phenomenon, and until they have satisfied themselves that the sitters are of the class that will persevere, that they are earnest, with no selfish end in view, and that they are willing to exercise control of themselves and make whatever sacrifices are necessary to produce the results, the spirit controls are not likely to waste their time and efforts."

Table of Contents

| Preface | |
|---|----|
| Background | ii |
| Code of Conduct: | vi |
| Choose to Embrace God's Will | 1 |
| The Angels support our choice for Direct Voice | 5 |
| Goldie's Enthusiasm and Encouragement | 10 |
| Preparations for Direct Voice | 11 |
| Direct Voice Guidance continued | 15 |
| Pray for Love; Blossom in Love | 20 |
| You must be the rock of comfort in the coming times | 21 |
| Release of Soul Wounds is a Free Will Choice | 26 |
| Alec shares his frustrations with the first D. V. project | 31 |
| Seretta Kem gives instructions for preparation | 32 |
| Always seek for the Highest Love | 37 |
| "Be Joyful" advice from Goldie | 39 |
| Diagnosis for Al | 40 |
| Preparation for Direct Voice | 43 |
| Answer to H's Questions | 47 |
| Advice from the old sage | 55 |
| With the Development of this Gift, a new level of Communication will come | 58 |
| Individual Guides for Direct Voice | 62 |
| Encouragement and Guidance - a Blueprint for Change | 67 |
| You Are Jewels Beyond Price | 72 |
| Guidance concerning your Guides | 74 |
| Confidentiality Guidance | 76 |
| May your souls shine with the Father's Love | 83 |

Direct Voice Volume 2

| God will guide you to the parched lands of the world | 84 |
|--|-----|
| Progressing the soul and detecting changes | 86 |
| The advancing of the soul | 89 |
| When the Saints Come Marching In | 92 |
| Jesus confirms he intends to materialize | 92 |
| The Need for Harmony on All Levels in Order to Facilitate D. V | 96 |
| The Time has Come to Listen to the Wisdom of Your Souls | 99 |
| Personal for M | 103 |
| Confucius advises us to rest our minds | 106 |
| Be Honest With Yourselves | 109 |
| How your gifts will emerge | 115 |
| Many gifts will emerge | 118 |
| The various purposes of the upcoming retreat | 122 |
| Much awaits you | 128 |
| This is a blessed path | 132 |
| Preparations by spirit continue | 133 |
| All Is Done In Love | 137 |
| The Awakening of the Soul Giving Rise to the Harmonization of the Material Mind and the Soul | 120 |
| | |
| This is all in God's Timing | |
| Some discussion about mediumship | |
| Bridge Differences with Love | |
| Guidance on D.V. Preparations | 148 |
| Walk in the Light through Coming Upheavals | |
| The Purpose of Direct Voice | |
| Direct Voice Instruction | 162 |
| Advice on diet | 167 |

Direct Voice Volume 2

| Your Souls certainly have been Attuned and Blessed | 169 |
|---|-----|
| God Is Whispering Within You | 171 |
| Be in the World, but not of the World | 174 |
| All In Harmony | 178 |
| Detailed instructions regarding the Direct Voice sessions | 181 |
| Don't take yourselves too seriously | 185 |
| H's Arrival | 186 |
| Love and Laughter with Goldie | 189 |
| Martin Luther Greets H | 189 |
| Much work awaits | 191 |
| Preparing for Direct Voice to Begin | 194 |

Choose to Embrace God's Will

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Abbotsford, BC

Date: April 20, 2017

You are each about to take some large steps in your life, steps that will lead to service and the flow of God's Love. Each of you has been prepared, educated, and have been praying for the Divine Love for a number of years. You have prayed to be used as God's instruments in this world. You have been tested, you have learned, you have grown within your souls. You are beginning to discover your true selves and you have forged an unbreakable relationship with your Creator.

Although there is always a need for growth and improvement, essentially you have come to a place where you are ready. Each has their gifts to contribute, you are equipped with soul discernment and with an intuitive understanding of what is meant to be in the flow of God's Will. Yes you are ready to carry this torch of Truth into the world. As such, you will be given some surprising opportunities, unanticipated, that will allow you to take this leap forward in a very overt and recognized way. For some who are around you this will cause some concern or even jealousy. I tell you, if you follow God's Will, and you surely will, then all will be blessed in the wake of your efforts and your instrumentality. Never fear the future, my beloveds. Look forward in anticipation, joy and eagerness for God has in store for you a beautiful path. A path of light, a path of service, a path filled with Love. Though there may be challenges, challenges that require you to step forward and to overcome those small barriers and reticence, you will come to that place of a clear, beautiful and powerful

expression of Love in the world.

Beloved souls, now is your time to exercise your faith in the Will of your Creator, the Wisdom of your Creator and the Love of your Creator, and to say: "I lay down my will for your Will. I give up those constructs of the mind, ideas and dreams that I have concocted to give me a sense of security and I now embrace the Truth, I now embrace the reality of your beautiful Creation, of your ultimate and wise Will for me, the destiny that I am to walk as a child of God." This is a great test for each one of you my beloveds, to release your will to the Will of God. It is a commitment, a declaration, that you are truly a child of God. When you can say: "I trust in your wisdom, God's great plan over my own will." This is not easy, but with the power and strength of God's Love that lies within your souls, you have the strength and the inner wisdom to know that this is the right step. You will not lose anything in this, but you will gain the world, my beloveds, the world of God. That beautiful world of God's Will and Presence and Love within your life.

What can you lose when you are embraced in this way? You are not in danger, nor vulnerable, nor in error, when you are embraced by God in this way. It is the folly of mankind to say: "I am all-powerful. I will be the master of my own fate. I will create my life in the image of myself." This is an illusion, my beloveds. A terrible and dreadful illusion and has caused much pain through the many, many millennium of mankind's existence. Because each child has the right and the ability to choose to have free will, does not mean that they are capable of making those choices that are of profound wisdom and harmony with creation. No my beloveds, it merely means that they can accept or reject the Will of God, the Truth of God and the Laws of Creation. So many souls have done so. They have rejected these Truths. Many do not know where to find these Truths. Many have no inclination other than within their souls to pursue God. Many are in a deep state of deprivation, of spiritual starvation and great emotional pain. Yet they choose to ignore this by the

many distractions that are available to you in this world. This too is folly, for the great efforts mankind has made to make their life, the life of man, then the image of man will crumble. Already great fissures and chasms are coming about within the fabric of mankind's creation. Soon it will be in tatters, because error cannot stand with Truth for very long, my beloveds. Error cannot stand with Truth, for the laws are inexorable. All must come back into balance and harmony. This is a law, and this law will have its effect upon all those in this world.

Now do you see why we have put such effort into each one of you and all of those who are willing to be a channel of Truth in this world? What will the generations to come stand up on if there is nothing put in place that is of Truth, that is in harmony with the laws of Creation? You my beloveds are a part of this plan for the salvation of mankind. You are a part, a vital part of teaching and showing the way to a better way of existence. You will bring that choice to others. You will bring the Truth of Divine Love so that others may choose. You will do so because you have laid your wills over to God and accepted the role and the mantle that God has placed upon you.

These are serious times, my beloveds. These are not times to dilly and dally about. Do not waste your time in idle pursuits. Continue to pray fervently and to ask those questions that rise up from your soul, to pray them out to God, to receive the answers that you require, to make the changes that are necessary. For this is what your soul desires, my beloveds. This is what is meant for you. It is not an easy task, to be a leader in this world. To lead with Love, to lead with humility and to lead with the power of God working through you. This is the highest road you can take in this world. You have the example of your brother Jesus to follow, and others who have attempted to teach humanity of the Truth of God, the Truth of Love. As this fabric created by mankind becomes shredded and collapses, the door will open for you to serve, to teach, to speak, to Love. You are prepared, my beloveds. This gives us great joy that you are ready and you will join with others and there will be a resounding call

Direct Voice Volume 2

for Truth in this world, as you all join together and speak in one voice that Love is truly the answer, that this world must be built upon the Truth of Love. This world must be built upon all Truth. The time of deception, falsity and error must fall away and will fall away and give rise to something greater and more in harmony.

Yes my beloveds, I know you do not understand all that I say. You do not see the steps that are ahead of you. In a way, this innocence and ignorance benefits you. Because when one follows the Will of God, it's not so much a plan within your mind, but a flow and a knowing within your soul to follow in innocence and faith in each day and to express whatever it is that God guides you to do with each day. You are more in harmony with the Will of God. You rely less upon your own will other than to say: "I am willing, I choose your way, dear Father." I know for some of you this is frustrating and perplexing, but take comfort, my beloveds, that all is planned and prepared by God. You will be carried along, what you require will be given. How you will arrive at any particular destination will be provided in a safe and beautiful way. There is nothing to worry about, there is nothing to hold you back other than your own wilful self. Do you understand me, my beloveds? You see now that much awaits you, that God has laid His plans within your soul and it is for you to allow these plans to be revealed to your consciousness in bits and drips, day by day.

Being aligned with God means being patient, faithful and bringing joy to each day and listening, listening in that deep place as you pray, as you ask God to guide you and to Love you. Walk the destined path beloveds. Speak the words of Truth, seek the Love of God above all else and you will fulfil your purpose in this world and reap your rewards in the next. God bless you beloveds. I am Augustine and I am with you as you journey forward. Many angels are with you in their efforts, in their prayers, in their desire to see change in this world that is of light and harmony. God bless you beloveds. I Love you. God bless you.

The Angels support our choice for Direct Voice

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Klamath Falls, Oregon

Date: May 18, 2017

So you have decided upon this project of Direct Voice and we have waited for that decision, my beloveds. We have waited for you to come to that place of understanding and knowing of the depth of commitment that is required to bring forth this gift that was unfortunately interrupted. And to date you have made some good and sound decisions regarding this. And I would advise that you begin in earnest before the ending of this year, that you gather those together who are committed as well to begin your time of prayer, by sitting for this gift to be developed and unfold.

This is a great commitment by we in spirit as well. It requires a great deal of effort from our side of life, as you can imagine. To bring forth the highest teachers, to bring forth the Master Jesus, His disciples, those in the higher Celestial spheres, and those who have much teaching to give to humanity. This is not to be taken lightly, nor is it a casual venture. This will take up most of your life, my beloveds. This will require some sacrifice on your part and some deep commitments in terms of your lifestyle, in terms of what is important, your priorities, even your diets. For present this instrument is not in the right physical condition to be used as an instrument in this way, and he must prepare himself. Be strict and consistent in what he consumes. Bringing certain

¹ This is a reference to a project begun but not completed many years previously by Alec Gaunt. This material is in Volume 1 of this series.

metabolic systems in balance, for this will indeed cause strain upon the physical body. We do not wish to see our efforts come to nought, nor do we wish to see this instrument pass into spirit prematurely; no this is a great investment on both our parts - both us and yours. And there are requirements, definite requirements in order to accomplish this goal. And so it must be with each participant in this effort that there is a deep commitment and clear understanding of what this commitment entails, and a passion and desire for this gift to unfold, for yes it will bring many many souls to the Truth, once accomplished.

These sorts of manifestations, though not necessary to teach others, do indeed get the attention of many, for they cannot ignore this. This will bring a revelation to mankind. This will assist many souls and assist your world in the transition that is coming. And this instrument has prayed and asked, "Is this part of God's Will, is this part of the plan for the salvation of mankind?" And I would say, this can be part of it. This can be a significant component of this plan. But nothing is guaranteed in this regard, for the development of this gift is not guaranteed. It is dependent upon your commitment. Your ability to adhere to the requirements that are strict. Your ability to desire only for the highest and to not allow those influences outside of yourself to manipulate you, to take advantage.

If this gift were to be exploited for material gain, or in negative ways, we would not enter into this agreement, this partnership. You must realize that this is for God and God alone. It is your dedication and your effort to allow God to work through you in this way. It is not for material gain, it is not for prestige, it is not to gratify some need within you, my beloveds. All of these things get in the way of these higher efforts. You must be prepared to work diligently, do not seek as a motivation the rewards of recognition. Humility is a must.

And you must also accept that there is a possibility,

that despite your greatest efforts, there may not be success. So you see, the possibilities are there for success. And yet considering the conditions of this world, there is a possibility of failure. So my beloveds, what is your desire, what is your desire? What is a burning passion within your soul? These things will inform how you will proceed and what will unfold. For we in spirit can assist you in many many ways, and the gift of Direct Voice is within our grasp, but is it within your grasp? I speak seriously to you my beloveds. For this is a very serious matter requiring a great deal of effort on both your part and ours. And if we are to enter into this partnership, we must understand and acknowledge what is required. And you know that we desire to work with you, you know that there is a great effort afoot to bring about the Truth of Divine Love into this world, to have it known in this world. There are many avenues to this, possibilities, paths to follow, events which lead one to another, opportunities set forth by God. And by desiring Direct Voice, you are reaching for a very challenging effort. If successful it will bring a wealth of rewards, but you are indeed reaching high and I want you to know the seriousness of this commitment and what is required.

I am excited by this, my soul leaps with your tentative desire to enter into this agreement, to commit yourself upon this course and many of us on our side feel hope and enthusiasm for the possibilities that may unfold in this effort. And I wish for you to continue to consider this commitment, this seriousness and effort that must be given towards this and the efforts that you must make from this day on to prepare to be in the right condition. For we may work with ease upon each of you as you are team. Those of you who will be selected must have a great loyalty to your project together. You must not have any strife amongst you, you must be prayerful and focused and disciplined.

Yes these challenges are great, but indeed you must see it as an opportunity to further grow in your own spiritual

development and soul awakening. For the challenges will be put forth before you. Challenges that you cannot avoid or hide from, but must be met. And as you venture forward upon this particular path, we will be quite honest with you my beloveds, in terms of for your own spiritual condition that you bring into the group that you will be forming. This is not for beginners, amateurs, those who are loosely committed to Divine Love, no. This requires full commitment, this requires living the laws of God's creation of His Love, as fully and completely as you can. Not comprising, not allowing the conditions of this world to infiltrate and change your moods and your thoughts, no my beloveds. This is saying: "I have committed myself to you Dear Father, all of myself and I will live in this Light, this Grace, this Love. I will act accordingly. I will shake off the vestiges of my human condition; I will seek the highest always. And I will commit myself to the Truth. To spreading the Truth, to learning the Truth, to living the Truth." And of course these words have many layers to them, your capacity to live the Truth comes in increments and steps towards it. You my beloveds have made great strides towards Truth. Very often you are in the Light, but still you continue to indulge yourselves in negativity. You have your weaknesses, as do all mortals. Yet as long as you make these great efforts, we will continue to support and commit to your venture, our venture.

We are not so harsh, that we would not forgive lapses, no, Love always forgives. But we will bring to your attention when you indulge yourselves in conditions that are not in harmony with this venture. Or if you are to commit to these efforts, you must be willing to hear the Truth. And to know the Truth about yourself, again a great leap forward, reaching for the highest. This is not easy; this is very difficult. Yet with the Love burning within your souls and conscious commitment towards this venture, you will overcome any and all hurdles within your way. How quickly you do so will determine the depth of the success of this venture and the

timing of it.

Remember you are always Loved by God and that we always support and Love you, beloveds. And you know the Truth, you are not ignorant, you are well educated upon this path. You have been blessed countless times by God. You have what is required to make your efforts successful. The only thing that holds you back is your willingness to be distracted, to indulge negative thoughts and emotions and to dive into the human condition when you have all the ways and means to be above this condition. Your needs are provided for, God's Love surrounds you, the angels are with you, your souls burn bright with Love. You have all that is required. Yet that part of you, that humanness, those old habits of the mind, those desires of the flesh continue to harass you. You have not made a great enough effort to extinguish these conditions within you - even though this is clearly within your reach. And so we patiently wait in Love, in compassion and understanding of the challenges that you face.

But I ask you my friends, how long will it take before you come to realize the beauty of your true selves before you come to truly Love the creation that is you. Where you come to see the world through eyes of the soul and move through the world utilizing the great wisdom and soul perceptions that are clearly within you. We see these gifts and perceptions within your soul and yet you, like all of humanity, cling resolutely to the conditions of your mind and the perceptions of reality of your mind, for fear if you let go you will plunge into some delusional disorienting condition. But know that you will dive into your soul and no clearer perception of reality is there than the perceptions of the soul, the mind of the soul, the reality of the soul.

Consider these things my friends before you step forward into this ambitious goal and project. Take a good look within and ask yourself: "Am I ready, am I ready to commit, am I ready to let go of those things that will hold me

from this. Am I ready to step forward and work with my angel friends for this great goal. Is this something I want? Is this something that I wish to develop in service to God?" For if the answer is yes, then we will with wonderful gracious enthusiasm support you in your project. For we await those opportunities in which we can work together to bring about wondrous gifts to humanity, gifts that will bear fruit of Truth and Love and change for the world.

And I reiterate, you are loved no matter what choices you make, you are loved and we will never leave you and you are never alone. You are loved. God bless you, I am Seretta Kem and I look forward to the opportunities in working with you in this way. I stand by your side awaiting your commitment, and that commitment is reflected by your actions, your thoughts and your prayers. God bless you. God bless you.

Goldie's Enthusiasm and Encouragement

Spirit: Goldie Medium: Al Fike

Location: Klamath Falls, Oregon

Date: May 18, 2017

Goldie comes in laughing, bringing great joy! Oh, my friends, I look forward to being able to sing and dance with you in direct voice!!

Despite my friend's seriousness, we are all joyed with your entertaining the possibility of direct voice. What a beautiful gift this will be for the world. We are all joyed and we will continue to pray that you and we will come to that place of joining together and making these efforts to bring this to reality. And when this happens, I will indeed come and sing and dance and bring my words of joy to the world. God bless you, I am Goldie and I Love you. God bless you.

Preparations for Direct Voice

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: May 25, 2017

My charges have asked for some guidance regarding preparation and being in a condition to sit in harmony for Direct Voice. Essentially you are merely required to enact the guidance that has been given to you over the years many, many times. Keep your thoughts on a higher level, be connected with God, be a channel of Love in the world and to let go of all obstacles in the way of this flow of Love and connection with God. Now obviously these things are very much a degree of understanding and expression and each day presents its unique challenges to each one of you and this is why prayer is so important. It is reaching for God so that God may bless you and cleanse you of many conditions that you may have taken on during your day. When you are showered by Light in your prayers you are uplifted into Light and does it not seem that those earthly cares and worries begin to fade and you can let go?

Prayer is very important my beloveds. Bring forth your intentions to your Creator. Pray to be used as a channel, pray that you might be used for the development of Direct Voice, pray that you might express your gifts in the world in the fullness and ripeness that comes with the inflowing of The Divine Love within your souls. Bring peace into your lives, draw in positive thoughts, bring beauty into your lives, express love whenever you can, make love your primary goal in life that all may be an expression of love. Discipline yourselves, beloveds, in your thoughts and your actions for each soul knows what is in harmony and what is not. As you continue to plunge into your souls, your awareness of the many actions you take in your life each day allows you to see

those parts of yourselves that need to grow or fall away. Parts of you, my beloveds, are very much in harmony while other aspects of your personality and your being are not in as much harmony. So, when you take these months in preparation, part of your efforts must be to look clearly and deeply within yourselves and perceive where there is need for improvement, where love does not reign, where you may be uplifted. Pray about these things, beloved souls, pray about those parts of yourselves which are not healed in Love - those thought patterns that are old and very useless as you continue to grow in your souls.

Yes, this is a tall order - we are asking much of you but you have set your goals high, my beloveds. You've said "I am willing to bring forth into the world a gift that has never been seen, a gift that can bring many souls to the Truth." Because this world is of a material nature, many require material proof. Many discount the subtleties of spirit because their eyes are upon and their focus is directed towards the material. We recognize this; we recognize the attitudes that are so prevalent in this world. If there is a way and means to communicate more directly to humanity, then of course we would use this opening and gift to bring Truth to humanity for those who will listen. But even with the opening of this gift, many will not listen - we understand this as well. But every avenue used, every gift expressed, every successful enactment of God's Guidance brings a little more Light to this world. Indeed, these Lights flicker in a dark world but they are growing and you are growing. This Light intensifies and there is a great need to bring greater Light to this world that suffers so, that suffers on every level because there is such a great disharmony in your world. There is so much error and ignorance where most of mankind indulges their physical appetites, their desire for security and power of material things and very few know their souls. Very few understand the reason why they are here in this world or where they are going. So, we must utilize every opportunity, every channel,

every gift, every means that is available in order to bring forth to humanity a higher perspective on life. we seek to invite the many, many souls who live in spiritual deprivation, emotional poverty, yet are surrounded by a multiplicity of distractions so that they may not face a lacking within themselves.

In order to grab the attention of such souls one must take extreme measures and this, my beloveds, is a very overt effort to gain the attention of many. This will not guarantee that all of humanity will listen or take heed of the Truths that are given, but many will. Indeed the Light then is increased in your world and this is how it will go in God's Plan for the salvation of mankind. Many different avenues will be taken in order to bring greater enlightenment to humanity - that they at least will recognize that there is a choice and that the effort to open themselves to God, to understand their spiritual natures, is not a waste or an illusion. It is very real and very valid, a very valid pursuit and an important one.

Now, we will make every effort that we can to facilitate this gift. We see the importance and the potential of opening this doorway, this portal so that humanity - those who are indeed very blind and shrouded with these dark human conditions - will have the opportunity to see a demonstration that will prove our existence and in this awakening, there will be an opening to Truth. Is this not what you are pursuing, my beloveds, in your attempt to bring the Truth of God's Love into the world; to awaken and open souls to the Truth? This is God's work and God has gifted every soul many gifts and potentials and we have entreated you often to continue to pray for The Divine Love so that these gifts may open and be developed within you. The gift of Direct Voice is but one gift but in this great effort to bring Truth to mankind, do we not need a multitude of gifts, do we not need many instruments and individuals to say "I have turned my eyes to God in service, I desire the touch of His Love and I desire to express those things that are within me,

those beautiful things within my soul that may be used by God to help to bring Truth, to heal and to comfort humanity, to reassure the lost souls that there is indeed a direction to walk, a goal to be obtained and the knowledge of this is within the soul."

So my beloveds, you continue to speculate and ruminate upon these issues regarding your role in the development of Direct Voice and it is good that you take an accounting of your present spiritual condition and soul development and that you look to see where there is room for improvement, that you redouble your efforts in prayer, that you focus your thoughts and your intentions upon this coming project, that you prepare yourself physically for the conditions that you will be exposed to. We will work with you to develop this gift and we will require a certain physical stamina, chemical balances within the body, good health and a mind clear of negativity and judgments. In other words, to shine in the Light on every level of your being. And yes, we do not expect perfection — we understand that you live in this human condition, a condition that is not altogether conducive towards these expectations — yet you have we in spirit who constantly are with you, you have God's Touch upon you and you continue to live in the Light. We do not ask the impossible; we merely ask that you give a great effort towards preparing yourselves for this period of time in your life where we will enter into this experiment. This great effort to bring through the Direct Voice so that we may speak directly to many souls, that we may even manifest in our physical appearance to those who only see with material eyes. And in this way we may bring manifestations of light and healing to many. For the Truth is demonstrable even in this physical world, there is the potential to bring a clear understanding of these Truths undistorted, powerful and undeniable.

Continue to ask your questions, dear children, continue to monitor yourselves, your behaviours, your

thoughts, the patterns in your life. When you see there is room for improvement we would encourage you to take those actions required. At times when you feel that you have failed do not berate yourselves. As the old saying goes a new day dawns with each day, a new beginning. God will continue to support and Love and nurture His children and you truly are His children in the flow of His Love and Grace. You will never be alone, you will continue to be upheld and we will continue to give instruction as you head towards this goal and these efforts and this time where you will sit for Direct Voice.

My blessings to you, my beloveds, I am Seretta Kem and I will indeed respond to your questions and queries and do so with love and anticipation for we are joyed when you put your focus upon these higher goals and higher gifts and struggle to come to a clear realization and expression of these aspects within your soul. God bless you, God bless you, beloveds, I love you.

Direct Voice Guidance continued

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: May 26, 2017

I wish to continue my message from yesterday regarding direct voice. And this portion of the message will refer to the possibilities and potentials of this gift changing your lives; opening up avenues of service; possibilities of reaching out into the world with this gift.

The greatest challenge of mortals - those who wish to present the Truth of Divine Love into the world - is to gain the attention of others. For within the minds of mortals are many ideas, structures, concepts, and paradigms of Truth. The mind enjoys making the simple Truth into a complex

matter. The mind also is gratified with words and explanations and rationalizations, for the mind is designed to assimilate facts and draw conclusions from those facts. And this, of course, distorts and causes error to form around Truth. So the Truth then is magnified by many ideas and perceptions and conclusions drawn by the mind. The soul often is not involved whatsoever in the pursuit of Truth because of the conditions of this world. The mind is predominant and fills the entire consciousness of the individual, leaving very little room for the souls' inclusion in the discerning of Truth. And thus you have a great challenge my friends, to bring the simple Truth of God's Love to humanity, for the mental conditions of this world, of the mindful world, do not readily accept and agree with the simplicity and power of God's Truth. There is always a need to adorn and multiply these simple Truths with many many ideas, often borne of the imagination of the mind. Thus you have a multiplicity of religions in the world. And within what you call "New Thought", there are myriad permutations of these ideas as well. The world is full of thought, full of what is presented as Truth, but is merely a shadow of Truth, grandiose explanations for simple Truth. God's Love is simple. God's Love is pure. God's Love does not require complex explanations. God's Love is drawn into the soul, for the soul understands and knows, in ways that the mind has no possibility of doing so.

And so how do you get the attention of humanity? How do you teach the simple Truth? We have told you many times, be an example, walk in the world in Love, allow God to use you as a channel of Love, which he does in many different ways on many different levels. But these ways and means are often very subtle, and these cues are not readily picked up by those you meet, yet seeds are sown within the soul, light is spread within the world. The possibility of Truth has been presented through you and through others who are willing to be such instruments in the world.

And now you have embarked upon a project which will bring in more overt examples of these Truths. Bringing the channel of teaching and demonstrating these Truths down to a material level, where they can be readily understood. The evidence becomes clear with material manifestations and the content is that of a pure Truth given by the angels. Now I do not see why anyone would be skeptical if such a mechanism were present in this world from this effort. I can see why you are somewhat reluctant because you, as well as we, understand the barriers that are in place in bringing forth this beautiful gift. As for the challenges that are presented to you my beloveds, you must rise up into the conditions required so that we may work together and open the door to this possibility. It is challenging, but do not doubt the effects that will come with this gift in terms of reaching many souls, bringing beautiful and pure Truth to this world. This will happen if you are successful; you will reach many thousands upon thousands of souls, if you are successful. Your lives will change, my beloveds, because many will want to hear what is to be said by we in the Celestial spheres and those higher spirits who have information to bring to the world. This opens a channel for much information to be given to the world. For information that is crucial to bring greater harmony to your world. And with the means that this information is given, there may be those who are skeptical, but many will listen because, they will see the plain Truth before them, delivered with a material mechanism; the direct voice.

So for those of you who wonder "Will this gift be effective?" I say yes, very effective, if handled and used in the correct way under guidance, under soul recognition of what must be done, under the auspices of integrity and faith. And you will be called upon to travel to many parts of the world and this we have said to you often, that you will travel and you will be present in many places to give this message of hope and New Birth to the world. As the world continues to

be in flux and change, and shifting conditions, you will be a stabilizing factor for many. You will open the eyes of hope, encouragement, Truth and peace, for those who are in desperate need of these things. The world is in a terrible state of deprivation and it is covered by the materialism that you see all about you. And because of this dichotomy, the vast majority of the world is able to live under the delusion that they are safe and happy. Yet underneath all of this, these layers of material comfort and distraction is a soul crying out for Love, a soul that is wasting away because it is not seen, not recognized by the mindful conditions of humanity. And thus until this recognition is in place and there is a greater balance amongst mankind, the world will continue to plunge into darkness, for there is a great imbalance with humanity's present course of development. And because their foundations are upon the sands of merely the understandings of the material mind, this will crumble; this cannot withstand the expectations of those who view the world without Love, without seeing the entire picture, the Truth of why you exist upon this world.

The message of Love must be given in order to heal, not only the injured souls of so many, but the injury of this world, the imbalances and the inequities, and the suffering of the creatures of this world as it continues to be burdened by the expectations of man. How far can this go my beloveds, without causing great devastation and pain to humanity because they insist on error and are ignorant of Truth, as they desire material gratification over all else? This cannot continue beloveds, and we in spirit who see from lofty heights and deep awareness the conditions of this world, earnestly desire to bring forth possibilities of healing, the channels of Truth, the ways in which humanity may listen and take notice. And so you, my beloveds, are precious to us because you are willing and you desire to open this channel of Truth for the world. To be God's instruments of healing and Light and Love and Truth. And so we continue to uphold

you, to teach you, to give to you what is required, that we may lend success to this venture.

Your role and efforts in this are to continue to pray with great fervency to seek Truth always; to be with your Heavenly Father as fully as you might be; to make those efforts to live within your souls; to be that example for humanity where the balance between the mind and the soul is forged, and steady, and sure.

And so preparation for this work is not so much of the material form, although keeping your bodies in good sound condition is of importance. You must continue to feed your souls with God's Love, and yearn for this Love, yearn above all else. For as you feast upon the Love, all will come into place. This work will expand and this Truth will be known in the world. And I know that you often swing between the material consciousness and the soul consciousness and it is hard for you to keep both within you at all times. But as you continue to strive towards this goal, it will become easier and you will know how to be in the world in this way, to carry the awareness of God's touch upon you at all times, and to navigate the material world so that you may reach out to many. We will assist you in this, we will continue to help you develop this unified awareness. And we are with you in your struggles and we are so very joyed that you desire to serve in this way. We are praying for your success and I will tell you that the entire Celestial Kingdom is praying for you my beloveds. May you continue to be carried in the light; that you continue to open to the Truth; that your souls continue to expand and envelope your entire being in Love, that you may bring forth these gifts with wisdom and strength, Love and courage, that you may walk in this world, solely guided by God. This is the change that is coming in your life, my beloveds, to walk in the world solely guided by God. Then all those attachments and worries of the material life will be as nothing, for you will see with great vision. You will understand with great soul wisdom, the faculties of your soul

will be alive, awakened and will move in the Grace of God. And thus, you will be a true example of the power of God's Love. May every footfall be blessed beloveds. May you consider what I have said and take this to prayer each day, and strive for the highest, walk in the Light, open your souls more fully to God's blessings and we will continue to support and Love and guide you. Our Love is with you. We all walk together for the purpose of the salvation of mankind. You are Loved, you are Loved. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. God bless you.

Pray for Love; Blossom in Love

Spirit: St. Stephen

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: June 5, 2017

I am Stephen, known as St. Stephen while on earth and I have not spoken through this instrument before. You will find that as you come together in these Circles of Love that many new angels will speak, for we are preparing this instrument and those who are associated with him for the gift of direct voice. So there will be many who have not spoken who will come to add their energies and blessings to this venture and will give guidance towards this effort.

Beloved souls, you are embraced by God. Beloved souls, this is what you seek and this is God's Response. You are embraced and blessed and your souls open wide open to this great Blessing, this powerful Gift, the Gift that brings redemption, joy and Truth from within. With each prayer that you make that beseeches God to put His Blessing within your soul, you will find that He will embrace you, uplift and bring you close and that angels will surround you and Love will envelop you. This is what you seek, beloved souls, to be uplifted from the conditions in this world, to find peace, to

find nourishment for your souls, to find healing of your bodies, to be in this blissful Light, to let go of all your worries and cares, to be with your Heavenly Father, who loves you more than you can know.

Allow this Gift to enter you, my beloved souls, allow His Peace to wash over you and allow this Light to infuse you. You are truly lifted up and embraced in Love. The wellspring washes over you, beloveds. Drink deep, be at peace. Know that you are loved, that you are love and bring this out into the world wherever you may go. Be this wellspring of Love and Light, beauty and peace. God shall truly bless you, beloved souls. As you have been blessed, you are blessed and you shall be blessed for all eternity.

My love is with you and I shall continue to attend your Circles of Light, as will many angels who have a great interest in your efforts, in your budding souls, seeking to blossom in Love.

God bless you, beloveds. I am Stephen and I love you. God bless you.

You must be the rock of comfort in the coming times

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: June 6, 2017

I am Seretta Kem. I have come to give further guidance on Direct Voice and I have come to open the door to you, my daughter, Elizabeth to ask if you would be willing to step forward in this role as participant in this project of Direct Voice. I would ask these instruments to educate this daughter, if she is willing regarding this effort and practice and what is required at this time for preparation.

This gift will bring about many changes in your lives if

it is accomplished and utilized as we envision it. It is a part of the plan that is laid out before you, my beloveds, but like any plan in this world it is subject to the influences and variables of this world and this is to say that not all is guaranteed but God's Will will manifest regardless of the intransigence of this world. God's Will will manifest through your lives into this world bringing about the transformation of the conditions of this world. For the conditions of this world are in such dire straits of darkness and chaos that I see this is difficult for you to perceive in this beautiful place where you exist. God has provided you with an oasis of beauty and light. Many of you have travelled and seen for your own selves the intensity of humanity upon this planet, how these conditions are rampant, often desperate and how the natural order of this planet is threatened by this imbalance. So there are and will be reactions and consequences brought about by the Laws of Creation that will disrupt and ameliorate those conditions brought about by humanity.

As this unfolds, this shifting and healing of this world, you will be called upon to bring forth information to the leaders of this world and to humanity itself that will be of assistance for the healing and reclamation of humanity in this world. Yes, the present conditions and structures will be rent asunder and many of the things that you rely upon, that have been built to sustain your lives in comfort, and the assurance of survival will not be present for a period of time. Yet you will survive and your needs will be met, my beloveds, and many will survive these conditions of change. For those who are a part of this new wave of life, in this new beginning with the building of a new culture of understanding and awareness, so the blossoming of spirituality in this world will be given what is required to start anew.

You are a part of this, my beloveds, you are a part of this. All of your experiences, all of these teachings, all of our messages, all of God's Blessings, this great unfolding of light in your life are a preparation, beloved souls, for what is to

come. We have tempered the steel in the fire, we have brought truths as high as you are able to understand, we have opened doors, we have prayed with you, and we have prayed for you, you have prayed for yourselves and for each other. You have prayed for this world, you have put effort forward and you are now upon the threshold of a new life, a life which surely will change if this gift is brought forth. A life that will bring many, many unforeseen blessings into your lives, many souls who seek, many who are filled with confusion and fear for what is about to take place in this world. You must be the rock, my beloveds, the rock of comfort, of truth, of love. You must point Heavenward and say: "God loves me and wishes to guide me. God is healing me and this entire planet to allow humanity a chance to correct its error, its wayward choices, and the darkness it has created for itself."

You will not be alone, my beloveds, there will be many who will be called, who will work to these ends, who are attuned to God and will receive the inspiration and the guidance to help reclaim the world for God and light and truth, harmony. Indeed, this will not be an easy task for you. But each of you have elected even before you incarnated into this world to be an instrument in this way. You know this within your souls, you feel the calling, you feel like you are meant to do something important, you have a purpose, you have a soul that has been touched by God and given many gifts and has been nurtured by Love.

So the time comes for the unfolding of your true purpose and in this you will find a great fulfilment and joy, that the hardships that you may endure through these times of change may be as nothing compared to that knowledge and awareness that you are with God and God is providing for you and guiding you through these times. Your material needs will be met, the needs of your soul and spirit, all will be provided. Do not let your imaginations give you ideas as to what this will be like for you can only conjure up illusions

from your mind and this is not helpful. What is helpful is acknowledging that deep within you lie a surety and a faith that will carry you through.

God is not cruel, my beloveds. God does not bring suffering to others or to you. It is humanity that brings suffering upon itself by not following the Laws of Creation, by not loving, by not maintaining a soulful connection with the Creator. This you must teach, beloved souls, how to reach out to God, how to be in that flow of His Love and Will. As you accumulate more of the great blessing of Divine Love, do not these truths become obvious and clear? Are you not a channel of Love in this world? You have chosen this life and you did so long ago and this now comes to fruition and you have now chosen to utilise your gifts to be an instrument for God in a special way that this Direct Voice might come to the world, that we in the Celestial Kingdom may speak to humanity, unencumbered by the limitations of a medium, that we may at times materialise to those who are skeptical, that we may bring information that will be immensely helpful in the reconstruction of the world. Much will be given if you are willing to allow us to use you, to communicate, to bring forth what is needed.

Your responsibility is to maintain a light about you and within you, to keep your thoughts at a high level, to be loving at all times, to put aside those conditions that may cause disruption within you, those old habits and patterns and to release those conditions within your soul which blur the clarity and light within. So, I urge you to continue in your preparation, your efforts and your discussions regarding this purposeful nature and to realize that you carry a great responsibility if you accept this role. This acceptance should be done without fear, without reticence and without confusion but done wholeheartedly with the feeling from deep within that says: "I am ready and I want and dearly wish to be a part of this" and it is in this deep desire and acknowledgement that the power and the beauty of this gift

will manifest in this world, something that has never happened in a consistent way, ever upon this planet.

You have elected to break the ground, to bring something new, to bring this precious opportunity to join together the wisdom, the love and the beauty of the Celestial Kingdom to the world in which you live. What a wonderful venture this will be and you have the full support of the Celestial Kingdom. All the resources that are available to us are available to you if you so elect to receive, to act in this responsible manner, to take seriously your commitment, to hold the Love above all else in your lives. God's Hand is upon you, beloveds, because you have allowed this to be so. God's Hand has been placed upon you because your souls desire this, because you have reached out to Him and been blessed mightily and this is your opportunity to give to your brothers and sisters in gratitude and joy and acknowledging the great Truth of His Love and existence. Many long to know this and many are asleep in this world but will be awakened from their slumbers one way or another and when they are awake who will they turn to? What will they turn to? You must provide a beacon of light, an opportunity for those souls, many of which will be awakened in harsh ways, but awake nonetheless. They must have the opportunity to turn to light, to understand the truth of their true existence, the meaning of their lives. As God's instruments, you will have the opportunity to provide these truths to others and as these gifts are developed, the platform on which you will speak will widen so that you will be able to reach many, many souls. You will have the credibility, the veracity and the beautiful expressions that will convince many and give trust to many.

Yes, these times of which we have spoken for many years are now upon us and in the seriousness of these times requires a seriousness of action and effort and we are pleased that you are willing to make the efforts that are necessary to accomplish the work that is coming. I bless you my beloveds, beautiful friends and I love you dearly and

acknowledge your beautiful souls. Continue to seek the guidance, to walk this path in all sincerity, to be in harmony with God's Will, His Laws, His Love and to know peace and the joy of recognizing that you are truly blessed.

God bless you, beloved souls. May He keep you in this Light always. We love you, we are with you and we will continue to support you in many, many ways for Love is like this, is it not? You are lifted up, you are enveloped, you are guided, you are strengthened, you are healed, you are given peace and you are provided for. This shall continue, always. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. I love you. God bless you.

Release of Soul Wounds is a Free Will Choice

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: June 8, 2017

My beloved, we do not eavesdrop. For we know your thoughts and the conditions of your soul before you even know, beloveds. You are plain to read; every soul is plain to read for those who have the perceptions within to know.

I wish to comment about how a soul is cleansed of the error and conditions that are not in harmony with God's Love. As a soul yearns for this Love and is open to the inflowing of the Divine Essence, there is a reaction as the Laws pertaining to this Love are enacted within the soul. Those conditions that are not in harmony must in time be released, pushed out, so to speak, by the Love. Some conditions are burnt to ashes, requiring no acknowledgement whatsoever, while other conditions that in subtle ways affect your thinking and being, need to be acknowledged and released. So the Love pushes these blockages, hurts, wounds and the imprinting of experiences from your path that are within the soul. These things are purified by the Love, but in

this purification process there is a need to release what is still remaining within the soul for a complete healing to occur. So these conditions, these thoughts and these emotions rise up into your consciousness and when one truly acknowledges these things, and does so in love, there is a release to God, and often a feeling of relief as another burden leaves your being.

This release is subject to your free will. You may decide to hold on to that condition, which is neither then within your soul but not fully within your consciousness, so it becomes stuck somewhere, often within your body, somatized. This has its consequences, at times creating disharmonies within the body, disease, cancers and negative conditions. For the resistance of the mind and the ego can be powerful, causing a blockage that is not readily acknowledged consciously. So neither is the soul completely healed, or the body, or the spirit, as the process has been curtailed by the will of the mind. So, my daughter, it is indeed a powerful instrumentality and gift to help those souls that are seeking healing to acknowledge these conditions that are stuck, to dislodge these boulders from the beings of those who are prayerful and desire Light. You are correct in your assumptions that many do not understand how this works, why acknowledging these deep pains is important and necessary for a complete healing of your being.

Often these conditions continue to circulate within the system, coming forward to consciousness and then being repressed once more, coming forward and then repressed again. This too, causes great damage to the individual. All of these disharmonies within the beings of humanity are causing such pain and strife, struggle and unhappiness. It is time for

² Somatized is the generation of physical symptoms from a mental condition such as anxiety.

humanity to understand the more subtle causal effects which bring these conditions and disharmonies within the body and the mind and the soul and how these things can be eradicated, healed and released.

Yet one must respect the free will of those involved to allow the timing that that individual chooses for their healing; to be gentle and loving. When one has the gift of sight, of seeing clearly the obstructions upon the path of another, this does not automatically give permission to reveal these insights to another. It is not your duty to do so, my beloveds. But awareness allows you to have compassion. Insight with love can help with the healing process. With love it is allowing and accepting the other so that there is no judgment or insistence upon change. You may pray for that individual, my beloveds. Pray for the healing of that individual. Pray that that individual may have the strength to confront their true selves, to release those burdens, to continue to receive the Divine Love which gives the impetus for this healing and release. God will do the work.

It is inevitable that all conditions that are not in harmony with the Love will be released in time, and, yes, the individual has control through their own individual power of free will so can determine the timing of this. As you are aware, my beloveds, desire is a very important element in the healing process. Without a true desire to be healed, a true desire to look, a true desire to release those pains that are often embraced and held dear to the individual, there cannot be healing. If one forces their insight upon another, this is a violation, not an act of love. So discernment is very important in this regard.

We who are with you and work through you will help you so that you may be at the right time and the right place where others may receive the gift of your knowledge and insight, your love, so that you will understand in the flow of God's Will what is required as you act as His Instruments, as His Healers, as you enact change in this world by bringing

Truth.

Of course, the most important of all things is to heal yourself, beloved souls, to allow the process of God's healing Love to work within you that you may be healed; that you may be a pure channel of Love in this world; that you may be an example to act upon Truth in this world, to allow Love in every part of yourself and your lives, and to be humble. For you cannot teach others if you have not followed the same path and are a little further ahead upon it. Without the experience of life, without your own individual struggles, you cannot truly understand the struggles of another. If you are not strong within yourself, you cannot be strong for another. If you lack compassion and grace, you are not acting as an instrument of God. These standards are high, my beloveds, but they are necessary. They are crucial to furthering these Truths in all of these aspects and dynamic ways. To thy own self be true, as it is said, and to be true to God.

Yes, we do see you, and we do love you, and we understand your struggles, for we too lived in this world at one time, and we know the difficulties and the hurdles that must be overcome. We see that each of you are becoming stronger with each day as you continue to pray for the Father's Love, as the active energies of His Love heal, strengthen, and expand your soul. Indeed, it is often the case that your minds need to catch up to the progress of your souls. This takes some reflection, some self-compassion and to release those conditions that hover, not within your soul and not within your mind, but somewhere in between, awaiting that release, awaiting your acknowledgment, awaiting God's Touch, that you may let this go and allow Love to flood into those dark places within you.

You are forging a path for many others, my beloveds, and to understand the many twists and turns of this path, the many challenges that Love brings to you, which is so important. How else may you teach these powerful but simple truths, but to experience it for yourselves? To truly

Direct Voice Volume 2

know it and be it in every way. We do not ask for perfection. We ask that you make those efforts each day to live the Love as best you can, to reach out to God, to continue to wade into that great river of Love, to allow it to sweep you away upon the path that God has chosen for you. When you do so willingly, with eagerness and with faith then all of these elements within you that are not in harmony will be washed through and through by Love and released readily because you trust that God is carrying you through your life. So He is, and always will be with you, and so the power of His love will always uphold you.

So we in the Celestial Kingdom shall continue to accompany you on your journey and bring what assistance we can so that you may continue to grow, continue to learn how to truly love yourself and others. May your gifts continue to open and flourish my beloveds. May your souls continue to expand in Love and become ever brighter and clearer as God touches you over and over again with His Holy Spirit and brings you nearer to that great Fountainhead of Love. He has so much to give and you have so much to discover. It is a never-ending path, beloveds. Remember you are just beginning. You continue to learn how to be in the Love, to walk with God. Have compassion for yourselves and be eager to understand your true natures, the pulse of your souls, and to allow this to be a clearer and true expression of your life. In this all will fall into place, all will be in harmony, and God's Plan for you will come to fruition in wondrous and powerful ways. You are loved. You are loved.

God bless you, beloveds. I am your teacher Augustine. I am happy to comment upon your queries and enquiries as you continue to grow in the Love.

God bless you and keep you. God is with you. And I love you. God bless you.

Alec shares his frustrations with the first D. V. project

Spirit: Alec Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: June 12, 2017

So you have wanted to hear from your old friend, Alec? I will keep my comments short as you must now realize, Seretta Kem, who is indeed a powerful and very advanced soul, is in charge of your development at this time and of this project. I am with you. I have never left you. I continue to assist you in all of your struggles and advancements and situations in life because as you know we are bonded. I am your brother. I love you dearly. There are many angels who are in the background at this time who are very eager to assist and do so in many ways.

My ambition towards direct voice was a powerful motivator for me. I started my spiritual path through spiritualism and understood that physical manifestation was and still is one of the prime ways that those who have no spiritual inclinations may come to understand the power, the truth of the spirit world and the path that we all travel from the physical life to the spirit life. When I discovered Divine Love and grew in this Love, I wished to combine these two truths and ambitions into one, to bring the high teachers through and direct voice was my ambition.

The greatest flaw in this effort was that I carried this almost single handedly although I certainly had my assistants and those who prayed with me and shared my enthusiasm. We were not able to bring those gifts through because as a group we lacked the soul development to allow this power to manifest as we so desired. But you, my beloveds, those of you who have elected to come together indeed have a great deal of power, a great deal of Divine Love within your souls.

Continue to develop and have higher ambitions. These will in many ways ensure a quick and easy road yet there are a number of things that must be taken into consideration and a great deal of commitment made. I would suggest you listen to our dear brother Seretta Kem's messages carefully. Listen to them more than once. Take in the nuances. Consider what he is saying carefully. Continue to pray for the Divine Love. That is the key to all as you well know. Do not worry about the details. You know the path you must take, and you will take it willingly. Be strong, be loving to one another, be confident that you will have success, be at peace. Know that you come into this informed and will continue to be guided. Nothing will be left to chance, beloveds. You are well taken care of, in very good hands indeed. The Love will flow in everything.

God bless you. I am Alec. I am with you always. God bless you.

Seretta Kem gives instructions for preparation

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: June 12, 2017

Good morning, I am Seretta Kem. Yes, this instrument has experienced problems with his vision and knows these things will be corrected in time. It is an indication of a need to adjust certain aspects of the blood and to put limitations upon the physical exertion for he is no longer a young man, though not old, certainly not in his opinion (smiling). He is experiencing some limitations and he must respect these limitations and he must understand that there are solutions to these problems, physical imbalances and weaknesses. Certainly an overhaul of diet would be very beneficial. He

understands that his lack of physical exercise in the last little while has had its price upon his body. Exercise is also very important as it is with all of you.

We are pleased that you have read some articles about Direct Voice, informing you as to what the possibilities are and we will be utilising both ectoplasm and photoplasm in our efforts. Now, we would like you to continue studying and discussing these issues amongst yourselves and we are happy that the dear soul far away (H) is continuing to research these trails of information that are available and this instrument is correct in his assessment that the Divine Love in your souls will indeed accelerate the process and make much of it far easier than what is described by these articles. This is not to say that it is without challenges. Indeed, we have asked you and continue to remind you, that it is important to build up your physical, spiritual and emotional condition. Keep your thoughts on a higher plane. Focus your thoughts upon these goals that are coming. Do not entertain doubt or negativity towards us but positive thinking and positive reflections upon the goal of Direct Voice is beneficial. Prayer is necessary. Being in harmony will help you to reach closer to your goals. When you start to fall back into negative thinking and emotions of anger, judgments, say a prayer. Stop yourselves, for these old habits are but habits of mind and you have come to a level of maturity where you can control your thoughts, your emotions and redirect them in positive ways. If you have trouble, say a prayer, ask for help and help will be given.

As this instrument has perceived, there will be attempts to disrupt, forays of negativity impinging upon your feelings of good will and positivity and love, for the dark spirits do indeed work against you as they do upon all humanity. But remember, you have the help of the angels, you are protected and guided. It is only when you let negativity in, and those cracks appear and the darkness seeps in that it has any effect upon you. For you truly are not

vulnerable to these dark forces. You are only vulnerable to your old habits and reactions to those situations which invariably come up in life. So, this is where discipline and choice come into play. You must choose to love, choose to be somewhat detached from these situations; these dust clouds of negativity that drift into your life and into your mind.

When you choose something as sophisticated as Direct Voice, you have made a commitment to be more sophisticated within yourself, your thinking, your emotions and your way of being in the world. For each of you knows truth, understands the Laws of Divine Love and have experienced many, many aspects of this truth and applied them within your life. Again, it is merely a matter of choice, whether you will continue to apply and exert the power of the Truth and the power of Love within your life, for the power is there, it is all around you, it is within you and you breathe it my beloveds. You are in the flow of God's Love.

So, this time of preparation is also a time of testing yourself to see how long you can sustain a harmonious condition within yourself and to reinforce again and again your connection with your Creator, to be in the flow of His Love, to walk in the Light of His Love. Yes, this is a very big test, my beloveds. It's a test that you may fail again and again. But as you pick yourselves up and make that choice for Light those durations of periods of darkness become smaller and smaller until they disappear altogether. When you are confronted by a situation that would in the past cause reactivity within you that would be negative and you see that you are not affected, that you glide over this situation and feel love, compassion and you have a sense of wisdom and knowing how to bring harmony. This is a sure sign of your own progression and your choice for light.

The world has not changed, my beloveds, no, but you have changed. You will continue to change and shift in your thinking and your feelings and your doings and your capacity to love, your capacity to understand in a true and deep way,

to express true wisdom, to know what is truth and to discern what truth is. So, if you elect to carry this gift of Direct Voice into the world, all of these attributes, gifts and capacities must be at a higher level. You must be strong, in the light, discerning, journeying, steadfast in the truth and loving at all times. For you will encounter many challenges upon this road. You must be strong, forthright and unambiguous about the truth. For as you carry this lantern, this very bright and beautiful lantern, you must have the strength to hold your arm up high, to shine this light over great distances, to walk upon that path, guided by God and to not compromise. And within you, within your souls is all that you require to do this. Now comes a time when you must put aside those conditions of the mind that are counter-productive and in error and completely align yourself with truth, with God and with this great purpose.

There is often a great resistance within the souls of humanity to lay down these often cherished conditions that are not truly in harmony with love, to come back to innocence, to walk in this pure light, and to be strong, perceptive and humble. Yet with the Divine Love within your souls, beloveds, you have the strength that is required. Again it comes down to choice. How much am I going to allow myself to love, to choose light, and to let go of that which is not in harmony with these things?

God encourages you forward. You have an army of angels accompanying you upon this journey. Your souls have been touched deeply with the love. All of these things create a powerful light, a compelling path and yet the most powerful element of all is your free will, your choice. So, we must keep reminding you of this — that every moment is a choice. Every thought is a choice, my beloveds. Every breath is a breath in the light of God or in the world of man. For to be the instrument that you aspire to be, to bring these truths as you so desire to do, to walk in light and be an example of the truth requires a deep, a deep and abiding desire and

choice to do so. This desire is certainly harboured within your souls. It is bursting; the soul wants to come forth into your conscious, living self and into your life. There is nothing to hold this back. It will come in time, but that timing is predicated upon the level of your resistance, the level of your commitment, the level for yourself, for God and for Truth.

Take time to contemplate this, my beloveds, to honestly see where you stand in this challenge to be in the light. For you cannot move forward without a true and deep commitment, a passionate desire to do so.

May the flame within your soul be the flame of desire and passion within your conscious mind. May you walk in this truth, in alignment, in harmony, in a powerful light, a light blessed by God, a light that is generated by your own soul and a light that will bring change within your being outside of your being and spreading out into this world. May you be filled with the joy and the knowledge that you truly are a child of God and that you live the Truth of His Love. All else will fall into place as you grow in your acceptance of the Truth and your capacity to express the Truth, that your life may truly be a life lived in love and that you know what this means and what this is.

You are loved, my beloveds, you know love, you are love. Please be love in everything you do and everything you think, everything you are. Allow this love within your soul to infiltrate every part of your being that it may be expressed in all its power and glory, beauty and light, and so shall it be for God has blessed you and God shall continue to fill you up with love.

God bless you. I am Seretta Kem and thank you for listening. I will continue to bring guidance for you, to help you upon this journey in preparation. Remember, that though you think you have much time, you really do not. This time will go by very quickly and then you will be together. Glean as much light as you can. Gather the jewels of truth within you. Be prepared for much is coming, truly, you have no idea of

what is to come. Be in the love, my beloveds. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem and I love you and guide you. God bless you.

Always seek for the Highest Love

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Abbotsford, BC Date: June 14, 2017

I wish to remind you and to reinforce the idea and effort to pray for Divine Love always. I know your minds are directed upon this project of Direct Voice and I know this is indeed required of you to be vigilant and mindful and have your desires aligned towards this wondrous effort. But remember, my beloveds, it is the power of God's great Love, His Holy Essence that will bring about this gift in all its fullness. You may read many articles, research this phenomenon, and consider the possibilities of this gift. Remember, beloved souls, that these gifts were brought forward by spirits that did not have the soul development that even you possess at this time, nor did they have the celestial angels assisting them in this effort. Nor was this manifestation especially blessed by God. No, my beloveds, this was an effort by natural spirits and mortals to bring about a natural phenomenon to this world.

When one prays and develops their souls in the flow of God's Love it changes every gift, it brings about a new way, an opening, a manifestation that may have similarities to these natural phenomena but are different in many ways and as you already realize there is a higher goal, a more spiritual purpose to what you are about to embark upon. If this is to be of the highest then you must continue to pray and to redouble your efforts in prayer, to receive the Divine Love. Indeed, you may ask that God may develop the gift of Direct Voice within you and the earnestness of your prayers will

bring about a powerful catalyst for this development.

Do not underestimate the power of God's Love within you and the light that is generated amongst you as you in time will sit for this gift. Always predicate whatever you do with the desire of God's Love to flow into your souls. Do not allow these ambitions to cause you to digress from this primary focus and goal. For without this desire, this soul-felt longing, what you will develop will be merely a physical manifestation, a phenomenon which has been brought forth at other times by others in this world.

Is this your goal, my beloveds? No. Your goal is to bring the truth of God's Love to mankind and the very foundation of anything you do in this regard must be Love, Divine Love, the Highest Love. As your souls blossom in this Love, as you continue to receive more of this Blessing, as you make this an important part of your preparation, you will find that there will be changes within you. You will open the door for we in spirit to help prepare you, both physically and spiritually for this venture. Much will flow in the way of guidance and support, love and encouragement.

You must, through the enactment of the Laws of Attraction and Rapport and Communication, bring forth the highest, seek the highest and have a deep desire within you for the highest. It is that dedication that will bring forth the highest of all manifestations, the greatest of all gifts, the transformative power that comes with the Father's Love as it touches everything in your life and everything within you. Those gifts that you long to develop will be touched by love in a deep and profound way. You will see as you progress upon this particular path how important and crucial this grounding in Love is and how it is also important to be humble and not overly focused upon results in this effort. Instead, to have faith that all is guided by God, that you are merely enacting God's Will and in so doing expressing your own soul's desires and in so doing God manifesting gifts through you and about you in this world.

I am not suggesting that you are derailing yourself from the Divine Path. No, my beloveds, you are clearly upon this path. But it is important to realize the efforts that you make spiritually affect the efforts and the spirits that are around you, the end results. Do not put the cart before the horse, beloveds. Put your communion with God, the flow of His Love within you, as the very highest of aspirations and all else will follow in beautiful harmony.

Thank you for listening to me. You are blessed to have the beautiful spirit, the Celestial being of Seretta Kem by your side advising and teaching you in this regard and I will continue to come and supplement his teachings with my encouragement and love. Others will do so, as well, for we are all engaged as you are, as a group to bring about the highest and best results. It is important to realize what must come first and foremost in your lives. In this life, these material conditions it is so often easy to be distracted, to be waylaid to a degree. God always puts you back on the right course as long as you are open and willing to be guided and I see that you are and eagerly so. So, may you continue to walk this Divine Path in a straight and direct way that you may reach your goals swiftly, that your instrumentality may be effective, powerful, beautiful and that all will be touched by love.

God bless you, beloveds. I am your teacher, Augustine. I am ever by your side and I love you. God bless you.

"Be Joyful" advice from Goldie

Spirit: Goldie Medium: Al Fike

Location: Abbotsford, BC Date: June 14, 2017

Life is joy and beauty and love. Remember that. Please don't take yourselves too seriously. Be joyful and continue to

Direct Voice Volume 2

love and support one another and we will always be your friends, your helpers and we love you dearly.

I am Goldie. God bless you. Bless you, beloved souls. You are precious to our hearts. You give us joy. God bless you.

Diagnosis for Al

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Abbotsford, BC Date: June 14, 2017

It is Seretta Kem and I wish to give some guidance for this instrument regarding the condition that resulted with his vision. His exertion caused a very small clot to travel to his brain causing what you would call a hemorrhage, a small stroke in the area where the optic nerve enters into the brain system and this did indeed cause some visual effects within his vision. So, I would suggest that you concentrate your healing energies within this area behind the right eye, a quadrant around the temple. Indeed, these physical manifestations will disappear with time. Not a great deal of damage was done but indeed this instrument noticed a dramatic change in his vision, his sense of balance, and even some cognitive abilities.

These conditions of stroke are very serious indeed, and could have caused a great deal of damage if the clot was larger in scope. He must consider this, that moderate exercise and activity is important but excessive amounts, pushing oneself beyond one's normal limits can be dangerous. We will continue to provide healing and support physically for him and all of you as we have done in the past and certainly will do in the future. But each of you has the responsibility to play your part in maintaining your health, making those choices that are beneficial, eating those foods

that are beneficial to your body, and putting aside those cravings for those things that you know are not favourable towards your health and well-being.

Indeed, each day is a choice. Each day brings its own challenges. Even the body itself has physical cravings, desires that you may choose to listen to or not. When those desires and cravings are for foods that are good for you then I would encourage you to listen, but often they are not, they are the result of old habits and patterns of life. Mindless gratification is so common in this world as you have so many options. It is so easy to choose the wrong thing, no matter what arena in life this may be. For the world encourages you, it entices you and this does bring indeed a conflict for your soul and indeed your own body knows what is good yet you are such a victim of your mind, of all that information and ideas which are a part of your experience, the influences that you have grown up with, the ideas that are often of error or distorted that you were taught.

Indeed, to reach for the highest, to seek the enlightenment of your soul, all of these conditions, these thoughts, these matters of the mind need to be confronted with an awareness of how you interact with this mindful condition. Indeed, the awakening of the soul is the awakening of knowing how you are in the world in response to your mindful condition. This is challenging indeed, for on one hand there is the challenge of the expiation of the soul through Divine Love and on the other there is the challenge of dealing with many thoughts and energies within you. These are collected by your mind so thoroughly and with such dedication that needs to be transformed into truth and harmony.

As you progress upon this Divine path, you receive much help and assistance from the angels. Your soul knows the truth. The strength that comes from this, the power of the love within your soul, assists you in the transformation of your conscious self so that you are in harmony with God's

Direct Voice Volume 2

Laws of Harmony and Creation, both within your soul and within your mind. And this is required if you are to accomplish your goals, to be that pure channel of love in the world, to bring forth these beautiful gifts from your soul, to bring forth truth from your mind, to be in alignment and harmony with all.

Yes, the challenges are formidable but the power of God's Love is the greatest power in all the universe and it is indeed working upon you, changing you, uplifting you, healing you and bringing to your consciousness those parts of you that are in error so you continue to grow, so you will continue to be dedicated to this beautiful path unfolding of your soul in love. You begin to realize the possibilities of what you might do in this world to be a channel of God's Love in this world, of truth and love. So, we continue upon this path together. And my dear brother Augustine is so correct in his encouragement to place your connection and your prayers and your aspirations for God's Love first and foremost in your life. As you well know, "Seek ye the Kingdom and all will come to you."

This is simple. This is truth. This is the key that opens all the other doors. May you continue to walk through many of these doors and explore the wonderment that is your own soul and your soul's capacity to be in relationship with God and all is made possible with the flow of His Love. God bless you my beloveds. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem and I will continue to guide you and educate you and pray with you and be with you. God bless you.

Preparation for Direct Voice

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: June 17, 2017

It is Augustine here and indeed I wish to add my commentary to your discussions regarding your future project together. You have been implored many, many times to seek for the Highest, to seek to Love. You continue upon this journey of discovering and implementing what Love really is, both within yourself and within your life. You struggle with your judgments, your feelings of hurt, your vulnerabilities, the stress that builds within your life. These are the conditions that impinge upon you, at times very forcefully indeed. Yet God is always there to uplift you. You have a soul that is in the Light and exudes Light and Love.

So, your primary challenge is taming the impulses of your mind, your minds that tend to get lost in its thoughts and in those negative emotions that derive from these thoughts. Beloveds, you are in God's Hands and each of you will not be burdened by the need to engage in the material world in order to make a living and thus you have been selected, each one because you have this golden opportunity to sit together for an extended period of time for Direct Voice. This is a gift, this is a blessing and this has great potential.

We do not mean to put pressure upon any of you. We do not intend to make you walk a very strict line of behaviour. We do not intend to criticize, or condemn. No, my beloveds, as you have already said, each of you has a unique life and road to walk and challenges to confront. It is not we in spirit who will be insisting upon your efforts to confront these challenges. No, my beloveds, it is your own soul that compels you to release these conditions that are not of Love.

Your own soul compels you to not make your minds and the emotions related to these thoughts, the primary motivator in your life. So, as you confront these challenges and change the patterns of your behaviour and release those conditions and thoughts that burden you, you begin to love, you begin to allow love to dawn out the darkness. Just as the sun floods your world with light, so you allow the Light within your soul to flood your consciousness, you allow God to touch every part of your being, so that you may be on that road to liberation, that the pain that is so prevalent within your world not be so prevalent within your inner world.

Joy is possible and it is possible to be unassailed by the negative conditions and negative forces of this world. You would not be invited into this circle to bring about a very high and refined gift if we felt that you were incapable and not strong enough to choose Light over darkness, to choose joy over pain, to choose Love, to express Love, to bring Love into every part of your being.

How is this choice made? Not by we in spirit, but by you, as you know that this act of love and sacrifice is important, is a gift that you are given, not only to the world but to yourselves. It is saying, "I love myself enough. I see enough Light and beauty and gifts within myself that I am ready to step forward into the world with this gift that will open up a powerful channel of communication for Truth and Love and Light to this world." Like any attempt to bring Light there is also the onslaught of the dark forces and the darkness within yourself which confronts this. It tries to overwhelm the light, to bring feelings of pain and inadequacy, criticism, anger and, resentments and so much that is unnecessary and unwarranted, that does not exist except within your own minds.

Beloved souls, when you feel hurt by another it is rare that the intention originates from that individual; most often, these feelings of hurt originate within you. They arise out of some need to be loved and acknowledged. As long as you

continue to look to the outer world for this acknowledgement and love, you will continue to feel these feelings of pain. But if you give Love, if you continue to be in the flow of God's Love and allow that Love to wash over everyone and everything within your life, there is no room for this need from others, there is only Love. The Light penetrates the darkness, the Love flows because you are acknowledged and loved by God. I know this concept is difficult, you are human, you have your needs for love. You wish to feel a part of the great family of mankind. This is understandable. But what you are being asked with this Path of Love, the Divine Love, is to move in the world in a different way, to be nurtured by God, to put your needs to your Heavenly Father and to forge that path so clear and strong that God will meet all of your needs and in so doing, you will be a channel for others and you will show the way to this glorious, wondrous Path where Love reigns supreme, where there is no question of worthiness, there is no thought of inadequacy, there is no deep need to be loved for all of these needs are fulfilled in this one great relationship.

So, what is left in your relationship with others when God fills your needs so completely? There is joy. There is generosity of spirit. You are able to embrace all you meet. You have a sense of connection, my beloveds, and you give without feeling that you need something in return. This is a goal and this is possible.

When this gift of Direct Voice is developed many demands will be made upon you, my beloveds. There is much work to do. Many doors will be opened and opportunities offered to you. You must be ready and willing to serve in this way for we do not open these gifts merely for your own edification and gratification. No my beloveds, this is for the world and your participation in this outflowing and outpouring of Love and guidance is required and needs to be unencumbered by those expectations of the mind. This is soul work. This is where your souls will shine. This is where God

will use you as His mighty channels of Love. In this, you must listen to your guidance and enact your guidance.

So, in these times of preparation that are ahead of you, I would urge you to consider what I have said. It is important to recognize how the human condition within you affects your instrumentality and this commitment for the Divine Love. There is no room for pretension and there is a great need for honesty both amongst yourselves and within yourself. You must reconcile the desires of your soul with the needs of your mind and see that they are indeed different and this is challenging.

Remember, beloveds, you have free will. Every day is a choice, what thought you think, what morsel of food you put in your mouth, what time you spend in prayer, how you interact with those around you. All is a choice. You have been well educated as to what is in harmony with this flow of Love and so we are entreating you to choose wisely, to be loving in all things, to make that choice for light so that indeed the sun of God's Love may shine within every part of you and every part of your life. With this, all of these gifts will blossom and bear fruit. There will be no conflict. There will be harmony, joy and peace, the wisdom of your souls will flow forth, the Love of God will touch everything.

Yes, this is a great leap forward for you, a great challenge, a beautiful opportunity and God does not give you those challenges that are beyond your ability to embrace. No, my beloveds, you may bend but you will not break and through this experience you will grow tremendously. Beloved souls, you will find that precious and elusive balance between the mind and the soul and you will find harmony there, great harmony and joy. It is coming. We will help you as you choose to grow in Light. You will always have that help and upliftment and healing will abound. God will guide you. We are with you and you will continue to walk upon this great Path towards the Light of a thousand suns, the glory of the fountainhead of God's Love.

God bless you, my beloveds. I am Augustine. I continue to walk with you on this great journey of discovery, this wondrous path of Love. God bless you, beloveds, God bless you.

Answer to H's Questions

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: June 23, 2017

It is Seretta Kem here and you and the dear soul over the waters have invited me to answer some questions which I will attempt to do. As for the need for a cabinet and trumpets, this is a lower vibrational mechanism which we hope will not be needed in your efforts, but I must emphasize that preparation and soul condition and harmony amongst you will determine these factors. These mechanisms can be helpful but we are hopeful that they will not be needed. So, it is important that you continue in your prayers and efforts to bring light and harmony amongst you and within you, and that you focus on the highest always so that these material mechanisms are not necessary, and should not be necessary for the development of this gift.

The element of ectoplasm is contained within every cell of the human body. It is part of the life force, and when a body is in harmony and healthy, it affects the amount of ectoplasm within the body. Now for each one of you there is a requirement that is somewhat different in terms of diet and chemistry of the body. Some are more gifted with the amounts of ectoplasm within that body. This substance can be enhanced and nurtured so that there is more than what there normally would be. In some respects you will incubate ectoplasm within you given that you follow the guidance that you require in order to do so.

There are certain basic elements that are required within your physiology that will help to enhance the ectoplasmic content within each cell. For each body it is important that there is a high level of hydration in the body. I would suggest that each of you drink water on a regular basis and pure water, no liquid substitutions. I have already given this instrument some guidance regarding phosphorous. It is important to maintain a high level of phosphorous within the system. This, too, helps to incubate the levels of ectoplasm and how that phosphorous is obtained is your choice for there are many sources of this chemical.

A high level of **calcium** is also beneficial and that may be obtained by many different sources. You may take supplements if that is what is convenient for you. This instrument is surprised to understand that **chlorophyll** is important and would be difficult for me to explain why, for he does not have a background in chemistry but the nutrients that come from leafy green plants enhance the vitality of the cell which in turn enhances the vitality and the existence of ectoplasm. So do these three chemicals that I have mentioned in balance help to nurture the levels of ectoplasm.

Each of you is required to come forth into this group with optimal conditions on many different levels including your physical condition. Each of you intuitively knows what that means. When you indulge in the foods that are not beneficial to your body if you are in tune enough you realize this. I would suggest that you do not let the cravings of your mind dictate your diet. These cravings are the result of very ingrained habits which you have created primarily because of the cultural conditions where you live and the foods that are prevalent and popular within your culture. Many of these foods are not necessarily beneficial. They give pleasure to your taste buds but not necessarily nutrients to your body. Yes, I would suggest that you may eliminate the consumption of alcohol and if this is difficult, you may indeed imbibe in a very moderate way and modestly so. We do not wish to

restrict the pleasures of life so completely that you feel that you are imprisoned in a certain ideology of dietary thinking. No, this is not necessary but you have asked what will enhance your physiology, especially in regards to developing Direct Voice and we are all too happy to answer. If each of you pray about this and when you have food set before you and you go within and become aware of your own soul acknowledgement of what is beneficial, you will receive the answers that you require. You will be helped. Yes, I know it is difficult to break old habits and dare I say addictions to certain foods but think of the benefits, my beloveds, not only the benefits to your efforts to Direct Voice, but also benefits towards your health and well being. Each of you in this circle have your own individual challenges regarding your health and those things which are manifesting within your body. Think of this as an opportunity to correct some of these difficulties and at the other end of this sojourn you will find greater vitality and better health. Such benefits will come with these efforts and blessings.

As for the physiology regarding Direct Voice and the use of ectoplasm, this is a more complex matter but our dear and beloved instrument from across the way has some inklings as to what is involved and if she prays about this she will receive some guidance because she has the material knowledge that will guide her through the process of understanding. Remember, this physiology goes to the very basic cellular level. The vitality and chemistry of the cell is very important in this regard. So, each cell within your body must be optimally nourished and the energy patterns and meridians within the physical body need to be clear and flowing free, as well as the circulation and respiratory system. For a well functioning body will make it far easier for us to work with in the development of Direct Voice.

This is a physical manifestation. It requires the use of a body and bodies of the instruments involved. There is no way of circumventing this necessity, for ectoplasm is a physical

substance even though it is not readily perceived by the physical senses. Nonetheless, it exists and it becomes visible because of the manipulations that we in spirit perform and chemical operations which allow this substance to be seen in plain sight to those of you in this world. Our challenges in regards to this are many, partly to do with the age of the participants as there are many toxins and elements that impinge upon the free flow of nutrients and energy as well as the functioning of each metabolic and respiratory system within these bodies, but these can be overcome. The greatest factor regarding the success of these ventures is the amount of Divine Love that is present within your souls. This will overcome many obstacles presented by the physical body and we will work diligently to help repair and enhance your physiology. Already we have begun in this regard and we will continue for our desire and I'm sure your desire, is that you are in optimal health and a state of well-being.

The second most vital factor regarding your participation in this project is in regards to your desire. Have a deep desire and willingness to participate, be enthusiastic, joyful, open, and accepting. It is important to be loving towards one another and to allow God to work through you. His great Blessing will be upon each one carrying you forward upon this journey.

Resistance will kill this project. If you are at all resistant, my beloveds, you plant a seed that will grow and cause this beautiful, tender shoot to wither and die. This is why we encourage you to dedicate yourselves towards this. All of you must desire this and be willing to follow the prescriptions that will be given, such as I have spoken of today. We understand that this is quite unusual for Celestial Angels to prescribe and indicate what is required in such detail. This is exceptional and our desire is not to overwhelm you or overtake your free will, no my beloveds, but you have asked for instruction and we are providing such and of course, it is your choice to follow or not. But I am giving you

this warning, my beloveds, that if you cannot follow to the degree that you are able these simple instructions, then you are not ready to develop this gift, it cannot be successful without this prescribed formula for success.

We cannot expect you to understand the complexities and the power that is required to bring this gift at the highest level. If you had but a glimpse, you would feel overwhelmed by the responsibility of what is required. So a certain innocence is beneficial, my beloveds, a trusting and the exercising of your faith that all will fall into place as required as long as you listen and express the truth in this regard. We do not ask too much of you, my beloveds, but we must ask enough so that we may work in partnership and harmony. In this way what we offer from our side of life may be accepted and utilised from your side, because if we do not forge this powerful link between us on every level, it will not allow us to be successful in this venture. There are certain mechanisms that must be functional, that must work in order to allow the mechanism of Direct Voice to manifest.

Now, I will tell you this, my beloveds, that you can already manifest Direct Voice on a lower level. It is easily within your grasp. It would require very little on your part to do so. But this is not what we are aiming for, are we? We are aiming for a gift that will be utilised by God and the Angels to inform your brothers and sisters on this planet in ways that will be revelatory and powerful and truthful. For as times of change encroach upon you, there will be many opportunities for you to utilise this gift and bring guidance and truth forward.

The conditions of this world will be such that many will be in a state of bewilderment and will be hungering for answers. Though many of you may speak the truth in eloquent ways and give these answers through your own voice or as a channel and medium, this will not suffice for many, for they do not understand these mechanisms. They do not give credibility to your words for this will be a time of

great mistrust and worry and fear. But when the truth is manifested in such a powerful way and this will not only be through Direct Voice but through the manifestations of Spirit, of the beautiful souls within the Celestial World and some within the Spirit World. A great credibility will be given through these manifestations. Yes, you will speak with your own voice, and with the voice of angels, but in conjunction with this gift that will be given, attention will be focused upon you. Many souls will be opened to these truths and what is required to bring peace to your world and harmony.

So this is a magnificent project that requires a great deal of effort upon your part and upon every level of your being. We are happy that you are asking these questions and sincerely attempting to rectify imbalances within your physical body, to discipline your thoughts, and to continue to pray for God's Love and for the success of this project. It is always a matter of degree: the degree of your commitment, the degree of your understanding, the degree of your longing, the desire that you have to serve mankind. This varies day to day, does it not within your minds? You are easily distracted. You continue to manifest and nurture those emotions within you that are not in harmony with Love. You are human and all of these human dynamics are still present within your minds and within your life. Yet, we see that each day you continue to reach for something beyond this state and that now you have a goal to reach, beloveds. Is this not enough to help you to focus, to motivate you to change, to allow Love to shine in every part of your life and being?

So much awaits you, beloveds, a great work, a beautiful destiny. As you well know, what will come rests upon your decisions, your capacity to choose light over darkness, harmony over disharmony. You cannot fool yourselves. No, the time for extreme honesty is now, to acknowledge what stands in your way, what keeps you from harmony and light. I can assure you it is not your souls, for your souls, each one, burns bright in Love. No, my beloveds,

it is your material mind, that material reality that you nurture so well with your thoughts, your emotions, that reality that is now obsolete. Yet, in your heart of hearts, you cannot accept this and you are fearful of what this new reality looks like. You look all around you in your life, a life that you have built, a reality that you have built through your thoughts and actions. It is a great investment, I know. You have put much into it, and yet much of it has been built upon sand that will wash away soon. In these preparations you begin to build a new foundation upon the rock of Truth. You have been working on this for many years but now you must focus on this and live in the way that is in harmony with God's Love and be in harmony within yourselves. For there is little to gain by putting your faith within that which mankind has built for this is soon to crumble. You must build within yourself a solid foundation, unassailable by the darkness. This is not to say that you are going to live in this world in a way that is so detached that you cannot function here — no, my beloveds, certainly not. You will move in this world with much greater fluidity and ability on all levels. But your perceptions of the world, of reality, will be very different and this indeed can be challenging for you to be in this world but not of this world. Yet you have the support of the Angels and God's Hand upon you to guide you through.

As times become more challenging, you will need this strength. You will require a sense of detachment from all your material luxuries and benefits. Though you will be taken care of, you must accept that life will change. For God is sweeping over this Earth a great wave that will disrupt the conditions that mankind has built and bring about greater harmony and healing. For God does not wish the world to fall into ruin. God wishes for this world to be in light and harmony, to be a world that is predicated upon love, to be a world that will indeed supply the needs, the physical needs of mankind but not in this inharmonious and imbalanced way.

Mankind has much to learn and will be forced to learn,

beloveds, because they have chosen a difficult path; you have all chosen a difficult path and unfortunately this harshness will cause much grief for all of you. But you, beloveds, will bring the truth. You will be used to bring the truth and to help mankind rebuild, reorganize, shift their thinking and recognize their souls and the needs of their souls.

So within your soul you acknowledge this appointment by God to be His Messengers of Truth and God has guided your life in such a way that you have learned much. Your souls have grown in His Love. You have been nurtured deeply, educated thoroughly, shown the way. God has provided you with all that you require to teach this Truth. Now the time comes for you to acknowledge your soul's destiny, to realize that this is your choice from deep within, that you are meant to speak this Truth to the world. When you are equipped with such gifts as Direct Voice, with many manifestations all about you, with the power of God's Love flowing copiously through you, many, many souls will be drawn and much guidance will be given.

Much rests upon you, my beloveds. Do not worry or be fearful of this. Be joyful that you are given this opportunity for the rewards you will have when it is your time to pass into the world of Spirit will be many. In time your place within the Celestial Kingdom will be assured. In this short time upon this Earth, you will have made a great impact as a soul of light, a channel of Love, an instrument of God's Will.

I must reiterate that all is dependent upon your choices each day, what you are willing to give towards harmony, how you are willing to live in harmony and what you are willing to give up in the name of Truth and the acknowledgement of Love. It is your choice, beloveds, it cannot be anything but your choice. But I tell you, your souls have already chosen. It is time for your minds to accept the great desires of your soul. In that joyful acknowledgement, all else will flow and come into harmony. God will guide you so

and we love you and support you upon this journey of awakening and acknowledgement of the Truth.

God bless you, beloveds, I am Seretta Kem and I love you. God bless you.

Advice from the old sage

Spirit: Confucius Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: June 24, 2017

God bless you, beloved souls, I am Confucius. I have come to lend my love and blessings to you, my beloveds, as you gather together in your efforts to come close to God and to work together for your little venture in this world. I wish for you to know that I, too, am involved in this effort and I will help to bring healing and to mix chemicals, to tend to each one of you as you continue to bring more harmony to your physical bodies and your spirit and your soul. There are many who are attending to you, my beloveds, helping to uplift, to protect, to heal, to guide, to bring their love and light surrounding you.

It's important, my beloveds that you spend time each day in prayer and we know how easily it is to be distracted in this world, to forget about your intended routines and obligations. As you continue to pray and to be in alignment with God, you allow our ministrations to be more effective and powerful and this will build as you continue to be consistent and strong in your choices for light. Remember, my beloveds, wherever you are and whatever you are doing there is always a moment for prayer. There is always a time when you can reach out to the Heavenly Father and receive His Touch and Blessing within your soul.

You have been instructed to keep your minds elevated, your thoughts towards light, positivity and love.

This is very important. You cannot fulfill a high spiritual purpose if you are not in a spiritual condition that will facilitate these expressions of love. So you are being challenged, beloveds, you are being challenged to reach higher, to be in this great flow of Love with every moment, to be prayerful with every moment, that your life may be an expression of these Truths and this Love as you step forward in this world. Indeed much is expected of you, my beloveds, and this is because you have chosen a very important task, one that will have demands upon you, not only in preparation but in execution.

When this gift is accomplished I daresay that many things in your life will change for there will be further demands upon your time and your efforts and your focus. Many will want a demonstration of these gifts. Many will be eager to hear directly from the Angels and to see a manifestation of some sort brought through you. This will not just involve this instrument and his partner but all of you in this effort and this is not to say that your lives will be completely disrupted. No, my beloveds, but we will be calling upon you in harmony with the rhythm of your life and your commitments.

This is in many respects an effort that requires all of you to participate in fully and completely as you are able. No one is more important than another. No, my beloveds, you are all important and crucial to the success of this venture. It does not require for one to carry all but all to carry each other in this effort. Make a sincere effort to be one hundred percent, as you say, committed to your own preparation and to the support of one another in this time of preparation.

As you continue to give in love, so the Angels will be in full support of you and will give you what you require to fulfill your roles in this venture. All will unfold in harmony, my beloveds, as is meant to be by God's Will and Plan. Allow His Will to move through you in your life. Allow His Love to touch every aspect of your being and your life. Do not hide anything

away from yourself. Be honest, be forthright, step with courage and be bold, assured that you are walking within the flow of God. This is not a time to be timid or coy. No. This is a time that you declare yourselves to one another, to this great venture and to God. Whatever is on your mind, my beloveds, whatever fears you may have or concerns, whatever troubles you, my beloveds, speak, be heard, allow God to heal this that you may be released from any and all barriers that may inhibit your efforts together. For in this vulnerability is a great strength. In this release and openness, comes a powerful healing and a release. Thereby, you will allow a clear and beautiful expression of your soul in this world that is unencumbered by the machinations of your mind. Acknowledge those chains that bind you, my beloveds.

Feel free to express those things that you keep buried deep within you and whether you do so to God or to one another, you will find love and acceptance, you will be embraced and healed. For as you express your true soul's being there can be nothing but love and acceptance, a healing of the heart, an assuaging of those things within the mind that vex you, my beloveds. For peace must reign within you, each one, to be at peace and to have faith that you are completely embraced by God and will walk forward in this light, the power of His Love and Will carrying you into this world as His channels. You will speak for Truth, for Love. You will help to heal many and give to those who seek to have what you have. You will show the way and you will be used by we in spirit to point the way to Truth and harmony.

Be at peace, my beloveds, and know that we are with you always. Your efforts have stimulated a great interest in the Celestial Heavens and thus many blessings and support is given to our intrepid adventurers. May God bless everything and everyone, every effort you make and may you have the strength to overcome all that which is not in harmony. May your bodies be strong and in good health. May your spirits know peace and joy. May your souls shine in the Father's

Love and in this you will find the treasure trove that you seek to open and shall do so readily and in harmony with all.

God bless you, beloveds, I am Confucius. I bring my love, my love for you, my beloveds, and I embrace you all in this Light. God bless you. God bless you.

With the Development of this Gift, a new level of Communication will come

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: July 6, 2017

I see you continue to make your enquiries, to say your prayers and to attempt to change physical and mental habits. You are indeed working diligently towards your goals and we are happy to see these efforts made. This indeed makes us feel optimistic that we will accomplish our goals for Direct Voice for you have shown a deep commitment and a desire towards this project.

I commend the dear daughter from far away who continues to do her research, who desires to know many details about the physiology and about what will enhance and assist the development of this gift. You are all benefitting from her efforts and her prayers. This beautiful and sincere soul who continues to commit her life to God's Will, will overcome her physical difficulties. She has already made a great deal of progress towards this and by the time she comes to be here with you, she will have overcome many of these obstacles and her health will be good.

The other dear daughter who asks many questions of the dear Yogananda, I say to her, put your focus on developing this gift so you may ask these questions directly to him, manifesting in Direct Voice, so that he may give to you in detail many of these answers. This is going to be of great benefit; developing this gift where the Angels may respond to specific questions with specific information rather than utilising the information which is contained within the brain of a medium. They may be able to utilise the gifts that you all share, developing Direct Voice, and this will be a powerful gift giving much valuable information to the world.

We have spent many years teaching the truths of Divine Love, the truths of Spirit, the truths of God's Laws and much of this information is available to those who wish to research and read and pray. This portion of our work is extensive, though never complete. With the development of this gift comes a new level of communication that will bring forth not only spiritual truths but scientific understandings and information that will benefit mankind. There will be a wide spectrum of spirits and angels who will be utilising these gifts bringing to mankind greater enlightenment, more sophisticated knowledge and complex understandings of the workings of your material world and the spirit world. Much will be shared with the opening of this gift as those spirits in the higher realms of existence may come and speak and share their wisdom and knowledge and truth.

In this sharing in this great effort, much will be expected of each one of you who are involved. Indeed our suggestions as to diet and physical health have two purposes. One is to enhance the availability of ectoplasm within each cell of your body and the other is to create within you a stamina and strength so that you may travel this world bringing these truths to mankind. For as you are well aware, this gift is not to be hidden. It will not be cloistered in dark rooms. It will be in full view of humanity. These manifestations will vary in many ways, depending on what the need of the situation is at the time. You will be very busy and you will need to be very healthy in order to endure the demands that will be put upon you. For this gift alone is a demanding gift that requires that your body be performing at its optimal level. It requires that your mind is set upon higher

thoughts that your actions are within the light and harmony of God's Love and Laws. I know that you are reaching to attain this and this wonderful harmonious functioning of your being and we are assisting you in every way that we can to bring about this harmony.

Remember that prayer is the foundation for this effort. Seeking greater Divine Love within your soul will bring great results regarding this endeavour. Yes this is first and foremost my beloveds. Of course when your body is functioning properly you are able to travel to be with many other souls, to speak and engage in the world. This requires that you to do what you already know you must do. Each has their own unique set of challenges and responsibilities towards themselves and you all share responsibilities towards one another and towards this venture. You must seek harmony in all situations. Do not indulge in feeling regret, sadness, self-judgment, fear and all those things that are not in harmony with love. You are beyond this, my beloveds and it is only those old and tired patterns of the mind which exert their influence upon you, leaving open an avenue for negativity to spread within your being. When you are feeling hopeless, downtrodden, fearful and judgmental pick yourself up, say a prayer, ask God to help you and ask the Angels to come close to you.

Circumvent these conditions with a choice to bring greater light into your being. For each of you this is possible. When you have thoughts that are not positive and not helpful, stop and recognize these patterns and let this go. See that you are a beautiful being with a beautiful soul and know that you have flaws because you are human. This does not mean that you are a failure or incapable or not loved — no, my beloveds. It means that you continue to have a journey, a journey of healing, a journey of transformation, a journey of truly loving yourself and loving all those around you. Are you not in the beauty and light of God's Love? Have not your needs been met, my beloveds? Are you not walking the path

of Divine Love? Are you not receiving blessings daily, insights, support, healing and grace. How can you judge otherwise and to feel the joy of knowing that God has you within His Hands guiding, nurturing, protecting, showing you the way upon this path.

The only thing that will stop you from progressing is your own thoughts that you are unworthy or a failure or that you do not love yourself. Do not indulge in these thoughts, beloveds. For some of you, these are well ingrained within the patterns of your thinking and yet they are not relevant to your present condition. You are in the Light and your minds do not recognise this often. Often you cling to the security of old thoughts and patterns. Be strong, my beloveds. Know that you always have a choice and rather than entering that door of negativity, stop as you turn towards that direction and say, "No, this is not what I wish. This is not what God wishes for me. I want to be in the light. I will continue to be in the flow of His Love, His Grace. I will love myself and in loving myself I will give myself this gift to be free of the shackles that bind me, to walk in joy, to appreciate truly, to appreciate the beautiful being that I am. I will love myself."

Enter into prayer, beloveds, as much as you can. Be prayerful, be loving, be with God and may all that you do be a loving expression of the beauty within your souls. When you think of this great venture that we have embarked upon, think of how many, many souls in this world will benefit from your efforts. Part of the credibility that you must earn with those souls is the ability to love yourself, to be in that light as you shine forth with that light of love as Jesus did as he walked this earth. How can you not but draw many souls to you as God uses you as His channel of Love, as you accept and joyfully engage in this wondrous flow of blessings for others and for yourself. God wishes for you to have all good, all wonderment, an endless flow of Love. May you accept His invitation and walk in this Light for with each choice you continue to accept, to express and to be His child in the grace

of His Love.

God bless you, my beloveds. You are so loved, you are so precious to God and to His Angels and to many. I know you cannot truly fathom this but allow, allow yourself to accept that you are a precious gift in this world. You are beautiful. You are a wonderment of God's Creation and you are truly loved and never, ever alone. In this acknowledgement, in this recognition, you will glide through the preparation and the execution of this gift. Truly accept love. Truly accept your own beauty and all will fall into place as it should in harmony and grace. God bless you, I am Seretta Kem and I love you, my beautiful and precious charges. I love you dearly and will continue to support you. God bless you. God bless you.

Individual Guides for Direct Voice

Spirit: Matthew Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: July 9, 2017

I am Matthew and I am pleased you are together here this night with those others from across the seas in prayer and preparation for direct voice. I will be part of those working closely with you in this preparation and execution of this gift. I will be giving guidance as we progress forward, along with our beloved Serreta Kem. Now, a group of angels, a council of sorts, has been appointed to this group. I will give you the names for each beloved soul who is participating so that you can call upon these beautiful celestial beings for support and guidance as you continue to pray separately and together.

In this effort, as you know Serreta Kem is playing an important role in this effort and is also especially assigned to this instrument and will be bringing guidance and influence upon this channel. Our dear beloved daughter, J1, you have

Kea Atta Kem as your special advisor and she is very close to you as you indeed have a special rapport and connection. Beloved J2, you will have Martha with you, a blessing as this dear soul sat for direct voice in the flesh and now understands in very great detail what is required as she has progressed in spirit and is now a celestial angel. B, I will be with you as your guide and advisor. For our beloved H, there is Martin Luther who she is well familiar with. For G, it is Thomas Aquinas who is now a celestial angel. These guides have been specially selected in accordance to your needs and ability to communicate with these beautiful souls. We would suggest that you ask for their presence when you pray and be open to the guidance that will be given.

Each of you has the capacity to receive guidance from these angels who are assigned to you. They have set aside other work to make this rapport and accompaniment upon your journey, so that you are well tended to my beloveds. Your ability to communicate, to be open, to be inspired and impressed will continue to intensify. You will have increased sensitivity and you will feel the closeness of these beautiful angels surrounding you in their love and beautiful spirits. As you continue to prepare yourselves, so will this rapport get closer. You will continue to support one another and communicate with one another your impressions and your thoughts upon these matters concerning direct voice and your role within that great venture. I would suggest it is not necessary to know every detail concerning this gift. I know for some of you, your minds are curious and you wish to know every aspect. We will attempt to get to you those details you hunger for, but do not let it be a distraction from the greater purpose of prayer, of communicating with one another and sharing your thoughts and ideas, your concerns. You have now entered into a special relationship with one another; a very deep relationship, one that requires trust and honesty, love and commitment. With these elements in play you build a great light and a great capacity for we in spirit to

work with you. Do not hold back with one another in your love, in your honouring of one another and in your trust. Allow your feelings to flow. For each of you it is important that you have compassion for one another, that you truly understand that each does walk a unique path with a unique perspective. It is important to accept and lovingly acknowledge that each is a precious and beloved child of God and is your brother and sister.

You are committing yourselves to work together to bring a change in the world, a change that will shift the course of humanity and the evolution of humanity so that there may be more balance and light, harmony and peace in this world amongst all who live there on. To commit oneself to this task, this tremendous effort to bring crucial change, greater light and more love to this world you cannot be emotionally hobbled. You cannot harbour hidden fears and judgments about each other. You must release all conditions that inhibit the flow of love between you for you will need one another in the coming times, for strength, for wisdom, guidance, support and fellowship. You will be working closely together as you are guided to those places in this world where you are needed and used as God's Channels and Instruments to bring greater truth, and wisdom and light. The world as you well know is in desperate need of healing, of truth and of peace. These great inequities amongst humanity are not in harmony with God's Creation and His laws. You must be able to teach, to bring forth wisdom from your souls, to bring through guidance from God to speak the truth, to live this truth and to live amongst one another in love and harmony. This is your foundation beloved souls and upon this we shall build a beautiful spire of light and truth, love and wisdom.

In many ways you are so innocent beloved souls. You only see the small picture around you, your own world, but we all work for the entire world, for all of humanity and you must adopt this global perspective - this idea and truth that

you are connected with every other soul on this planet. You are a part of this great family of humanity and you have chosen to be a beacon of light in this world. You chose this before you were even incarnated. God has given you a purpose, a plan, the gifts and abilities to bring this forth in the world.

You must now accept your own beauty and purpose, that you are a precious soul. You must love yourselves as such and bring the light as fully as you possibly can into your being, yearning for God's Touch to your soul, being exemplary in every way, for this will not be difficult for you who have been well educated and well blessed. You have these beautiful souls around you, encouraging, protecting and guiding you. Yes, God has blessed you mightily my beloveds, but also God has invested a great deal of light within you to prepare you for these moments to come, this purpose to unfold in harmony and with power. You do have free will. Every step is a choice; every breath is a choice to follow the Will of God or to walk in your own purposeful and mindful ways of life. They are different.

To know God's Will you must know your own soul or alternatively to live as others do, you need but follow your mind's ambitions. It is a choice. You may say I do not know my soul well, but my beloved and beautiful precious children, you each possess a soul filled with light, bursting forth, a soul that you may easily and readily connect with and know intimately. You do so in your prayers, you feel this connection, this intimacy, this surety, that yes this is who I am. Because you are human you often fall back into the mindful conditions of the human condition. You walk back and forth between these two states of being, but as you continue to make this journey back and forth the path becomes well trod and your ability to be in the state of soul consciousness is more readily accessible. I would urge you to continue in your prayers, to pray often, to feel the yearnings that your souls possess, to express the desires of your souls

to be in rapport with God and open to the inflowing of His Love. This, above all else, will support you and guide you upon this great journey. This, above all else, is that great choice that you make with each breath. Walk with God my beloveds. Walk in the great flow of His Love as He carries you into places yet unknown, journeys unanticipated and awakenings that are both beautiful and awesome in their scope.

As you go deeper within your souls and as God awakens you more fully to who you truly are to walk this path with us beloved souls - we who have committed ourselves to bringing greater light to your journey, your awakening and your efforts because we love you beloveds. We are your special friends, your teachers. We are here to support and protect and guide. Utilize our company and our influence for your benefit. As you pray we will pray with you. As you live through each day we will walk with you. As you struggle, we will help to bring those barriers down and clear your path. Ours is a fulfilling task for we are joyful in our efforts and our desire to assist you in yours. We will know the glories of greater light, of bringing the truth to mankind, of walking a noble path, a path filled with purpose, meaning and great efforts in service for mankind. What more could you desire? What greater gifts can there be than this, to work in the flow of God's Love, to be an instrument of His Will, to exemplify the power of His Love and to teach of this gift?

You are truly blessed my beloved children. We are all blessed, for we are all touched by God. We will continue to journey together in this mighty effort. God bless you with every step, every breath, every prayer and every effort you make to bring greater light to this world. May God bless you mightily beloved souls and set you upon that path designated by God for each one of you. Thank you for listening to me. I shall come again and again to bring my guidance as will other teachers and those that support you in your venture, for we are all eager to support and love you beloved souls. May His

peace and great love envelope you always. God bless you. I am Matthew and I love you. God bless you.

Encouragement and Guidance - a Blueprint for Change

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: July 12, 2017

I am glad to see that you are all proactive in repairing your bodies, in enlivening your souls and bringing your thoughts into harmony, bringing light, the light of God's Love into your beings. This is what we have asked of you and you are indeed listening and making the efforts that are necessary. It is important that these things are done in balance. It is easy to focus on one thing and we have asked you to do several things. Remember, that you need not be intensively focused on one aspect but lightly focused upon all aspects. What I mean by this is each day brings a choice and when you establish a new routine, let's say a routine of thought, it takes application with each day but it does not require your full attention for there are many other things that need your attention. You have developed a prayer practice and routine, continue with this and you may intensify this if you need to. When you think of your diets it is not necessary to throw everything completely out of your old routines but to enhance that which you are already doing and eliminate those things that you know are not in harmony with your body.

This shift of behaviour need not be onerous and difficult. When done in the light and the joy of God's Will it should be easy, things should fall into place, awarenesses will come and decisions will be definite but not forced. You are learning how to live in harmony, my beloveds, how to seek

harmony and each day provides an opportunity to learn a little more, to be open, to absorb greater knowledge, to be aware, to know yourself, to realise that old habits that are not in harmony are easily let go of when you feel joy in your soul and a desire to do good for yourself and do good for God. As you pray for more of God's Love, so you have the strength and the insight to realise the components of what makes for harmony. This does not mean that you should do this and you should do that. No beloveds, it means there is an opportunity to see what works in the overall picture, what is in harmony with the composition of your life. God always allows you to choose, my beloveds. He does not force anything; you are given the gift of free will. I would suggest that you do not obsess about any of these aspects that have been discussed regarding your preparations, merely to consider, to pray and to adopt when you see and you feel this is the right time for such an action or behaviour.

God is gently easing you into a new reality, a new understanding. You are coming to this because your souls desire this. Your eyes are opening. Your minds are beginning to comprehend and you are doing so in harmony without judgment or condemnation of yourself or of others. Merely accept the flow of light of this new life that is coming within your consciousness, within your souls as God pours His healing and loving Touch within you. Rather than feeling you must surmount the barrier, instead you are feeling in the flow of this goodness, this goodness that brings renewed health, greater happiness, higher consciousness and greater love.

There will always be resistance towards you and some within you, my beloveds. As you battle the human condition, there will be those who come to you and will be derisive and judgmental, even angry, reflecting their own state of being. You must not let these conditions be absorbed by you or listen in a way that brings you confusion and hurt. No, my beloveds, allow God's Love to wash over you and within you.

Bring yourself to a place of peace, be patient with those who are impatient with you. Allow God to work His Love, His miracles in the world. You are a part of the flow of His Will and that Light will wash over all those you meet and in time will affect those who are resistant to you or angry and judgmental. Do not feed those fears but have faith that God is healing your brothers and sisters. God is bringing greater light. Yes, each of you has your flaws, those things which you must release, that error that resides within you, but you are on a journey of discovery and healing. As God's Love works within your souls you come to greater awareness, a clearer understanding, and an intuitive drawing to what is right and in harmony.

Yes, the natural love within you also is refined by the Divine Love as it works its transformational miracle within each one of you. This does not mean that you are associating with natural love spirits only, that you are diverted from the Divine Path. No, my beloveds, it merely means that your vision is opening to all aspects of who you are. The natural love part of yourself, your physical being, your emotions and all of those parts that are active in any human being are also being transformed and affected by God's Love and you must not resist this. There are some who are fearful of any mention of natural love upon this Divine Path. Even this instrument has been resistant for many years but is now coming to an understanding. I say this is good. This is in harmony. You are all solidly grounded and upon the Divine Path. It would take a great deal to divert you off of this path at this time in your spiritual development. Your souls have made this choice for Divine Love. Each of you is firmly committed to this course of spiritual awakening.

In this awakening comes an acceptance and understanding of all those parts of your being, an integration in love. There is no need to fracture, to put this aside and accept this and ignore that, for it is all part of you, my beloveds. You are readily embracing yourselves in this way

allowing all that is within you to be healed and brought into alignment with the great light within your souls. This does not mean you are compromising in any way. Indeed it means that you are grasping on all levels the wonderment that is God's Love and its influence upon you. Do not think that you are straying off this path, beloveds. No, you are renewing your commitment with each day, with each prayer, with each thought and action. If they are done in love, are you not living the truth of God's Love? So many may lay upon you and judge, even feel fear for you and I say be true to your own heart and be strong and prayerful. You will be guided and if you do indeed stray, you will be corrected for you will know within your heart that this is wrong. You have this ability now, beloveds, to know what is right for you, what your path entails and how you must walk forward. This is not a spirit telling you how to proceed. No, my beloveds, this is your own heart's knowing as you walk forward. Faith is very important, beloveds. Have faith in your Heavenly Father, have faith in your own self. To recognize the light that you carry within yourselves, the wisdom that is growing within, the understanding, the depth of the love that is burning within your soul. With faith you step forward, with faith you recognize with wisdom what is important and what you need to do to bring greater harmony within your lives.

Do not underestimate the power of your own beautiful souls to know how you will proceed, what is in harmony, what is truth, what adds to the love and what flows with the love. It is not so difficult and as your souls awaken it will be second nature to you my beloveds, it will just be a part of you and how you think, the decisions you make will be in harmony with love. These things are not difficult; they are not necessarily a struggle. What causes struggle is your own resistance to the true desires of your soul. When you cling on to those things within you that are not in harmony with love you cause pain for yourself. For many of you to release those things is painful, although even this is not necessary. When

there is a force acting opposite to the flow of healing and release and wholeness that force causes pain. It is your will, beloveds, that causes pain and there is a reaction as laws come into effect creating barriers, resistance. Remember this, beloveds, that when things are in harmony there is no pain, there is joy, there is a knowing that you are in harmony with God's Will. You are in harmony with His Laws when you are in the flow of His Love. You see, when you are in this flow all things fall into place, blessings abound and there is an ease of movement. Those around you are eager to support you and walk with you and many are drawn to this light when you walk in harmony in the flow of His Love - many are drawn. Yes, you will have those detractors who wish to criticize, to tear you down. This is the human condition, but you my beloveds are rising above this condition into the flow of God's Love, that mighty stream of light that will in time change this world. You are a part of this. You have accepted God's invitation to walk in light, to be a channel of His Love, to serve God.

My beloveds, always seek the Love of God, always seek at-onement with God and to be in this mighty flow of Love. As you continue to be more fully within this flow, in this love, as you continue to receive greater quantities within your soul, all of these small issues, all that would come to criticize or resist you or pull you away will fall to dust and will no longer be relevant. That which causes you pain today will no longer do so tomorrow as your souls strengthen in the Love, as your love strengthens for yourself and for your brothers and sisters. This is the power of love, this is the wonderment of love. Allow love to flow over everything, to be the prime motive, the greatest desire and the source of fulfilment that God's Love integrate into every part of your being and everything that you do. There will be harmony and there will be a great outpouring through you to many. This is God's desire for you and this is your own soul desire, your purpose, the beauty of your own soul.

Thank you, beloveds. Thank you for acting in love, for making that effort, for rising above. We are with you, we are with you and God's Hand is upon you, my beloveds. God bless you, God bless you, my beloveds. I am Seretta Kem and I love you.

You Are Jewels Beyond Price

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: July 16, 2017

I am Seretta Kem. Yes, you continue to adjust your metabolisms through your diets. This is good, beloved souls, this is good. We already see a difference within each one of you. There are more changes to come within your physical and there will be a beating of the light within your soul, like a heartbeat, bringing vibrancy and strength and light within all of you. Each will feel this somewhat differently but it is a gift that we will implant within each of your souls as you open and blossom. You continue to progress and your light grows and gifts will open, beloveds, gifts of perception. They already begin, you feel waves of insight and emotion, of understanding and knowing. This can only grow as you continue to progress. Seek the Love, seek to be in greater harmony.

Yes, you will find that there will be attacks from unexpected places. I wish for you to know, each one of you, who are a part of this circle of 7, that you are firmly within God's grasp. You are protected, you are accompanied at all times by the angels and you are in the light. It matters not the opinions of others. What matters is the opinion you have of yourself. The strength and power of the faith you carry as you listen to God's Will and walk in this light, the light of His Love. Each of you knows the path that you are on, certainly

within your souls. It is time for you to cast aside all doubts and know within your own being, the consciousness of your mind, who you truly are and where you are going and why. Why are you doing this, beloveds? Ask yourselves this question. Ask your soul, ask God. Why? Why do I walk upon this path? Why do I feel drawn to do what I do, to pray as I pray, to desire to serve as I so desire? The answers lie within your souls. The answers lie within the power of God's Love that draws you to live in this way and be in this loving harmony.

You continue to feel compelled at times to be drawn in to self criticism, to looking at yourself as if not measuring up to what is asked of you and what is truth. Beloveds, you live in this world and are human. You cannot expect to be an angel overnight. No, my beloveds. It takes time, it takes growth, it takes purifying of your souls, it takes growing of the light within you. It takes a great deal of prayer and longing to receive that deep and eternal blessing of His Love.

You have indeed taken many hours and hours of prayer, fervent prayer, and at times you feel as if you have not made any progress whatsoever. I tell you, beloved souls, if you could see the light within you, you would know that those hours were not wasted, those times of prayer have saved your souls from darkness. Now comes the time when you will recognize your own light and feel the joy of your own soul's progress in God's Love. This progression, as you well know, continues for all eternity. It is a never-ending journey into joy, into at-onement with God. You must have patience, my beloved friends, and tolerance for yourselves, acceptance and love and as this grows within you, you will feel greater tolerance, acceptance and love for those around you. As the inner judgments fade away, the outer will go with it and you will be free and joyful. When you touch another, the love will be felt by the beautiful soul you are touching. When you gaze upon the children, they will feel your love. When you walk with your companions, they will trust you. When you do

service, God will Touch each soul you are ministering to. This is the power of God's Love. This is the beauty of His Touch as it works and flows through you, as it changes you, changes your perceptions of the world, changes your understanding of life and enhances your capacity to love in every way. It is God's gift to you and all of humanity. It is the saving grace, it is the gentle touch, it is the peace that passes all understanding. It is God's greatest Gift. My beloved beautiful souls, you have received this Gift and now it is time to honour this Gift, to acknowledge it within you and to release all doubts, all that which inhibits your appreciation and understanding of the beautiful soul that you are. God wants you to feel the joy and acknowledgement of the beautiful soul that He created, a gift to the world, a gift to the universe, a jewel beyond price.

Be at peace, my beloveds and let the Father's Love permeate everything you are and everything you do and all else will follow in harmony. God bless you beloveds. I am Seretta Kem and I love you and we will finish our little talk today. Thank you. God bless you, beloveds. God bless you.

Guidance concerning your Guides

Spirits: Goldie and Keea Atta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: July 16, 2017

It is Goldie and I bring a surprise! Our dear and beloved M has the guide of Lotus Blossom helping her with her efforts for Direct Voice. I know she thinks of Gandhi often and he is with her often and he does indeed have a desire to work with all of you for Direct Voice and would Love to come forward in Direct Voice to the world. This is part of our plan but you must realize that those spirits that will be assisting you in your development of this gift are gifted in their own

right in certain ways. The chemistries that come with this special association that you all have in this group with these particular angels is important. Each one will give specific blessings and benefits to those who are developing for Direct Voice. So, the dear Lotus Blossom, who was involved in years past with this development, is eager again to take up the torch and will create a special rapport with the dear and beloved soul. So she is not left out. No, beloveds, never, but is gifted with this beautiful soul, this Lotus Blossom. There is special knowledge within this beautiful spirit of the energy flows within the body. She is a gifted healer and she has many other gifts that will assist our beloved friend as she continues to open and develop in her gifts and her contribution to this great effort.

(Keea speaks?) Each of you carries a unique gift that will contribute and add to your efforts for Direct Voice. As you continue to prepare in prayer for the Father's Love, in efforts to strengthen your body so that you are ready to nurture this gift and efforts to clear your spirit and your light so that you are not obstructing the flow of energies, the blessings that will come through each one of you. You will enhance this special gift that you bring. Think of it as you if carry a piece of a big circle and that piece must match all the other pieces and come together as a perfect circle. When the vibration and energy of this beautiful ring of light is perfected, there will be the great blessing of Direct Voice. Spirits will materialise in front of you, my beloveds. Voices will be heard. Guidance will be given. So you carry this gift within you.

As you continue to seek for the Light, to be in harmony with God and His great flow of Love and all aspects of your being vibrate together in loving harmony, so this component that you bring will vibrate and resonate with all the other components that you each bring, creating this perfect ring, this beautiful light, this portal to bring about the communication that we so desire to bring to this world. It will

come in ways that will not be suppressed or altered or filtered but clear and true, resonating with the Will of God, bringing valuable information to humanity, teaching a new way of being for all of humanity. You are all a part of God's Plan, beloveds, to bring healing and truth, love and peace to your troubled world.

Continue beloveds to work towards light, to bring yourselves up into that beautiful Light and Love and closeness to God and in harmony with the Laws of God and His Love. You will feel with each day a vibrancy, a joy, a knowing that you are indeed on the right path, heading in the right direction and fulfilling a deep purpose. Your souls already dance with joy with this and this will be a conscious feeling, the way you will feel in every part of your being, this joy and love and vibrancy. It will affect every cell in your being, every part and this will enhance your gifts and enhance the ring of light.

Continue to pray for the Father's Love, to long for this. Pray for it, beloveds. Ask God to fill your souls with His Great Love. Say those words and feel the power of those words, the longing within your soul as it lifts you up into that Light and closeness with God. As you drink the living waters and feel the soothing, joyful Love, flowing over you and into you. It is here now, beloveds. Drink deep, seek long, ask, open all will be given. God bless you. I am Keea. I am Keea Atta Kem.

Confidentiality Guidance

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: July 22, 2017

My beloved children, is it not fair for you to declare yourself to the world and your intentions? You have already done so, many of you have done so. There is no need to hide

away, to be secretive, to worry about the responses you will receive to your declarations. All of that is done in love will create light and for some a confrontation, for some for many, curiosity. Indeed I have talked about how others may project upon you their ideas and thoughts, their worries and their cares. As you walk in this world, indeed there is much error and unloving thinking and doing. This is part of the human condition. I understand how you would like to insulate yourself from these conditions, to create amongst your small circle a protective light, a sense of comfort and trust, of love.

Indeed, there are times when your silence is the best remedy for a situation. To know your own soul's discernment and judgment regarding how you will speak and behave is important. Each of these situations each day that comes upon your path is both a test and a blessing. Some of you are more open and trusting of others than some who are not. You who lack trust or are cautious must realize that when you declare yourselves as a channel of God's Love, when you walk in this world you are trusting in the flow of God's Love and Will in your life. What may come in response is not always to your liking or comfortable or positive. As long as you are in that flow of His Love, in that Light, is it not your desire to please God, to be in harmony with God's Laws, to indeed declare yourselves as you walk in this world as His channel? When others ask you "what are you doing, what is the focus of your life, and how are you going about this" it is your choice as to what you may say. God does not insist that you tell all or be open to all in terms of revealing your personal activities in life. No, my beloveds, you have private things and you have bits of information which bring light when you share them with others. It is your choice and the level of your own discernment as to how you may reveal these things, these drops of truth and information.

I know none of you wish to be hurtful towards others and yet you feel protective towards one another. I would say the more open you are about your efforts towards Direct Voice, it follows that you are more vulnerable to criticism and reaction from others. You are also more open to their loving support and approval. This is your choice, how you wish to proceed, how open you are. It is your choice. If indeed you are very sensitive to the judgement of others, I would suggest you be tight lipped regarding these efforts, for you will indeed receive criticism. Now will this criticism, will these thoughts from others affect your efforts? If you are all in harmony, if you speak with one voice, if you pray with one voice, if your desires are in synch with one another, negativity cannot penetrate this light, for you will have reached for God in this one voice and prayer, and you will receive the powerful blessings from your Creator that is impenetrable by the dark forces of this world. So, as we have always asked, you must reach above the conditions of this earth to the conditions of heaven, of the great Soul of your Heavenly Father and receive the bountiful blessings that He has to give to you. In this harmony and one voice, all will come that is required for you to be successful in this venture, to be successful in your life, to be a bright soul in this world. As you change and are changed by this great blessing of His Love, all the words from all the people are not so significant, and cannot damage or hurt your soul knowing that what you stand for, what you declare in your life, who you are and what you do is in the flow of God's Will, and not in compliance to the will of others.

Yes, it creates a detachment, a distance from some in your life because it is so different from their lives, so difficult for them to understand, to relate to your way. Indeed, this is the common condition amongst those of you who follow the Truths of the Father's Love. You do not truly feel a part of the flow of humanity; it separates you and often brings you sadness or a sense that you are not accepted, that you are different.

But, my beloveds, this does not mean that you cannot love others, that you cannot show love and connect, reach

out to your brothers and sisters in the world. By all means, do so, be a channel of love in the world. Some will be threatened by you because they feel that difference. They are sensitive to the light around you and yet some may even feel anger and reaction. Are you not seeing that in your life, many are attracted, desire what you have, are making great efforts to support you and to be with you in this great truth of Divine Love. Would you say to them that "you are unworthy of knowing who I am, you are unworthy of my efforts, you are unworthy to know what is truly important to me?" No, my beloveds, there is none amongst you who would push away those who are drawn in love. Yet, as it's a challenge of any and all mortals to communicate these deep, meaningful aspects of your life in a way that is acceptable and relatable to the others is a challenge, it is a test. You are facing a test at this moment, who will I reveal my actions to in these efforts for Direct Voice? How will I reveal these things? Who will I draw into my circle of influence? Because I wish for them to know what I have declared in my life has to be important and will take my energies and efforts and focus. Again, I reiterate, it is your choice and it is your challenge.

You may indeed wish to be exclusive, to withdraw, to be closed to revealing these parts of yourself. This does indeed make life easier, less complicated, sidestepping these challenges, these tests. I would say that if this is your choice, it does not hamper your efforts. But I will caution you that others already are speaking of you. You have not remained hidden, my beloveds. You see, when you walk in light, when you make efforts as you have done to follow the guidance that God has given you, express yourselves in the wider community of those who seek the Father's Love, and within your lives declaring yourselves in this way, you garner the attention, the focus of many. You may naively walk through life assuming that this focus is not present; but it is, my beloveds, and it is this attention that God uses to forge a channel of Love, a sphere of influence as a channel of His Will

and blessings for others. You are being used in this way and many different ways, many different levels, to influence the world, my beloveds, conditions of this world, creating a beachhead of light in the darkness. I know this is difficult for you to understand in all its complexities, but it is true. God is using you in every moment of every day. Much of this you are not aware of, yet it is true. Many of you who are sensitive prefer the quiet life, to sidestep the complexities of the human condition and the interactions that come from this. You want to be with God and in this peace and love and this is understandable. But God has different ideas, plans for you, each one of you, my beloveds, and you must be strong to be able to step forward into the world with a strong sense of yourself, your relationship with your Creator, your soul and your purpose. As this strengthens within you, as you remove those doubts, step away from those places that trip you up and inhibit you, and walk more fully in the light and harmony and peace, joy. When someone utters words of rejection or anger, suspicion, jealousy, they will fall away. You have that expression "like water off a duck's back." Indeed, this is how it will be, they will not touch you because you will know who you are, you will know that God is guiding you, you will feel the power of this great flow of Light, purpose, direction. All else that is not in harmony with this will fall away from you or at least you will not feel that influence pushing you hither and yon. No, my beloveds, you will walk that straight path, that great purposeful loving path lit by God, accompanied by the angels, walking in this joyful expression of Truth.

When you encounter complications there will be those who will assist you in pushing aside those barriers, and there will be those who will join you in these great efforts. God does indeed have a plan, which will move you forward. Put your worries aside, my beloveds. In many ways these worries are a reflection of your own reticence to acknowledge within yourself this migration from that human side of you to the divine, to the soul. You see reflected in others your own

fears, your own willful desires to hold on as you continue to have one foot anchored in the human condition and one foot within the divine, in the soul consciousness and God. Each and every mortal and spirit must struggle with this. It is universal for those who wish to enter upon the Divine Path, to struggle with these two elements within you, one very much weighed down by the conditions of the world and one liberated by the conditions of Love. You lament, you worry, you pray, you plead with God to release you from these conditions for you do indeed see the difference and this, my beloveds, has brought you further than many upon this world. To be able to discern between the two is a powerful step in your soul's progression. Have faith, my beloveds, that you will indeed have both feet within the consciousness of God. Some are further along in this than others yet you all struggle, you all worry. Even our beloved Master worried and struggled with this when he walked this earth. So, my beloveds, you are not alone. We indeed have compassion and understanding of your struggles for we too struggled in this way as did all who walked this earth, longing for the bliss of heaven yet feeling the leaded feet of earth.

I tell you, beloved souls, prayer is the key, is the answer to your dilemma, prayer and more prayer, asking God to pour His Love within your soul. It is the key to all. Beloved souls, may you continue to walk this path of Love, to serve God in whatever capacity you are able, to progress so that your capacities may strengthen and deepen in Love, that you may embrace all without fear of rejection, without fear of what they think about you, but to walk knowing who you truly are and what you truly represent, which is the power of Love, the glory of Divine Love, the beauty of a soul shining in Love, the wisdom, the knowledge that comes with this, the joy that is inevitable and pervasive when a soul is liberated in Love. You are coming to that place, beloved souls. The angels working with you feel the joy of anticipation of embracing another soul as part of this great family of God's children in

Love who continue to migrate ever closer to that place.

Yes, it is not easy, it is challenging but you do also reap the rewards, you feel a joy within your souls, you walk a lighted path, protected, guided, blessed, educated, nurtured and supported in Love. So even though you harbor your fears, you are afraid that you will be further rejected by those around you because of these differences and this focus that you have taken in your lives. But I tell you it is inevitable that you will change and that others will acknowledge and recognize this change within you and in your life. It is the power of God's Love healing your souls and bringing you into harmony so no matter how secretive you may try to be, you will not be successful for your light shines for all to see, for all those who wish to see. You will find rejection in this at times, but more often you will find those whose souls are injured but long for healing, whose souls have the spark of desire for the Father's Love to come to you and ask "what is it that I feel within me, this longing, what is it?" And you will answer, "it is God calling you, bringing forth His Love, asking you to accept His gift." This is what this is all about, my children, answering that call, bringing this knowledge forth into the world. It will be done in many different ways as you well know. You have committed to bringing forth this Direct Voice gift to add yet another aspect of communication of answering that deep question and longing within so many souls, of lifting up the lost souls in this world. So, indeed, there will be a time when you must declare yourselves; you will not hide away. That time will be different for each one of you, my beloveds. It is it not for you to say to another, do not declare yourself at this time. No, my beloveds, it is an individual choice. You may feel that that choice of another may influence you in derogatory ways. I say this is not true, this is not correct. For each soul must stand up in their own time and their own way and declare themselves to the world. I do not say that they must declare I am preparing for this gift. This is not what I mean. But they must say I am with God, I

declare myself as a channel of God's Love and Truth. I am doing everything that I am able to bring forth this Light and Truth to the world. God bless them, each one, who makes this effort.

So, my beloveds, I have spoken enough. God bless you, beloved souls. I am Seretta Kem. Good night.

May your souls shine with the Father's Love

Spirit: Jesus Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: July 30, 2017

May the Grace of God be with you, my beloveds...

Wherever you walk, may His Light shine upon your path. When you speak, may the Light of Truth pass through your lips. May your souls shine with the Father's Love, that that Love may flow in great abundance and that this blessing of Love may be a constant inflowing into your souls, beloveds. May you be used to bless many others as you have been blessed. May those blessings flow forth from you — lights touching lights, lights bringing comfort to the darkness in this world.

Blessed are the peace makers, blessed are the light keepers, blessed are those who seek Truth above all else. You are blessed, beloveds, you are blessed in Light.

God bless you. I am Jesus.

God will guide you to the parched lands of the world

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: July 30, 2017

I once again come upon the appointed hour to give guidance. I was with you as you prayed together in this group of hungering souls. Many were touched and many received the blessing of the Father's Love. I tell you there were many more spirits who were present during your prayers and discussions who were influenced and blessed than there were mortals who sat in the circle.

I wish to commend the dear daughter who taught her wisdom, who indeed is learning to be a channel of Truth, receiving inspiration and expressing such to those who were listening. As you continue to strengthen in your efforts, you will be teaching many other souls in many different places in this world. You will be bringing your gifts forward, bringing the great power of God's Love into everything that you do for the benefit of mankind.

Yes, indeed, mortals hunger for Truth within their souls, yet so many are distracted by the pursuits of the material. They do not know that they hunger; they do not know that there is that deep well within them that is dry and parched but yearns to be filled to overflowing. This, my beloveds, is your task. To inspire those who cross your path so that they may recognize this great thirst for Truth and Love, God will guide you and bring you to many places where you may speak your truth and use your gifts. You will continue to prepare for this wondrous journey of service. You will continue to climb to loftier heights of awareness. You will continue to increase the capacities of your souls for Love and to be a channel of God's Love in this world that is so parched.

It is God's desire that all the parched lands of this world may be flooded with Love, that all the ignorance, the error, the strife, the darkness may be washed away with Love. Who will He call upon, my beloveds, to open the floodgates and to stand up and say: "May these living waters flood your souls."

Open, beloved souls, open to this grace that is washing, purifying and healing. That is your love, the Father's Love, to stand up and declare that the time has come for the great flood of Love to arrive, this healing Love, the Love that shall wash away and cleanse this world of the darkness that brings parched earth, sadness, desperation, deprivation and such a lack of Love.

You have come together in your circle of Light in joy and celebration of Love, seeing how this will uplift and bring inspiration to strengthen and to heal. So your circles will grow wider and wider, and your influence of Light will grow stronger and stronger as God guides you, as God directs you into the parched lands of this world. You will demonstrate and teach, you will walk in Light and Love, you will inspire, you will bring the bell toll that awakens the souls.

Continue in your efforts beloveds; continue to seek for the highest, to walk in Light, to not compromise in darkness, to be true to your own soul's desires and the Will of God. We will continue to walk with you as you travel the earth and bring the waters that will bring new life to the lands, to the many souls who thirst so for Truth.

A great work lies ahead, my beloveds, a great work that shall transform this earth. All those who are willing to walk in the name of Love and Truth, peace and harmony, will walk into these lands trumpeting the arrival of Love. Blessed souls, you are so needed. God is preparing you. God is uplifting you. God is whispering into your souls what you need to know. God is with you always.

God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. I am with you as you continue to prepare for your work and your travels. God bless you.

Progressing the soul and detecting changes

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Helge Mercker

Location: Swakopmund, Namibia

Date: August 2, 2017

Good morning my dear, it is Augustine, your teacher. Yes, I greet you on this early morning hour and I am happy to join you in your prayer, my beloved student, my eager student. Yes, you are surrounded with your guides and your angels that accompany you on your daily ways, and tasks and prayers and I am happy to speak to you on this morning. I am happy to be with you as you bring me joy and I love you.

In the progression of the soul much relies upon the willingness of the soul, of the individual, to embrace the soul and to embrace the new awakenings within. It is very much the degree of this embracing of the new found ways and transitions within. In many cases there is a detection of something that has changed but not a complete awareness of what it might be. Thus, through prayers, through meditation, through experimenting and experiencing it slowly reveals to oneself what it is that has changed, what lies within, deep within oneself and the joy that comes with it in the recognition of having advanced in the adventure of discovering oneself. You are in a way entering different experiences and appreciations of what lies within you and we have advised your group over and over again to dive deep into your souls. There is a reason for that and yet there is not a clear understanding really or a struggle of sorts and that is understandable as thoughts and the daily attitudes and works of a human life distracts oneself so easily from these discoveries. It is a great effort and dedication that is required to strengthen that connection to the depths, to ever go there, to be connected to these deeper senses of being. These enlightened kind of discoveries that bring forth a sense

of a universalness- a sense of connectedness with more than just the material that surrounds you - from the information that is stored within you. It is a blossoming, a growing, an advancing and knowing, a sense of awareness that is deep within.

Each one of you is discovering these beautiful gifts within you, each one in their own way. Each one is being caught by surprise in a sense and that is the joy of ones' journey, these sudden, unexpected discoveries of oneself. I am joyed to accompany you all, to be your teacher, to assist you, teaching you, showing you how to get to these advancements within, these connections in a deeper sense to oneself, to God our Creator. We are all so blessed with this gracious gift of His Love that assists in this advancement, in this discovery of oneself. That is the true facilitator. That is the key and it cannot be emphasized enough to make use of this key, to go into prayer, deep, deep longing prayers, a union with God as you have used the word "union" or atonement. That state of grace, that state of complete surrender in a way, of harmonized at-onement with our Creator, to practice that throughout the day, or put aside some time like you do now. It is a great effort as you are focused and withdraw from the daily tasks and demands and so as you withdraw into your little prayer room you can easily connect to God, and to us. That is good as it gives you a good foundation. Throughout the day there are moments when you pray and when you connect with God but they are brief and intermittent. So it is good to have a routine, a fixed routine like you have embarked upon now. It will benefit also your growth in the preparation for Direct Voice and the preparation for further manifestations. It will be most advantageous to bring the centredness, the harmony within and without. To have released all doubts and questions, to have released all burdens - often they are self-imposed, like responsibility, like other self-imposed restrictions and burdens, they don't need to be there. Our beloved brother

James has given you a beautiful lecture on advancing oneself in this surrender. It was Luther who mentioned to totally trust God and this matter of trust cannot be overemphasized. I wish to reiterate that trusting God, trusting this love relationship, trusting this deep bond will open many doors, will help in the fulfilling what you are praying for.

Trust God, trust yourself, trust what is within you as these words have been spoken to you before and it is a matter of daily practice. The mind has the tendency of questioning, of doubting, of reasoning - that is the gift of the mind. But the true knowing, trusting and bonding is from the soul as you know. It needs to be activated. It needs to be practised. It needs to be used daily, every moment. It's not something that you just think about and pray about during your hours of prayer. No, this trusting bond, this love bond is something to be felt throughout the day in all the tasks you do. Trusting God, trusting in the development of the day, trusting in the manifestation of Direct Voice. Just flow and trust God. It is actually so easy, yet we feel we have to bring something to the table, we have to do this or that and yes, to a certain extent we do need to do and commit ourselves, but we also voluntarily try to take on things that are not necessary. We try to bend it and make it how we understand it should be. Trust God. God knows. God has a plan and we are all part of this plan. So are you, my dear charge, so are you. Pray for a greater understanding, for a greater desire in participating, for a greater commitment, for a greater trust in yourself, your gifts, your contribution. It will be revealed in time as you have experienced in small bits and pieces and that is the beauty: One petal at a time as the flower will blossom, it will come to its full bloom. It needs time and as the sun rays beam from the flower so God's Love touches you bringing warmth and light.

My dear child, I love you. It is Augustine and I greet you for this day and I thank you for letting me speak. Be blessed my dear child. God bless you mightily. We love you

and we walk with you. You are never alone. We walk with you. God bless you.

The advancing of the soul

Spirit: Jesus

Medium: Helge Mercker

Location: Swakopmund, Namibia

Date: August 5, 2017

I have come, I am here, yes it is Jesus. You have felt my promptings and I am glad that you have prayed in earnestness and you feel my nearness. I have come to talk to you about the Father's Love and the power it brings to each soul and the advancing of the soul in its progression to ever greater nearness to the Father. This is the ever coming closer to the state of being born anew into the divinity of His Love. And each prayer that comes with a sincere soul longings for this Love is an inching ever closer to that great moment of a new being, of a new reality. Each person experiences it in a different way, in a different awareness and acknowledgement. For most it is incremental. It is a journey, it is a process.

I am delighted at the bond of your friends and of your group who wish to advance in their development, and in their commitment in serving God's mighty plan for the Salvation of mankind. Each and everyone is, to their best abilities, adjusting their lives to come into greater harmony with this service. And it brings us joy and delight whenever there is a soul who has received God's Love and that Love is calling them forward into acknowledgement of their calling, of each movement of their soul towards God.

It is with joy that we anticipate your group will come together to spend days in prayer and harmony together in the anticipation of the gift that has been granted. And as each individual is preparing themselves, each in their own

way, so do we in the Celestial Heavens prepare ourselves for the facilitation of this great project. It is not a small task. It engages many on many different levels and thus we rely very much on you all for it to come about. So we very much rely on your desire for this gift, on your prayers and your degree of harmony, your commitment and dedication to this. Each of you feels a different approach towards this and that is understandable as each of you brings your own intentions and desires and perceptions. Yet, the common goal is for all of us to unite in a big, big undertaking. This undertaking will not only come to fruition once the manifestations have been established – as the true work begins afterwards – in bringing it to many, in demonstrating it to different corners of the world, as you will be guided. As each one of you will come to the clear understanding of your purpose. As each of you advance on your soul's progression and understanding, embracing the fulfilling of your soul to a greater extent and what it is that your part is in this. And I think the immensity and the understanding will be coming to a greater awareness or perception once you are together and once we are able to advance with this project.

For now it is to not have expectations, only a commitment. And to not brush away the seriousness of this, but to be really centred, focused, attuned with the gravity of this undertaking. With the immense work that has been put into it, the dedication and respect that this gift demands – I know these words sound rather harsh but it is the truth. It is a great work for all of us. And it is of great purpose and the intention is to manifest God's plan for the Salvation of all his children.

And we are thankful for all of you who dedicate yourselves to this, for all of you who have a willingness to come together, to participate and make yourselves available. Yes, we do understand there are many things tugging at your being, wanting for you to be committed to other issues in your lives, to other commitments and works and obligations

that you perceive are important in your life. But consider going into prayer and talking to God, our Father — what He desires — what He wishes for you. And in that communion and that asking and discussing, in this close bond with your Father in Heaven, your soul will bring the answers forward. And in your times of prayers the convictions of your soul knowing will influence your being, will influence your actions and your decisions. And thus we hope and wish that you commit as often as you can to enter that state of communion with God. Whatever time, whatever moment you feel you are able to be close to our Heavenly Father.

We are longing for the manifestation of all that is planned and we ask of you to commit yourselves to prayers. To ask your questions and reveal your inner issues, your inner feelings, your uncertainties and your desire for clarity – your desire for guidance. You need to express these things for us to enter into your presence and give you the help and clarity and explanations that you desire. Greater insight will relieve you from errors through ignorance or confusion and a greater clarity of expression, a greater clarity of purpose will come to you in time. Each prayer with each desire of deep soul longings to our Heavenly Father and being in the flow of this Love and with the desire to be in the service of our Father's Will, will help you.

Stride forward with a steadfastness and a knowing that is convincing to others that is of certainty – and brings the beacon of light which is radiating with Love. People are drawn to seeking comfort and the calling for certainty in times of great chaos, tribulations, pain and suffering.

Your preparations are in small steps and with each prayer you grow within. With each conversation and communion with our Heavenly Father you reach greater depths within you and a closeness with ever growing and trusting and becoming reliant upon our Father's guidance. Ever trusting the way forward, ever trusting the unfolding of His plan – even if it doesn't make any sense to your concepts

of understanding – faith and trust in our Father will let you move forward with a knowing that you stand in Truth, in Love.

So, my dear daughter and sister in our Father's Love, we are guiding you all. We very much need your help in the fulfilling of this undertaking in the bigger plan. We thank you for your efforts and desires. May our Father bless you mightily for your commitment. We thank you and we greet you this afternoon. It is Jesus. I am the Master of the Celestial Heavens and I am your brother and your friend and I am guiding you along your path. I love you and I wish you a good afternoon

When the Saints Come Marching In

Spirit: Goldie (in a sing song voice)

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC
Date: August 6, 2017

Oh, when the saints come marching in and they come through that door, filling the room, marching in the circle of light and love for all to see. Oh won't you be pleased beloveds, if you are a part of this miracle? Goldie loves you and we are all part of this miracle. God bless you beloveds. I love you.

Jesus confirms he intends to materialize

Spirit: Jesus Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: August 6, 2017

I have spoken through our beloved daughter in those

far off lands and now I have come to speak to you about your efforts for Direct Voice. Indeed it was me who spoke upon the pedestal in the church and I was able to do so because of the conditions within that place and because of the fervent prayers of this instrument and his beloved mate to bring light and love to their efforts and to bring the truth of Divine Love to those who came. Beloved souls, it is that fervency and desire, that effort made that allowed my coming to that place. It is the fervency of your prayers and desire for success for the Direct Voice that will allow me to materialize to those who I am speaking to. It requires your focus, your deep prayers, your love and your desire to bring light to this world. Indeed, the conditions were powerful enough within that church that if you were prepared as you will be in the future, this could have happened, this manifestation.

I am confident that in future times there will be a manifestation to some degree as you speak and pray in this place. Within the souls of those who attended and those who are connected to this church, they feel that something is coming, something very precious is coming, a blessing. Thus, they are drawn to the light that is building within this place. So you together with your cohorts also feel the compelling desire and anticipation of what is to come. For you know within your souls a powerful blessing is coming, a blessing that you will share amongst you, a blessing that will change your lives, a blessing that will give much hope and joy to those who will share in this, who will witness this and who will see with their own eyes the power of Love.

Beloved souls pray more fervently for the blessing of the Father's Love. Utilise your days in prayer and longing. Focus your thoughts upon what can be amongst you in love and harmony as God touches each of you deeply and God blesses you collectively in your efforts to fulfil this task, a task which I have already spoken of that is part of the plan for the salvation of mankind. We in the Celestial spheres pray for your success. We accompany you with every moment. We

encourage you and guide you. As the flow of God's Will manifests in this little circle and in the events that will unfold in harmony and joy, in power and love and in peace and hope. For do you not agree that what mankind desperately needs at this time is hope for their own souls' redemption and to bring greater harmony within the hearts of many, to show and to lift up the eyes and hearts of humanity towards God. To say this is where the solutions lie, not within your minds and those parts of you that wilfully tries to create solutions for the problems you have created in the world. For yes many problems may be solved with your mind but without the foundation of love within your souls or a desire for light, your problems will multiply. For these solutions are built upon the sands of mankind's ambitions rather than the rock of God's Laws of Creation.

Without a soulful understanding of these Laws, and without a desire to create good for all of mankind for this world, and without a desire to live your lives as a tribute to God's Love and His Creation by each one of you, your efforts will fall to dust. For each in this world is deluded and is not able to see through these illusions. You all live in error, beloved souls, to some degree. But in this great effort to bring Truth, to inspire mankind to lift itself above the conditions it has created over many thousands of years, you will find great purpose, a great purpose. You will step into that great river of God's Will in love more fully and the deeper you go, the swifter the current, the more powerful is this compelling force. It will carry you and bring you to many places in this world and bring you to many places within your own self so that you will be able to understand your true purpose. You will be able to discern the Will of God and you will be able to teach in powerful ways the Truth of Love. Yes, there will be manifestations, healings, a wonderful, joyous resonance amongst those you talk to and inspire. There will be those who will join you, beloved souls, and those whose souls will flower in this love, given time, given more Love. So

the momentum will build, the truth will spread, the love will wash upon humanity in order to give this world the opportunity to change its course, to find its healing, its balance and its harmony.

Indeed your name of the vanguards is correct for you are vanguards; you enter forth into new territory. It pleases me greatly to see the extent of your willingness, the strength that comes as you bravely push forward, your openness to be guided and most of all, your love for God. Do you realize what joy it brings us, your angel friends, to see that there is a band of mortals so willing to press forward in this venture. You will indeed show many the way and many will follow and many will do as you have done and will do. You will see how the doors will open, the path will be cleared, the road will be lit and you will know within yourselves that this is what you are meant to do. Always listen to your souls, my beloveds. Be true to yourselves. Do not hesitate when you know the steps you must take and the road you must follow, for it is in fulfilling your purpose that great joy will come and the profound awakening of your souls in love.

I walk with you my beloveds. I walk with you as you continue to venture forth and my love is with you always. Our fervent prayers are for your success for the awakening of your souls and the unfolding of what is meant to be, blessed by God. For God has a plan and He has a plan for each one of you, beloved souls. So as you continue to listen, the awareness of this plan will truly be yours. God bless you, beloveds, I am Jesus and I love you. I love you, my beloveds. I embrace you. I am with you. I shall continue to walk with you, my beautiful, adventurous souls, brothers and sisters all upon this glorious path of Love. I am with you. God bless you.

The Need for Harmony on All Levels in Order to Facilitate D. V.

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: August 6, 2017

It is your friend Seretta Kem. I too have come to speak to you upon the appointed hour. Is it not a great blessing to have the Master Jesus come to you, to lend his love and support to your efforts? He does know you beloved souls, each one. He knows you and he loves you. He has referred to the events of this day and I wish to comment as well.

You see the love that you brought into that place (FUSC), the conditions that were built in that small gathering, are the conditions that you will be required to carry with you on your travels as you spread the news of the Father's Love in this world; those conditions of love, the deep desire that this blessed couple had to bring this news to those who came. The power of the light that was within your souls combined with the preparations and development that will ensue as you sit together for direct voice will ignite the manifestations which you desire to see and share with others.

So, you must be strong, each one of you within your hearts, within your souls, within your beings and desire deeply to love and support one another in harmony, to put aside any conditions of doubt and that which is unloving. For within the minds of each one of you there is harboured some judgments, some preferences and biases that can easily ignite negative thoughts and energies and open the door for negative forces to work through you and cause disharmony. We know that none of you intentionally desire to do this, but you do live in this earth plane and you do harbour some of those conditions that are dark, that are inherent within this plane.

You must be vigilant, beloved souls, and monitor your thoughts. Monitor your actions as you live your daily lives. Be loving at all times. We have implored you and instructed you and in order for this venture to be successful, it requires a deep discipline and commitment and this requires your efforts on all levels. Indeed it is apparent that you are making great efforts in many ways: efforts to change old patterns of thought, even of dietary habits. You must see that each of you engages in certain diets of thought of the mind, patterns laid down for many years and responses honed by years of experiences and interactions in this world. We are not suggesting that you change everything within you. You cannot change your personality and your inclinations to a great degree, but it does require that when you fall into negative thoughts, that you to choose to halt this pattern and to interrupt it. If you find this difficult to do, ask for help. Your angel friends are always by your side willing to assist you. I am not suggesting that you need to second guess every thought. No, my beloveds, but there are times when you are well aware that you are indulging in conditions that are not harmonious. So, in this world it is very easy to slip into negativity. You do not have the benefit of living in the celestial heavens where conditions are beyond your comprehension and reinforce all that is good, wonderful, harmonious and loving. No, you do not have this benefit as of yet and so we understand that your condition and your efforts will not be perfect, that you fight against a head wind and at times it gets the better of you. What we are saying is that you must fight. You must forge ahead. You must do so with awareness, sensitivity and eagerness to change, to redirect your energies towards more positive thoughts. I am not condemning you my beloveds. No. Your light and your conditions are exceptional and beautiful, but if we are to work together in this close and intimate way you must reach for a higher condition in order for us to come closer and work together with such efficiency, vitality and precision that we

will be able to accomplish the changes we need to make within each one of your bodies and your spirits so that we may bring about these manifestations of direct voice.

Yes, it is a challenge to bring this gift through on such a high level. It is exciting as well. Think of what you will accomplish by making these small changes within your being. Walking in this higher way in life by being joyful and positive, and reflecting this towards yourselves in enthusiasm and indeed a confidence that you will invoke higher ways of thought and being within your lives. You have all the resources available to you, beloved souls, in order to do so. Utilize these resources. Remember prayer opens up many doors. Intention is important, desire for the highest always, consistently reaching for your Heavenly Father to receive the blessing of His Love, the touch of His Light and with the knowledge that you know at this time, the blessings that have been given to you, the efforts you have made. All of these things will come together and create the conditions that are optimal for the development of this gift. It is essentially very simple my beloved souls, but indeed challenging for you on earth. The resources of heaven are yours. You need but ask and it will be given. You need but choose and you will find success. You need but love yourselves and all those around you and harmony will ensue and be yours.

Thank you for listening to me this night. I am forever your servant. It is my privilege to serve you my beloveds, and my blessing. God bless you. Seretta Kem always by your side and always will be. God bless you. God bless you beloveds. I love you.

The Time has Come to Listen to the Wisdom of Your Souls

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: August 7, 2017

I have come to comment upon this instrument's physical condition. He experienced an episode this morning that was quite dramatic. He will continue to experience these episodes if he is not careful of the limitations of his diet. He cannot go through life expecting that these physical limitations are not relevant.

If he is to continue to be an instrument for God, to travel this earth and to be a channel wherever he is guided to be then he must take into consideration the needs of his body and his spirit. He cannot pretend to be sensitive and attending to those needs for there will be consequences. The body responds with every act that you take in regards to its functioning in this earth plane.

This, my beloveds, you must all take into account. A deep honesty on all levels is important for you to be in harmony, for you to be vital and for you to experience the joy of your own being. Like so many this instrument thinks more of others than himself. He finds more gratification in this loving flow, giving to others in whatever way he is able. Yet when it comes to his own self he does not leave much in reserve. A balance must be obtained, a balance of receiving and giving and of loving oneself. Yes, we have implored you to be a channel of Love in this world, to walk in Light, to give to others. Each of you does so in your own way. You all have generous hearts, my beloveds. You all walk in this world in the Light. But often you cannot see your own needs with clarity. Yet in the universe of God and His Love, Love must be given to all aspects of your life, including yourself. For when

you love yourself, you say "I honour my existence, the creation that You have made, my dear Heavenly Father."

It is often difficult to see through the conditions of this world in introspection, to see your own needs and to attend to yourself in love. The nature of this world is that it is very busy indeed, distracting your attention and bringing your focus outward. At times you even find it difficult to be in prayer. But you do find that time, do you not? Yes, you must find time to nurture your bodies, to be rested and to be in balance. For there is much work ahead of you, my beloveds, much work requiring a strong instrument, strong in every way, clear and in harmony and I know you are all making efforts to sustain your physical bodies in order to bring greater harmony.

In the case of this instrument, one day of neglect brings its consequences. This is how precarious is his physical health at this time. Because we are developing him for his instrumentality in the future, he is more sensitive and will become more so as time progresses. Thus he must be more sensitive to his own needs and what is required. Yes you cannot pretend or ignore what is required. He, as well as all of you, know within your heart of hearts what is in harmony for you. It takes a strength, it takes a quality of love, to act upon this knowledge, this understanding and to bring greater harmony to yourselves. For as we have said very often, your soul knows what you need. Your soul consciousness will flood your awareness and provide for you the strength, wisdom, the Love that you require to adjust and change, to heal and to bring within yourself a greater vitality.

So, first and foremost, you must nurture your soul. Bring within your soul that great blessing of Love from God. Walk in that Light with honesty and integrity, surety and self-love. As you refine these things within yourself, as the Love changes you, these qualities will shine forth as you walk in this world. These qualities will draw many to you for they will feel the power and the beauty of these aspects of your being.

Given the appropriate efforts on your behalf in your prayers, listening to your own wisdom and guided by God, your body will change. You will be transformed in every way as the Love of God brings those changes, starting with your soul, manifesting outward your spirit, your mind and your body. Everything will change, beloveds, if you allow this and if you listen to the wisdom that is imparted to you by your soul, which has in turn been imparted to you by God.

You are no longer babies upon this path. No, my beloveds, you begin to walk, to see the world differently. You begin to recognize how important it is to seek harmony in your lives, to walk in Light and to be close to God. Yes, for many years we have spoon fed many of you, patiently awaiting that time of a measure of maturity. That time has come. Like any parent, we allow you to walk and possibly fall, but we will never allow you to injure yourselves to any great extent unless, of course, that is your choice. But you must be strong beloveds, you must be strong, clear in your perceptions, wise in your actions, loving in all that you do. In this world this can often be a challenging thing, for often you are drawn into error and negativity without even knowing that you are there. Thus, you must be sensitive and aware of each step you take, each breath you make, each effort, each thought, those foods you put within your body.

When your life is informed by prayer and the connection with the Creator this does not become a burden. It is not difficult when you and God are in harmony with each other. When you feel His Hand upon you firmly guiding you, you will just simply know what you must do with a surety and a strength, lacking ambivalence and gaining a clear vision. This, God wishes to give to you my beloveds. He wishes you to come to that place of clarity and strength, of expressing Love in every way in your lives. Prayer is your touchstone; prayer is where you begin, as you well know, pray to God to receive His Holy Essence, pray to be guided, strengthened, healed and uplifted. These prayers will be answered as long

as they are sincere.

Yes there are many things within you that do indeed need to be harmonized in Love and that you are not aware of. But this awareness will come. It will come as you incrementally step into the Light. Incrementally the Love of God heals and opens you to the Truth, for it is Truth that you truly seek. It is Love that carries you there. It is hope and faith and joy that grows upon your journey. Continue beloved souls to walk in the Light as best you can, to accept the Will of God, to know the Will of God and to bring the Will of God within your lives more fully with each day.

We will be with you, beloveds, for we continue to nurture you, often like a parent towards its child. But I tell you, our love is far greater than this. Our desire to see you grow and to be beautiful flames of Love in this world is immense. So I wish you to know, my beloveds, that every small step that you make towards Love and harmony gives us joy and pleasure unimaginable. We will continue to support you upon your journey and to keep you embraced in Love and Light, to protect and guide you as you continue to find your way in the forest of the human condition. We will light the way. God will give you what you require to traverse through this forest to those beautiful fields of Light and harmony.

God bless you, beloved souls. I am your teacher, Augustine. I love and cherish each one of you. I do see great progress has been made and much more will be made as you continue to test your limits, seek your truth, learn how to love yourselves and others, and to seek out at-onement with God. We witness this miracle in each one of you. What a blessing, what a gift, what a beautiful journey, beloved souls. We are with you. I love you. God bless you.

Personal for M

Spirit: Lotus Blossom

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Abbotsford, BC

Date: August 10, 2017

God bless you. I am Lotus Blossom and I am happy to be able to speak through this instrument. I've been with you often, my daughter; I've heard your queries and your questions. I've seen you use the Truths that you know to bring greater knowledge, health, vibrancy and joy to you and to others.

You are indeed a practitioner of the spirit body, my beloved. For much of what you do requires that your spirit body be in harmony with the flows of energies so that the light and aura of your being is pure, beautiful and vital. You and I have had many conversations to that effect while you are in your sleep state. You are very busy when you are sleeping, my daughter.

So when you feel you lack a vocation, please remember that you are working on many different levels in this world and you are helping many different spirits and mortals as you do this work. And as you do this work you are also learning and growing and developing. This work will become more conscious and overt in this world. Pieces of the puzzle will begin to come together so that you will see this bigger picture and you will see your purpose to explain, to teach and to demonstrate these Truths in beautiful, practical and beneficial ways in this world. You are in training, though you are indeed a practitioner, you are also integrating many levels of Truth into a way in which you may teach this in harmony and without error. And I help you with this as do others who have a deep interest in your spiritual development and growing of your awareness and the growing of your soul in Love.

So my beloved sister, continue upon your journey unencumbered by feelings that you are not performing in the way that others expect. This is a fallacy and is untrue for the expectations are merely your own projections upon others. And do you not know that God has a plan for you, beloved? Do you not realize that you are indeed upon the path that you are meant to walk and you continue to express yourself in beautiful ways and this will evolve and change as you continue to grow in your soul and in your conscious awareness of Truth. You will indeed become a very powerful channel, my beloved. One with deep knowledge and understanding of the ways of the human spirit, the ways of the functioning of the body in relationship to that spirit and in the ways of the soul. For do we not need practitioners of these Truths in the world? To bring them forth in simple and understandable language, to show and demonstrate these Truths in ways that others will understand and adopt because they clearly see the benefits.

You see the world is changing. The conditions of this world are changing and God wishes to uplift His children. God wishes that all His children may come to understand these basic Truths and principles of life, and you will bring some of that understanding to the world. You must see yourself as one who is being prepared, taught and as you experience your daily life, there are many opportunities to learn, to grow and you are receiving many inspirations, teachings within your meditations, your prayers and this shall continue. And as I have said, within your sleep state many more conversations, teachings and awarenesses are growing within you and they will bubble up into your awareness, your conscious awareness. And through your practice you are realizing the benefits of what you are doing for your body and your spirit, with your prayers answering the needs of your soul. And so you are seeking harmony, beloved daughter, and harmony will come it is very close. A deep joy is welling up within you, a deep sense of purpose, a deep understanding that God is

with you. How many in this world are craving such blessings? And how many are you willing to teach the way towards these gifts and blessings, this way of being which brings such happiness and harmony.

And so it is for each one of you carrying your gifts, your particular role in this great upliftment of mankind. You are discovering the possibilities, understanding some of your limitations and realizing what it is that you must do to bring harmony within yourselves and your lives so that God may utilize you fully so the impact that you may have as His channels and instruments in this world may be great, that you will walk in light and harmony, in Love and joy. And those things of the earthily conditions that have beset you in the past and have caused you great angst may fall away, that you may be liberated from the human condition and fully indoctrinated into the Truth and Light of God's great reality. All of this is because you chose to receive His Love, to walk the Path Divine, to seek the Truth, to know your Heavenly Father. That simple choice has opened the floodgates and these waters will carry you swiftly to many experiences and to many souls who await your touch, your voice of Truth, your embrace, the reflection of Love through your gaze upon them, the light that you carry.

So beloved souls, your friend and teacher, Lotus Blossom will continue to support and bring my love to you and the beautiful flow and unfolding of your lives. God bless you, God bless you beloveds, I am with you. I love you and I see your lights, I see your true selves and they are beautiful, pearls beyond price.

Light – bright – shining forth. Love – pure – bringing warmth and comfort to this world. Truth – clear – bringing a way through the dilemmas of this world. Strength – powerful – bringing a way forward for you to enact your purpose in this world. Grace – beautiful – so that you may flow with ease through the conditions of this world. Peace – deep – so that those conditions may not hamper you as you act in love.

God is with you beloveds, God is with you. Seek Him with every breath, be with Him with every step, acknowledge Him with every thought and pay tribute to Him by loving yourselves and all in this world. God bless you, Lotus Blossom loves you, Lotus Blossom loves you indeed. God bless you.

Confucius advises us to rest our minds

Spirit: Confucius Medium: H.E.M

Location: Swakopmund, Namibia

Date: August 12, 2017

My daughter, my beloved daughter, I thank you for having granted me the opportunity to speak and you have felt my promptings of this early morning and yesterday that I desire to use your instrumentality. This is to be able to convey a message to our dear, dear brothers and sisters in this undertaking of your joint efforts. These are our joint efforts in the fulfilling of this gift that has been granted, in the fulfilling of the time together in advancing not only your souls, and the love in your souls, but also the reception and the manifestation and demonstration of the many truths we wish to convey.

The instrumentality of a voice box and the other manifestations will allow us to demonstrate and for you to witness our direct speech so that all of you can experience and hear and see at the same time. At this point it is too early to say exactly what will come about but your preparations are well, well underway and once you are together, you will be directed specifically for a specific intention. At this point it is still not a wise thing to say, "this will happen or that will happen" as we await for you to come together in the physical, to pray together.

As we have said before many times, the harmony, the harmony of your circle, your connectedness to God, your

openness of your souls, the harmony within you, with each other, with us, with God, - all are factors that will be of great importance to what exactly will be presented, and what the steps are. So, thus, have no expectations as Jesus mentioned. Yet have a full hearted commitment, full hearted faith and trust.

Thus, my dear, sweet daughter, I know, I know you eagerly await and wish to hear of how and what and when, but give your mind a little rest. I know, it is not so easy to realize what is all entailed and involved but our beloved, Seretta Kem, has given instructions on the physicality and the requirements. It is for you to pursue those in patience, dedication and trust. Just give yourself the joy of this experience, the joy of this journey as incrementally, things are happening within you, and incrementally you notice and pay attention to these little shiftings and awarenesses. Pay attention to the delicate unfolding of yourself in harmony with God and of your soul. Pay attention to these little things in your prayers, in your meditations, in your silence and don't let yourself be cluttered with speculations, assumptions and expectations. Just relax and listen to your soul. Listen to your inner knowing bypassing your mind and being in the depths within.

Enjoy the view. Enjoy the awarenesses. Reflect upon your journey. Pray about what is unclear within you - what holds you back to go into a deeper sensation, a deeper stirring. What is the barrier? And put it into prayers. Bring it to God who is so eager to help you and assist you and carries you as you fall deeper and discover more of yourself, discover more of this Love and discover the power of this Love, the Divine Love, this gracious gift.

My sweet daughter, I thank you. I am Confucius, a teacher of old and I am glad to be part of this project, to lend my support, to lend my love to each one of you in this undertaking and to be a part of something truly magnificent. Our prayers are constant. We surround you and support you

all with our love and prayers. There are angels assigned to each one of you and I wish to recommend that you use this opportunity of the availability of a specific angel who has dedicated themselves to this particular undertaking and assisting you. I wish to recommend seeking this deep lovebond with the assigned angel, to commence to put forth your desires for help and assistance. You yourself have realized how Martin is even encouraging you to come to your prayer room, encouraging you on many different levels, talking with you, giving you lessons, answering your questions. Oh, what gifts have been granted!

I just wish to bring to your attentions this marvellous opportunity for the growth of your soul, for your growth in God's Love, for the fulfilling of your purpose in a greater sense. Oh, I love you all so deeply! I love you all, each and everyone and I just wanted to talk to you and let you know that I am with you in this, supporting you, holding your hand and showing you. So, be open for all the help that is available, for all the help that has been granted.

We thank our Heavenly Father for bringing forth this opportunity and the dedication and commitment of so many. We are so thankful for your intentions and desires to partake in this and your conception of the seriousness of this. Your realization of the gravity that this invitation that has been extended to you carries. So, we are very happy and we wish to encourage you to delve into it even deeper, with yet greater commitment, with yet greater desire, with yet greater clarity of purpose and understanding. There is always more, always more and pray for God's Love, a greater inflowing, a constant inflowing. Oh, I am so happy to share my sentiments, to share my feelings with you. I am happy for this daughter to be willing to share my message with our dear friends, to share my desire to express my love and support to each one of you as I love you so dearly. So, have courage. You are all well on your way. Know of the support and love that comes your way.

I am Confucius and yes, you are my little birds who will gather together pretty soon and some birds have to fly a distance but we fly with them and we are with you all. God bless you. God bless you all as we love you, as I love you each one. God bless you. I greet you for this day and I love you and may God continue to bless each one of you. Confucius loves you. God bless you and thank you.

Be Honest With Yourselves

Spirit: Augustine Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: August 13, 2017

I see you continue to make progress and you continue to be disciplined in your thinking and your diets. I commend you for your efforts. Though I have seen that some of you make exceptions to the routines that you have established at various times. Indeed, the intransigence of the conditions in this world tend to lead you astray, does it not? Yet, some are very disciplined, indeed.

Now I see that there are travels ahead for some of you. I wish to emphasize that these times of prayer and times that you take in prayer during the days that you are away are important. For this effort in prayer must be paramount within your mind. I know when you are travelling this can be difficult and challenging. We will try to inspire you and to create conditions where you have the opportunity to retreat in prayer. I would urge you to take advantage of these times as we will be accompanying you upon your travels. You cannot suspend your preparations because of these changing conditions and situations in your life. It is important to be consistent in your prayers and in those changed habits of diet and thought, to continue with these valiant efforts, beloved souls.

Each of you are being tested. Each of you are being challenged. We are helping you to see those parts of yourself that are so very human in nature, where you are influenced by the conditions of this world quite readily. For each of you have doors open within you that allow these conditions that are not altogether in harmony to affect you. We will help you to understand, to be aware where you are vulnerable and where you require greater effort to change. You see, you all embark upon a new phase in your spiritual life and efforts. You must be ready, strong and clear. The love must flow into each and every part of you, beloved souls, changing you, healing those parts, those aspects of your being.

There are many aspects within you that lie hidden and will be revealed as you continue on this journey of awakening, of learning how to love yourself and to be a channel of love in this world. Yes, raising yourselves to a higher condition of love, of harmony, of light. This is challenging work, is it not? To set forth and consciously say, "I will change, alter my patterns of behaviour, think more of what is in harmony, allow more love to flow, to be strong, humble, generous, more loving."

All too often you are faced with decisions as these conditions, the human condition challenges you, wishes to draw you in, not necessarily into darkness, but into that grayness, that place of mediocrity, rather than light. It is easy to step into these conditions for each of you were raised within these conditions - they are familiar and sometimes bring comfort. It is that familiarity and desire within humanity to seek the comfort, to accept that which is unchallenging, and to say: "This is my life, this is what I understand to be the truth, to be acceptable and I wish to seek acceptance amongst others." So, humanity draws upon itself, draws many into these conditions in the world. They are grey indeed, not altogether negative but certainly not positive, merely somewhere in between. In these conditions, a soul is not inspired, a soul is lost, a soul is unloved. It is for

you, my beloveds, to teach others how to rise above these conditions, to be in the light, to have the truth sparkle within their consciences with clarity and beauty. To have their souls inspired to open to God and to allow that influence of His Love to change them that they may have the strength, the insight, the love to change, to make that effort to raise their foot upon another step higher and another step higher, incrementally rising into the light from that grey fog of mediocrity.

To be a source of inspiration, to be an example, you too must recognize these old patterns within you, those places that you willingly accept that are not in harmony with God's Love, and to be honest with yourselves, to open your eyes, to be strong enough to accept the awarenesses that are coming as your souls grow in the Love, as we come closer to you and reflect to you these conditions that need to be transformed in love. This is the preparation, beloved souls, not only of your physical but of your spirit, in your mind. For, I tell you within your soul there is great light, a beautiful light but you must allow that light within your soul to penetrate every part of your being. You must allow the light in so that you will be fully transformed in this process of healing, uplifting and enlightening.

Yes, we become more serious in regards to communicating to you about the challenges that you face. For you have taken on a very demanding project in Direct Voice. It requires that you do indeed climb those stairs into light, in every aspect of your life and being. In this there is often discomfort, sometimes shocking realizations about yourself and understanding more fully how you may release the floodgates of love within you so that this love may permeate every part of you, may radiate out from you in powerful and beautiful ways, touching many souls.

We do not suggest that you remove yourself from the flow of humanity, the conditions of this world. No, my beloveds, you are not required to enter a cave within the

mountaintop and to be just with God. No as much as some of you would deeply desire this, for it is so much easier to commune with God rather than your brothers and sisters in this world. It is necessary for you to be in this world and as we have said many times, but not of this world. So, as you continue to pray for God's Love, you incrementally step away from these conditions that are not of love and not of God. As you readily accept this movement into light, it requires that you see with clarity what the barriers are that hold you back. Each of you have unique conditions within you, each struggle is unique, each barrier created from a lifetime of experience, conditions inherited from your ancestors and of course the choices that you have made in your life. To release these encrustations is the greatest challenge of a mortal who chooses to walk this Divine Path. In many cases those who choose this path, come to a point where they resolutely close their eyes and say, "I have had enough of looking within myself. I do not wish to change any further." So, they create for themselves a schism, continuing to pray for the Love but not being willing to look at that which holds them back from being love. Again, your challenge my beloveds, do not close your eyes but open wide to see with honesty and integrity, truthfulness and trust in this process, this healing flow from God, to let go, to allow God to lift you up, to reclaim a sort of innocence, a freedom from these insidious and subtle conditions which you all absorb in your lives.

When you continue as a channel for God and when this gift of Direct Voice is open to you, this will challenge the world. This will undoubtedly inspire many but ultimately truth can be very challenging. The power of truth as Jesus said many years ago is like a sword piercing the soul. The soul must be willing to be laid bare. This is the true beginnings of love, the true beginnings of light when you are willing to look, when you are willing to release those conditions that lack love.

So, my beloved and beautiful souls, souls who have

been nurtured in light and love, whose souls God's Hand is upon, who are carried and healed and embraced by God, accept your fate, release your pain to find your at-onement with God and all the joy and harmony and light and innocence that this entails. Then those delusions and illusions that you carry, must indeed fall, fall by the wayside. In its place, there will be a depth of perception, a knowing and a strength that will make you a formidable channel of love in this world. For, no longer will you see with the eyes of illusion, but see with the eyes of a soul who sees clearly. In order to see clearly the human condition, one must be strong and willing to not judge, but to love, not be angered but to forgive, not shrivel away but to face head on whatever is upon your path.

It is love that gives us the strength and the compassion and the desire to love you my beloveds, to be your guides and teachers, to uplift and uphold you. It is the power of love. We do not condemn and judge you but we have faith that as you continue to face yourselves to this truth of love, all those conditions within you that are not in harmony will indeed fall away. You will be released from these burdens, you will cry out in joy and relief as these things fall away. You will have such a lightness of being, such a beauty and light about you that many, many souls will be drawn and in this and you will teach and heal, love and comfort many. We will work together, beloved souls, as a team in this great effort, this part that is God's Plan for the salvation of mankind. For as He enlists all those beautiful souls that are willing to walk in truth and light, are willing to release the error and are willing to be true to their true selves, their souls and true to God. All of these beautiful souls will be gathered, will be dispersed in the world and be used in many, many different ways, to break down the darkness in this world and bring the light of truth, the light of awareness, the light of God's Love.

So, my beloved souls, you continue to grow, your souls

Direct Voice Volume 2

continue to shed those conditions of which I speak and we continue to work with you on all levels so that we may accomplish our goals, our common goal to bring this great channel, this great gift to the world. I speak seriously to you today because it is important that you focus and are aware of the challenges that lie ahead as you desire to prepare yourselves. It is important that you do so informed and aware. I do not speak to encourage a sense of reticence or fear. No, my beloveds that you may see that it takes great effort, it takes sincere longing, it takes a capacity within you to see the truth about yourself and about this world. As shocking as it may be as you open your eyes to these conditions, as you turn to your Heavenly Father for comfort and strength it will be given, all will be given. You need not be reluctant or fearful, but joyful in the dawning awareness, the growing love, the beautiful light that is and will be your life, your being in this world.

Stand tall, my beloveds. You are beautiful, you are loved beyond measure. You are surrounded and protected. We are with you. God's Hand is surely upon you and you will overcome those barriers within. Continue in your efforts. Be prayerful. Love yourselves. Be honest and true and all else will fall into place beloveds, as love slowly conquers everything within you that puts up this resistance and fear. God bless you beloveds. Your teacher, Augustine loves you dearly, is with you as you continue to grow and I will continue to guide and teach and support you all the days of your lives. God bless you. God bless you, beloved souls. I am with you. God bless you.

How your gifts will emerge

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: August 20, 2017

I am Augustine your teacher here to help you as you travel the journey upon the path Divine to at-onement with God. I have come in response to your conversation, beloveds, and the guery of the beautiful soul, this daughter, who seeks confirmation and guidance regarding the opening of her gifts. It is a process that each soul most go through as gifts open and new insights and awareness's come. There is an initial excitement and enthusiasm. One often gets carried away by these different experiences. One must remember that when this door opens just a crack, the light seems a bit overwhelming. It is easy to become consumed with this experience and yet this is only a crack. As this door continues to open and wider insights and deeper capacities of your gifts will emerge, you will become familiar with this experience and you will understand how to utilise this gift and be disciplined in this utilisation. So, I would urge you, my daughter, to be patient.

You've set before yourself a small experiment as you travel. I would suggest that you go about this with innocence and faith. Allow the unfolding of what is guided in a way that you are not obstructing it with expectations. For God uses each channel in this world in many different ways and often there are ways and openings and expressions that God uses within you and through you that you are not aware of. Yes because you are human you desire something more overt and less subtle, something that reassures you that you are indeed gifted and that there be a manifestation that is undeniable and confirming. My beloveds, at times this happens but more often you move through your life unaware. This is not a

negative thing for in this innocence comes many blessings and gifts to others. Just because your mind is not engaged in this work does not mean your soul does not find its mark as a channel of love in the world.

So, my beloveds, I applaud each one of you as your gifts continue to unfold and I encourage you. It brings the angels joy to see each petal unfold in the flower of your soul. It also gives us joy when you are excited, when your attention is gathered upon these opening gifts. But as with every child who walks this path and seeks for the highest, it is a learning process. It is filled with trials and tribulations, experiments and some trepidation. Yet within your soul there is an excitement, a deep desire to know more, to experience more as these new parts of yourselves begin to emerge. So whatever you do in regards to expressing your gifts is the right thing to do because although there may be distortions, even error in these expressions you are learning and growing. You are moving forward. You are not standing still in stagnation. You are not allowing your fears to hold you back. No, my beloveds, you are stepping boldly forward and in your prayers and your desire to do good and your desire to reach for the highest God will guide you forward and assist you to hone your gifts in such a way that He will be able to use them effectively and beautifully for the benefit and service to your brothers and sisters in this world.

So do not fear my little daughter. Do not fear. Be joyful as you continue to grow and step forward in this way and there will be many triumphs and unfolding awareness drawing you ever closer to your own soul the expression of your beautiful gifts and the fulfilment of your purpose. God rejoices in these little miracles of growth and openings as His Love ignites within you many such awarenesses and gifts. This is appropriate for each one who walks this path to know that even when errors are made and when you feel like you have been a failure, you are not a failure. With every error comes the opportunity to grow, to take a different approach

and to understand from a deeper perspective.

Each of you are brave and eager. You continue to test the waters, to find your true selves upon your journeys. You continue to see more clearly the gifts that lie within you and the opportunities that God has set before you. Yes, there is much to learn, a great distance to travel yet. But as you continue to pray and sincerely come together in love and harmony, as you focus your efforts, your thoughts upon the coming project of Direct Voice, indeed God will open up faculties within you that will assist you in your efforts and development, in your mutual support of one another and the support of this great undertaking.

So, my beloveds, expect that gifts will open within you as you continue to pray and ask to be used as God's channel of truth and love, comfort and light. For as you pray for this, you receive these blessings and they are gifts from God. Yes like a child exploring the world, their efforts and actions are somewhat unsophisticated but as the child becomes more familiar with the world so they grow. As the child becomes more familiar with its gifts there is a refinement and sophistication that ensues as each child becomes more confident, more familiar and trusts what is before them and within them. This is the way of the world and the way of growth. God gives you these great opportunities so that you may grow and learn and in growing and learning you may become a clear and beautiful channel of His Love.

So, it will go, my beloveds as you step forward you will come to know what lies within you. Insights will deepen, perceptions will grow, faculties will emerge and love will flow. It's all a part of God's plan, my beloveds. It is all an unfolding of the beautiful flower that is your soul. Continue beloved souls upon your great journeys, the journey of awakening, of knowing and growing within through the Father's Love. Many surprises await you, my beloveds. A great deal awaits as you continue to explore the world of your own soul and your relationship with your Heavenly

Father.

As we have told you many times, changes are coming. In order to prepare, changes and shifts are happening within you. As you release those old barriers, as you tentatively feel the new reality dawning within you, as you grow to accept the Father's Will and release that which is not in harmony with His Will and His Love. God bless you, beloveds. Your teacher, Augustine, continues to walk with you by your side as you grow and travel in this world. God bless you. God bless you.

Many gifts will emerge

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: August 20, 2017

I thank our dear and beloved teacher Augustine for his words of wisdom. For indeed all of you embark upon a journey of awakening and many gifts will emerge in this awakening of your souls. What a blessing it is to have your beloved teacher with you, a bright soul indeed who resides high up in the Celestial Heavens who has much wisdom to impart and much love for each one of you.

You continue to progress towards a higher level within your bodies, your minds and your spirits and to accept that great and beautiful light within your soul as it infiltrates all those aspects of your being. This is indeed a great venture that you embarked upon as you prepare for the Direct Voice. To harmonize all of these aspects of yourselves beloved souls, to accept and integrate the great leaps that you have made within your soul, this great light that you have built as you have prayed for the Father's Love. Rather than shroud it with the conditions of your mind, with limitations and judgments from your mind, you are now pulling back this veil

and allowing the condition of your soul to infiltrate and influence to a greater degree your mental processes. This is what is required, for when you develop this gift of Direct Voice you will need to be sensitive and highly aware of the guidance that will be given, many details that will be brought forth so that you may travel the path intended, encountering the many souls that are awaiting your connection and for the gifts that you will bring and the truth that will come from these gifts and your words and your actions.

So, you are being challenged, my beloveds. There is something within you that is suggesting when you are not harmonizing your soul condition with your thoughts, that this is not what is intended, there is a sense of discomfort, of unease. This will intensify as you continue upon this journey of awakening and understanding for you need to know in no uncertain terms how to conduct yourselves within your thoughts, your consciousness, so that you are indeed integrating and allowing the light of your soul and the consciousness of your soul to be a part of your awareness with each breath. This is indeed challenging for very few in this world are able to function in this way, to integrate the soul awareness with the material mind. This is challenging indeed. But with the power of God's Love within your souls, this is feasible and possible. But, of course, as you encounter this new way of knowing and awareness in the world, there are adjustments necessary and difficulties in focusing your awareness, like one would focus a lens. Indeed many of you are receiving many impressions and have insights, visions, thoughts as you pray and meditate and go about your daily lives. This is your soul, my beloveds, speaking to you. Now this communication may not be altogether clear for the mind must be able to embrace the awarenesses of the soul without distortion and with acceptance and love. This is contrary to the human condition and so the struggle emerges as you adjust and you release those old patterns of thought, habits and ingrained ideas which inhibit the outflowing of the soul's

awareness and presence within your consciousness. Be aware of this, my beloveds, that indeed the flowering of your soul is happening and this may cause some disorientation, some confusion. It may also bring some delightful insights and some beautiful awarenesses.

You are continuing to release those conditions within your soul that are not in harmony with God's Love. This is most important. But this too adds to your confusion as these conditions rise up within your consciousness and you must come to grips with these unfortunate and difficult conditions within you.

So you are being challenged my beloveds in many different ways in order to come into harmony. We have forewarned you that because of the commitment that you have made towards Direct Voice that you will indeed be challenged, that you will indeed have to rise above those human conditions within you which hold you within that dark place that is life in this world of the earth plane. So each of you are earnestly praying and making an effort. At times you feel frustration and pain, at times elation, at times you receive insight and are excited by these new awarenesses that are dawning within you. Indeed how difficult it must be for you to sustain a heightened, joyful condition within you as all of these elements come in to play and interact and push you this way and that as you seek to be dwelling within that higher level of awareness that comes with soul consciousness and soul knowing in the light of God's beautiful Love that resides within you and around you. But this is the goal. This is what you must aim for. We do not judge you or condemn you when you fall short of these goals. No, my beloveds, our love for you is great and we understand the struggles and the efforts that you are making to rise above. How many in this world make these kinds of efforts and are consciously trying to put aside those heavy conditions that beset every soul on this planet? You are forging a trail that many will follow in time and you are

strong enough, my beloveds. You have all that you require to come to that place of harmony. You know that you need to be strong and to be in harmony. The power of the Father's Love is what will bring you to that place. The power of the Father's Love is what will facilitate your efforts for Direct Voice. This unique and extraordinary gift opens up many doors, brings many unique gifts and will do so regarding these efforts that you collectively desire to engage with.

Do not feel discouraged when you sense unease and confusion. When one moment you are feeling the joy and another moment pain – this is all part of your birthing into light and with every birth there is a struggle, there is a way of strengthening and testing. This is how it is in God's Universe as He gives His gifts of Love, His blessings of healing, His peace. He gives so much to you freely, but indeed you must struggle to reach, to pull yourselves up into the light and in this struggle you learn much and are strengthened greatly. You are given many gifts in order to understand and to grow so that that great channel of love within you may be clear and beautiful and perfect. So you continue upon this journey and we continue to assist you, walk with you, to pray for you and to seek to serve you for God does indeed give His loving support, these beautiful blessings, as you sincerely reach for the highest of blessings, as you continue to desire to do the greatest good in harmony with the Will of God.

So we continue my beloveds, we continue to journey forward, to work together, to grow and to be strengthened as we attempt to bring forth these gifts to the world. Yes, it is a time of testing and strengthening, it is also a time of great awakenings. Many rewards will come as you continue to struggle in this way and to flower and flourish in the Love of God. Remember, you are growing. You are shedding a skin. You are learning to open your eyes to see differently, to know from that place within your soul, to truly know truth and to express truth in your lives. These are all noble things, blessed things, things that are in harmony with God and in

this you will know a great reward and a wonderful awakening, a deep joy within your souls.

God blesses you mightily, beloved souls. God blesses all who are a part of your lives as this light shines forth, shining forth to many, many souls as you continue to open that channel of love to this world. Blessed are the children who seek to serve in this way, who humbly come to God and ask for His blessings of Love and to be used as His channels of Love and Truth, to be given the gifts and instruments that will bring truth to mankind. Blessed are these children who are God's children and they shall be blessed mightily.

God bless you, my beloveds. I am Seretta Kem and you are also blessed to have the Master with you as you pray in this way. So, he comes to bless you, to strengthen you and to overshadow you in your prayers. God bless you. God bless you.

The various purposes of the upcoming retreat

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 10, 2017

I come at the appointed hour to speak with you and to encourage you upon your endeavors to prepare for this great gift and the coming together of each of you to create with the circle that will bring about the gift of Direct Voice. Each of you continue to prepare yourselves, to seek out times of prayer, to be in good physical condition, to walk on this earth in harmony, to think about and send love to one another so that when you come together you will be in harmony, so that the conditions will be harmonious and ideal for this effort.

When you come together, my beloveds, do not think there will be just one focus for this is not the case. We will be using you to forge connections with other souls around this planet, to develop great surges of healing for many who will benefit on this world and for the great benefits of communicating and making clear your intentions and your thoughts and your perceptions regarding this work. Yes one sit per day will be devoted entirely to the development of Direct Voice. But you have many other hours in the day and other times of prayer together in which much can be accomplished. This is a great boon to us in spirit that you have dedicated your time and your efforts to be together for this period of prayer and development. It will be used to the fullest advantage in accordance to your ability to allow and to desire that these things may take place, so that it may be all within the harmony and flow of God's Will.

As you continue to prepare yourselves in prayer, keep these things within your mind and express these desires to God so that your souls may be in harmony with the Will of God and that you will know in a conscious way what is meant to be, what God's desires are for your efforts, what is in harmony with His Creation, His Love for you and for this world.

You have received a message this morning regarding the changes within this world and you must see that your efforts when you come together are to some degree a response to what is coming, that you are preparing yourselves and preparing a gift that will be utilized in order to give detailed and important information to those that are willing to listen in this world. It will be done in such a way that it cannot be misconstrued, that there cannot be a judgment that this information comes from a medium and is therefore subject to the great and deep biases of any individual that it will come directly for any soul on this planet to perceive its truth and reality. Yes, there will be those who will not believe, will never believe for they are so resolutely within their mind's perception and reality that anything that is contra-distinct from the mind is not worthy of consideration.

So it is in this world, for God gave all mankind free will; it is a choice. But you, my beloveds, will continue to soldier on in these efforts to bring spiritual truth to mankind, Truth that is not distorted, Truth that is clear and simple and beautiful. Is this not your goal, my beloveds, to be a clear channel for God, to bring Love, to bring Truth, to uplift, to heal, to speak and to comfort? For the powerful conditions of error and darkness in this world must be dissipated. We in spirit are bringing forth in whatever way possible great efforts to help heal this world and dispel the darkness and bring Truth. There are few that are willing to work with us, not because they refuse to do so, but because they have no idea of the potentials and possibilities that are available to every soul upon this world. When they think of spirits they are afraid and do not trust and cannot see beyond those lower planes of existence which indeed are not particularly helpful in this regard. They cannot see that as you progress up through the spheres, as you reach towards the Celestial heavens, that you bring towards you a great and powerful light, a wonderful blessing and a great potential for Truth into your midst.

If mankind could only trust in the Love and care and Truth that the angels wish to bring to each child in this world, how different it would be, how very different. For no child is alone. No soul is completely in the darkness. For there is always hope and there are many spirits of light, spirits of Love, Celestial angels who are eager to help, to help uplift, to help those who are blind and dumb and not able to see or understand, to bring them to a place where their eyes may open but a bit, that their understanding may come in increments, that wisdom and Love, strength and joy will come to them in time. This is your work, my beloveds, to bring with patience and love, strength and resolution, the truth of Love, the power of Light, the blessing of peace, the great joy that comes with opening to the Truth of God's existence, the wonderment of God's creation, the power of

His great soul that radiates Love to all.

So few understand and are willing to acknowledge this. Those who do are often mired in mental conditions that bring restriction and distortion. How fortunate you are, my beloveds, to see through this condition and distortion to something in a much purer form, the understanding of a soul. We continue to nurture and support each one of you so that will continue to have your eyes opened and your souls awakened and become that wonderful channel of God's Love in this world. So few are willing, my beloveds. So we must all make this great effort to open the eyes of as many of possible. For there is a yearning in every soul to know truth and to know God. Often that yearning is stifled and buried in layers of mental condition and disbelief and emotional pain and suffering. So when you are in the world, bring your gifts in innocence and faith, you ring a bell, a clarion bell that invites the children to come and see, to come and acknowledge that tender place within each soul that is so vulnerable yet desires that connection with God, to know His Love in a personal way and to be in love with God. So you will bring this message in ways that will be powerful manifestations, great healings, wonderful Light to those who eagerly wish to see and to know. Though many may indeed be hampered by their beliefs, the error of their religious convictions, the conditions of their lives, you must not judge but step forward in love and compassion with the sure knowledge that you are doing God's Will and His work for it is the strength of your faith, the beauty of your conviction, the light of your soul's desire that will bring these miraculous manifestations forth. This beautiful Light and Love that will come to many through your efforts and the efforts of those who will join you and those who will follow you. For this work will continue for a very long time. The earth will be pulled up from the miasma of this darkness to a place of Light and harmony.

You will be a part of this great effort to heal this

world. God has put within each one of you a purpose, a gift, a calling and you are beginning to awaken to this and to allow this to manifest in your life without those conditions in you and around you which distort. No, my beloveds, you will know that you will indeed ring that great bell and bring the Truth to this world. You will gladly and joyfully walk in the footsteps that God has placed before you and do as God has asked in all His Love and joyous reckoning of who you are and what you are meant to do. How wonderful will be your passing into spirit when that time comes. You will look back with great satisfaction and joy as to what you have accomplished as an instrument of God's Will. Until that great day, you continue to grow and learn and allow the outpouring of Love and the inflowing of God's gift of Love and all the Light, all the awakening, all the cleansing and healing, all that will manifest within you and around you and in your lives. These great blessings continue to flow and much still awaits as you seek to serve God, as you are intrigued by what can be, as you come to know with that surety within your soul what will be and you bravely step forward and say "Yes, I am willing. I will be an instrument of God's Will and I will let God guide me. I will do so with great desire and eagerness. I will accept with the strength of my faith and the knowing of my soul that You will guide me, dear Father, as I continue to walk this earth and that You, my dear God, will help me to love always, to love always, and to release all that which is not of Love."

Yes, beloveds, it is Love that is the key, it is everything. You must always see from that perspective of Love. You must always be in that flow of His Love. You must always express that wondrous Love that shines within you. In this way these higher aspirations and efforts are what God is nurturing within you to bring forth in these times to come, to unleash this wondrous potential of a soul awakened in Love.

My beloveds, we continue to walk with you, to pray with you, to prepare you, to speak and encourage. Thus, we

continue in this great effort together. The time is fast approaching. The changes in the world continue to intensify and soon there will be turmoil and the world will be very unstable indeed and this is why you will act. For mankind will be filled with fear and uncertainty. There will also be a desire for God and Truth in many. God will send His children forth to speak the Truth and ring the bell of Truth.

Are you ready, my beloveds? Are you willing? Are you strong enough? Is your faith the foundation of your life? Do you trust in the will of God? Do you walk in the Light of His Love? Can you give up those things within you that hamper your progress and are not of Love? These things I would ask that you think of each day and bring this to prayer that you may indeed grow in this Love, release all those conditions that are not of Love, and acknowledge the Light within you that you may continue to grow in this Light and live in Love. For you and those who are like you are the hope of the world, a world so rent asunder, a world that suffers so, a world that for so many looks in order but is not and continues to crumble, shift, and will continue to disintegrate allowing this new Light, this new harmony, this new Love to blossom and heal this world.

Continue in your efforts, beloveds. We will continue to assist you and help you to understand, to know, to be in Light. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. I reside in the Celestial kingdom. I am an angel of God, redeemed by His Love and blessed by His Light. I have come to bring this Truth to the world as have many, as have many. God bless you, beloveds. God bless you. I love you.

Much awaits you

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: September 17, 2017

God bless you, beloved souls. I greet you, my daughter (L), who has come to share in this blessing and prayer. Yes, we have gathered all the souls who are part of this venture. For distance means nothing in this regard. All are present and there is a deep connection between you all, which is required, harmony, love, a reaching out from one to another, a pooling your spiritual resources, and desires, and Light. In this pooling together, many things will manifest, beloveds, many beautiful manifestations of which direct voice will be just one.

It is hard for you to see beyond a specific goal, yet there is much more that awaits as you continue to grow in the love and strengthen your commitment to God and work towards serving God's goal. For this one step that you take is indicative of the power of your commitment and desire. This will unfold and blossom in many different ways as this gift is added to another gift and another gift. You are manifesting the power of God's Love in ways that at this time you are unable to comprehend but as this venture moves forward, as you continue to listen to your guidance, as the Love continues to flow into your souls, many blessings and attributes and gifts will blossom within each one of you. Together as your create the power and beauty of Love and harmony amongst you, you will accelerate the opening and development of many gifts within each one. It is the regenerative and powerful connection of Love that will open many doors for as you create this condition amongst you. As you joyously acknowledge one another and share your deep desires, your soul desires to serve God, then many things are

made possible for you to ascend from the human condition to something far greater and closer to God.

So your venture has many possibilities and benefits. Yes you focus on one thing but God focuses on many things, so many layers of development, of soul growth, of understanding and gifts that flourish within this energetic condition which you develop within yourselves with the help of the angels and the blessings of God. We are excited about what it can be. We see great potential, many blessings which we have for many, many years desired to bring to this earth are made possible by your commitment and choice and Love.

So do not limit your expectations, beloved souls, but allow freely for God to have His hand within this work, to listen intently and with Love. Dear Heavenly Father allow whatever is manifested to do so unrestricted and without limitations, with Love and trust and faith.

Now when you are at that place where you will travel in this world, bringing these gifts forward, touching many souls as God's channels His Love, you must give over your expectations and wilful desires to God. Allow His plan to manifest through each one of you, and do not hold back. Joyfully move forward and trust in joyful recognition that you are doing God's work in this world and you are assisting the angels that you continue to grow as an apprentice in the work of an angel.

So you will travel together in groups no less than three. This does not mean you will all travel as one body; this may be so on occasions. But you also have your obligations in this world and at times this restricts your travel but it will not restrict your connections with one another. The support will be offered from those who remain in their homes and their places, where they live but still the Love and support and energetic assistance will continue to flow through them to those who are upon a mission. There will be many missions, my brothers and sisters, you will be guided. You already recognize one which is your travel to India. We are happy to

see that this instrument has now accepted this invitation and is building his desire to go and serve. This is how it will often happen, my brothers and sisters, you will not know the exact purpose of your effort other than to merely be a channel of Love and be guided with each day. This does indeed take strength and a spiritual maturity that does not restrict the Will of God and the execution of His plan in this world. It does indeed take a special strength, a strong faith and a loving acceptance of the Will of God and you, my beloveds, have come to this place. So you put before God your first test saying "I am willing to come together and to work together for this direct Voice." I know that some of you have trepidations, even skepticism as to the success of this venture. I tell you now that you have every means for success. But of course, you must put aside your doubts, your trepidation, and whole heartedly devote yourself to this venture. As you do so, you learn a great lesson, a wondrous opportunity to observe your own spiritual power and gifts to trust in the work of the angels and to acknowledge that God has a plan for you, each one and collectively.

This does not mean that all will be easy, for it will not. It requires concentration, requires intense prayer, requires discipline and a deep listening, to put aside those conditions within you which you know will hamper this work, to walk with a surety and a joy that will bring about the manifestations necessary to complete the development of this gift. Yes much will be predicated upon the success of this gift and the opportunities that will come from these efforts. You will find that your life will indeed be different, that there will be a quickening of your efforts and a powerful flow of purposeful spiritual work bringing Love and truth and guidance to many. I know some of you are worried as to how this can manifest in your lives. I say all things are possible with God. It is only the mind that sets a restriction that seeks to have the power and control and you realize that this must be released, released with Love. For as you continue to reach

towards your Heavenly Father, you see before you those restrictions within and God has every intention and desire to heal you of these things. It is for you to say "yes, I accept and I desire this." Not from your minds, my beloveds, but from deep within your soul and in that resolve that comes from that deep place, those things within your mind which you hold back, will melt away. With each of these experiences of healing and release and the inflowing of Love that replaces those conditions, you learn a little more deeply the power of God's Love. You begin to see how wondrous is His gift, how beautiful His touch and how glorious His plan for each of you.

Seek harmony in all things, my beloveds, and know that we continue to work together to develop the conditions necessary for the expression of Direct Voice in this plane, that it will be done in such a way that the highest spirits and the Celestial angels will bring forth much information and manifestations for all to see and to hear.

May you continue to grow in the Love and to put the pursuit of God's Love above all things. Even this venture is subordinate to our efforts to receive the Divine Love for without this foundation none of these efforts will come to fruition. With the gift of the Father's Love so much is possible. You begin to have a glimpse of what can be, this is merely a glimpse, for there is so much more to see and know and to express with the beauty and glory of your own soul in harmony with God, in harmony and Love with your brothers and sisters. So it goes, beloved souls, so it goes, one step at a time as you continue to learn and grow and become stronger, become less reliant upon the human condition and more reliant upon God. It is this letting go and this trust in God that will bring you to that place of the fulfilment of your purpose and a flourishing of your true self.

God bless you, beloved souls, in all your efforts and all your prayers, in all your attempts to love, to love yourself, to love each other and to love those in this world. In this God is with you, in this Light blossoms forth and you are touched

deeply as you continue to love. So you continue to allow love to flow into yourself and so it goes. For all eternity this love will continue to blossom within, to grow and expand on your journey to at-onement, to that ecstatic, blissful, awesome communion with God.

Blessings to you, my beloveds. I am Seretta Kim and I love you. You begin to love a little more each day, and we will join in love in this great venture and adventure and awakening. God bless you, beloveds.

This is a blessed path

Spirit: Jesus Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 24, 2017

I am Jesus. The breath of God is upon you beloved souls. His breath is Love and His Love enters your soul healing your wounds, uplifting your heart and bringing you ever closer to the fountainhead of Love. May His Touch of Love continue to bring you into that place of at-onement and deep peace and wondrous joy.

I am with you, my beloveds, I am with you in your efforts and I shall speak through the mediums for Direct Voice. I will appear to all who are present that they may see my person and know my voice and Love and Light. Remember this, my beloveds, though you must pray hard and seek to be ever closer to God so these gifts may manifest through you. There is great purpose, a great purpose and reward for these efforts as you continue to strive for the highest, the greatest good, the Truths of Love.

You shall indeed be touched by God and carried along upon this path. You will find your way, beloveds. You will bring your gifts and God will work through you in wondrous ways, wondrous ways, my beloveds, as channels of His Love

and messengers of His Truth, as His servants of Light. You are my disciples and we all work together to bring greater light to this world and all the worlds, greater Light, a beautiful Light. The bell toll of Love shall ring throughout this world giving all souls the choice to receive this gift for they will know of this gift as you bring it forward so that none can deny its truth and power and wonderment.

Yours is a blessed path, my beloveds, with great responsibility and opportunity. God has called you forward for your souls seek the Truth, your souls long to serve God, to know His Will and so you shall, beloved souls, for you have a Light within you that shall guide you through even the darkened times. You shall be guided through, made safe, and your needs shall be provided for the Truth you have to give is precious. God shall protect you always, beloveds, and we shall be with you always. I shall lead the way to greater Light.

God bless you, my disciples. God bless you on your journeys and your efforts to bring Truth to this world. You are blessed. The mighty of Hand of God rests upon each one of you, beloved souls. Feel its touch and know the comfort of God's presence with you, beloveds. You are blessed. You are blessed. God bless you.

Preparations by spirit continue

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: September 24, 2017

We continue to prepare you, each one, even those who are travelling. We continue to work with you and encourage you to bring your soul conditions to a higher place, to a higher level. As you continue to pray for the Father's Love, the Father pours His love within you and assisting you in your efforts to clear away those obstacles and

conditions that may impinge upon your efforts for Direct Voice.

Yes, there is much preparation to be done. We also are utilizing this instrument to bring teachings forth at this time, for when your work begins there will be little time for these sorts of communications. Your focus will be upon the task at hand. You will be doing much travelling. You will meet many, many souls in this world who will be curious and intrigued. Some will have a deep soul desire to know these Truths for they will be inspired by the gifts that you carry and the Love that you have within your souls. Yes, your life is about to change, my beloveds. This requires a deep commitment, a profound understanding of what it is that you have embarked upon in this journey, this journey to bring the Truth to mankind.

God will provide the power and the blessings needed for your success. At this time you are clearing away all those obstacles that may inhibit the flow of these gifts and blessings from God. So you need to be in deep prayer each day. You need to set aside your fears, and set aside those conditions within you that you are well aware are not in harmony with God's Love and the Laws of His Love. For if you are to be an ambassador of this Truth, you must live accordingly and exemplify this Truth in every respect. We see within each one of you a great potential to do so. But all is predicated upon your free will, your desire to rise above the human condition and to allow God to work through you in that flow of Love and Light, Truth and goodness, joy and enlightenment. Yes indeed a great responsibility rests upon you but you have chosen to do so, you have chosen to take part in this work and effort.

So much is coming, my friends, many changes, unheard of opportunities, profound experiences and wondrous blessings. A great and powerful flow of Love will accompany you and embrace you in all of your efforts as you move in the world. You will be accompanied by millions of

angels and you will be protected and guided. Each one of you has an important part to play in this. You begin to become aware of this, to see your own self and the gifts that you carry and how God may use you as His channels of Truth and Love. Never before have the angels been so intensely involved in the affairs of this earth. Rarely do we get the opportunity to come to this place in such strong rapport. Few have invited us through the longings of their soul for God's Love. But you have overcome all those barriers and vices and errors so that you may make rapport in this way, in a powerful way and be used in this wondrous gift of Direct Voice.

Remember, my beloveds, each one of you carries a power and a gift that complements the whole. You must take your part and responsibility seriously and realize that none has greater gifts than the other, merely different. You must love and support one another in this. Do not let the human condition stifle your efforts. Be sincere with one another and sincerely loving. Embrace one another because you are truly brothers and sisters in this effort. God has brought you together to find your way and to open a door that will open many doors.

Many of the angels will come to speak through this gift of Direct Voice. We have introduced several to you at this time and more are coming to make rapport with you so that they may come and speak more readily to those who will gather to listen. This is all part of the plan, beloved souls. We continue to orchestrate what is required. We merely ask you to listen, to follow your heart, to speak from your soul, to desire to serve God and your brothers and sisters in this world. With this desire is the key to unlock the door to bring these bounteous blessings forward.

Remember the power of your own choice with each moment. Remember that the time for old habits, negative thoughts, judgments and unloving conditions within you – the time has passed. It is time to choose Love always, to

express yourself in harmony with Love. You have the capacity to do so for have you not been taught of God's Love? Have you not been well blessed with these bounteous waters of life? Have you not been healed and nurtured and carried and accompanied by angels? There is no reason for you to feel weak and incapable of Love. For everything you require is within you and you are protected and surrounded in Light. There is no reason to express anything but Love. If you do so, if you feel inclined to choose negativity over Love then I ask you to say a prayer for yourself and ask God to help you to overcome these conditions that no longer truly are a part of you. They are remnants of an old time in your life.

Your soul continues to be reborn in Love. This is what is meant to come forward in your life at this time and to say to yourself and to God: "I have outgrown these old things. Now, Father, help me to let them go truly and forever for I need not these old crutches, these old thoughts, these old feelings for I am now Your child and Your instrument and a soul claimed by Your Love. May I claim my birthright? May I walk in this Light forsaking that which is not of Light and claiming that which is of Light and Love and harmony and peace, joy and wonderment."

For, my beloved souls, the time has truly come for you to step forward in Light, to acknowledge what this means and to step forward with the full realization and responsibility that comes with this choice. You cannot fool yourselves, beloved souls. You must be truthful and honest and forthright. If you feel unworthy, this is illusion for you truly are worthy. You are worthy within your souls and it is your true self that will tell you so. If you hide behind this feeling of unworthiness, you do yourself a great disservice for your mind plays tricks upon you as it continues to be influenced by the conditions of this world. Yet you are truly free from this within your soul and you need to acknowledge and accept this Light that burns within you. May you continue to shine bright, to find your way to God in all its fullness and richness

and beauty. Let go of the vestiges of an old self no longer needed, no longer relevant and accept with joy the newness of your brilliant soul.

It comes to you, beloved souls. God continues to pour His Love upon you and lift you above and bring you to that place of awakening. So it will come and so you will emerge as your soul comes fully to life. What wonderment that will be, what gifts shall emerge, and such beauty shall be expressed. The power of God's Love, His Essence changes everything, the beauty of this transformation, the wonderment of a soul redeemed and the joy that comes with this awakening. So much awaits you, my beloveds, so much as God gifts you with everything and you need not for anything but your relationship with God.

God bless you, beloveds. I am Seretta Kem and I continue to serve you and to assist you in this transformative time. I love you, each one, each one a precious light. I love you. God bless you. God bless you.

All Is Done In Love

Spirit: Jesus Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 25, 2017

You forge a path where mysteries are no longer mysteries and Truth is obvious for those who have eyes to see. You will bring forth these Truths. You will help to open the eyes of those who wish to see. Thus, you forge the path for others.

Many will follow, for this world must change and God is inspiring those souls who seek to be a part of this change, who desire to be in harmony with God and with Truth, who bring with them Love and express what they have to give, their precious gifts, to their brothers and sisters.

Direct Voice Volume 2

You are blessed, my brothers and sisters, you are blessed. God will continue to uphold you and guide you upon the path you are destined to follow. All is done in Love. All is expressed in Light. Such is your journey as you forge the path to God.

God bless you. I am Jesus and I love you. I hold you close. You are precious to me. You are blessed in Love.

The Awakening of the Soul Giving Rise to the Harmonization of the Material Mind and the Soul

Spirit: Matthew Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 25, 2017

God bless you, beloveds. I am Matthew. I wish to address the subject of what you call reality, for mankind has a great desire to assert their perceptions of reality to make it firm and substantive, such that anything else that contradicts these ideas is considered fallacy.

I say reality is a fluid thing, as this dear daughter has experienced. Something happened that changed her perception, her ability to discern what she felt was real and what was not. These things were blurred in her consciousness. This is the beginnings of a deeper perception of reality. I wish to assure you, my daughter, that you missed nothing of the prayer, for you were a part of it as were all those who were meant to attend. This is a good example of when you all go out into the world to teach and to bring this Truth of Divine Love. You will be connected in many ways. Your reality will shift. You will feel as if you are present even though you are not present in the flesh. Does this not contradict the sense of reality that most have? Yet it is a

reality.

There are many more experiences and manifestations of the capacity of the soul to be expressed in this world that cannot be explained by material signs. Yet there is a truth to it, a reality that is different from the material reality. So as you grow within your souls, as you continue to explore the reaches of your soul's capacity express itself and to experience your life, there will be many other experiences, object lessons in what can be accomplished by your soul's awakening.

The experience of the other night is just a taste of what is to come for each one of you as the perceptions of the mind and the soul merge together, blurring what you call material reality and your vision, your awareness, your understanding of life, of God's Creation of your own being, of what lies around you and in this vast world that God has created, both of this earth and the spheres of spirits and the Celestial Kingdom. There is so much that you do not see at this time and yet awakenings begin to glimmer within your consciousness. It shifts, as your truth, your reality begins to evolve and change into something different.

Often the mind doubts itself for it cannot grasp the fluidity of existence. Yet the soul knows, the soul is comfortable with this fluidity and changing reality. So you must rely upon your soul, the capacity of your soul to understand these things. For as you receive the gift of Divine Love within your soul and it becomes awakened and these faculties and capacities are enlivened and come to the fore, so one must expect differences and changes in your perception of Truth and reality. Change comes with the power of Divine Love. Truth brings forth a clarity. Experiences emerge from the opening of your soul. Do not be frightened by this or overly concerned. Merely observe, accept and realize that as the curtain is pulled away from that semblance of truth that you have believed in for most of your life and where something new and different emerges, this is also a

consequence of soul awakening.

Yes, each of you must adjust as these awarenesses grow within you. There is a time when the mind is confused and yet this too will pass. There will be a harmonization within you. As these new realities emerge you will find great value in them, deeper perceptions, a greater capacity to understand the wonderment of God's Creation, the wonderment of God Himself, the wonderment of your own creation. This is what you have prayed for, my friends. You prayed to know the Truth, to understand and to see it. In order to be used as God's instruments in an effective way. These aspects of soul perception, faculties must come to the fore. For you must truly understand of that of which you speak of and express in the world. In this way you may teach and show others how to emerge from the illusion that man has created, this life so burdened by the insistency of the mind and the price of neglecting the soul. Yet it must be a merging of these two aspects of your being, the soul and the mind, in perfect balance and harmony that will give rise to a new world, a new reality, one that is in harmony with God's Laws, one that is seeking Love and joy and surety.

So as the world changes, these illusions will be stripped away. You, my beloved souls, are beginning to see with the eyes of your souls and experience this new reality. So you must if you are to teach those who are confused, who stumble about in the dark unable to see clearly and insistent upon error over Truth and that which is truly real. Yes, this is challenging to the mind. It contradicts so much of what you believe. Yet you know within you the Truth of it, the rightness that is God's Creation.

We will help you and assist you in your adjustments, your perceptions, your new reality. It is meant to come and it will come in increments slowly, gently but powerfully. Have faith in where God is leading you, my beloveds. Allow this awakening to take place. You will not lose your faculties. You will gain many more. The complexity of your own being will

emerge as you continue to grow in God's Love. Is this not exciting? Does this not intrigue you, my beloveds, to have these experiences and shifts of reality? Use the strength of your own faith to travel upon this journey of awakening. Be with God and all shall be well. There is nothing to fear in this. You will not lose yourself in some unusual world filled with falsity and illusion. No, you will gain great strength from these perceptions and experiences, soul awakenings that are coming. How beautiful you will be as you awaken thus in the Light and see clearly and Love in powerful ways. So many of you will be able to help because you can see the Truth clearly and know God's Love. So much awaits you, my friends. You will experience many more manifestations of the awakenings of your soul. Welcome this with open arms for it is an overt expression of the power of God's Love. You will come to know your true selves and come to experience the wondrous blessings of God's Touch upon you, beloved souls.

God bless you and keep you always in the flow of His Love. I will continue to be with you for I love you so. Many more join me in this exquisite adventure, this wondrous work to bring the Truth of God's Love to this world in ways that will enlighten and inspire many. God bless you. God bless you. I am Matthew. God bless you.

This is all in God's Timing

Spirit: Alec Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 26, 2017

God bless you beloved souls. I am your friend Alec. Yes, I have not spoken in a while. That does not mean that I have been away. I have been with you, very often, observing your efforts, your discussions, your attempts to be in greater harmony and to prepare yourselves for Direct Voice.

You speculate upon the timing of these messages and your efforts. I say this is God's timing. For the conditions of the world will accelerate and you all feel this. You have spoken that the sense of timing of your lives has been disrupted. This is true, for God is accelerating the energetic conditions of this world and you are feeling the consequences. This is all part of His plan, manifestations of His Will and energies upon this planet changing conditions, accelerating certain energies and influences upon this planet. Thus you feel a sense of urgency. This is not unfounded, for now is the time for you to put aside any reticence, to walk and listen. You are in harmony and in tempo with God's Will.

This dear daughter speaks of allowing God's Will to guide her life. This is a wise choice for as you are able to allow the influence, the whispers, the Will of God to enter your consciousness you will know what you are meant to do. Each day is a challenge that you may be in harmony with this flow of God's Will. But with each day you inch yourselves ever forward to become in alignment with God. Thus the desire of your soul is this – to seek God in all things, to be in harmony with His Will and that that harmony must be conscious and expressed in everything you do. The human condition often compels you to ignore this inner voice but you continue to bring yourself back into alignment and to listen. In time hearing and expressing the Will of God will become second nature and all will flow as it should.

When you have those times when you feel you are not being productive, that little is happening in your life, I say this is untrue, that much is happening but you have shut yourself off from the awareness of it. For God uses you on many different levels. There are many works that you accomplish that your conscious material mind is unaware of. Yet this does happen. It is real, but it is not material in the way that you see the material. So have faith my friends, that much is happening in your life because you have made this choice to serve God. You continue to desire to bring this Love forth in

the world as His channels and God continues to utilize your gifts in many different ways. So do not judge yourself harshly, my friends, there is much that has been accomplished and much that will be. As you move along on this path more and more will become a conscious effort and less will be a mystery.

Yet as you continue to grow in your love and your faith, I would encourage you to put aside your doubts and your self-recriminations and your feelings of unworthiness and all those human conditions that beset humanity and to be in the world but not of the world. For you are of something else that grows within you, the remaking of your being from mortal to angelic. This is a magnificent evolutionary step that starts with your soul and infills and influences every part of you. Isn't it magnificent how God's gifts unfold in this wondrous kaleidoscope, expressing who you are in such beautiful patterns, such beautiful ways, exquisite, delicate yet powerful. Such as you are, beloved souls, beautiful flowers opening one petal at a time, facing the sun of God's great Soul. Such beauty, such beauty.

God bless you, my friends. May you continue in your service, your desires, your prayers, your spiritual life for the world needs more like you, beloved souls, the world needs more. God bless you. I am your friend Alec and I do love you and am with you. God bless you.

Some discussion about mediumship.

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 30, 2017

God bless you, beloveds. Yes, this instrument will continue to become familiar with many other angels from the Celestial Kingdom. Often it is difficult to discern the names of

those individuals, those angels that come. We will help him to be clear in his understanding and perception of these individuals and know their names. It is difficult because of the portions of the material brain that are used to bring forth verbal communication for such names needs to be clear.

Yet he continues to forge ahead in his gifts. Clarity will come, as will a sense of confidence concerning who is overshadowing him. Because some spirits are unfamiliar there is sense of hesitancy. I must reassure him that his guides and gatekeepers will continue to ensure that those who come through him are of the highest, and of importance, and part of the Plan. So he is not to worry or be concerned as to what is coming through, but be an open and trusting individual. God will ensure that all that comes is for a purpose and a blessing.

Thank you, beloved souls. May God bless you. May His Love continue to flow into your souls in great abundance. I am your teacher Augustine and ever by your side as you continue to serve God in this way. Many blessings to you, beloved souls, and to all those who are connected to this great venture of bringing the Truth of God's Love to this world. All are blessed in this effort. All are blessed. God bless you.

Bridge Differences with Love

Spirit: Joshua Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: September 30, 2017

God bless you. I am Joshua. I have come to speak to you about the differences in the world.

These instruments have traveled the world extensively and have experienced for themselves the different cultures, attitudes of their brothers and sisters that inhabit the various

parts of this world. At times I think you feel overwhelmed by these differences. It is difficult to comprehend the variety of thinking, the cultural expressions of the various nations of this world. One tends to gravitate back to what is comfortable and familiar. Thus there is a sense of distance and a lack of connection with those who are different though these two instruments have been bold and open in their travels. They have brought Love where they have been and connected with many individuals even when language is a barrier. Love continues to bring a closeness, acceptance and a warmth.

As you continue on as instruments of God's Will and comply to His Plan you will meet many individuals of different cultures and ideas for there is a vast variety of expressions in this world. The mind is capable of such variation and complexity of expression that one could not know it all in one life. But God will ask you, as time continues in your life, to reach out to many, many souls in this world not just those you are familiar with in language and culture, but also those you are not. It will require a sense of adventure, an eagerness to come to know these individuals whose lives are so unfamiliar to your own.

What bridges the gap here, as you reach out to others? It is Love. It is the power of Love that closes the separation, the sense of unfamiliarity and the lack of verbal communication. It is Love that all can understand. And so as you continue forth in your travels and efforts be aware, beloveds, that it is the Love that shines from your soul that will light the way and bring a sense of togetherness with those you meet.

I acknowledge that you do not fear other cultures. No, this is not within your nature as you continue to grow in the Father's Love. So, if there is a sense of fear or reticence this falls away with the power of Love, for you begin to recognize that every child in this world is your brother and sister. You are all family of God, His Children created with such diversity

and in this diversity is such beauty, such an overwhelming amount of creative expression. You begin to see how God in His Expression creates such diversity, such complexity in His Universe. With the eyes of the soul you begin to appreciate and become aware of this profound beauty in the complex expressions of humanity.

Yes it is easier to be drawn to those who are familiar. It satisfies the mind, it brings a sense of wholeness within you as you reach out to others and are able to speak and to share in intricate ways. Yet what is the most powerful and important way of communicating? It is Love. Another may forget all of your words, even your appearance, but if Love is given, this is never forgotten. A Light has been gifted to another, a Light that can be obtained and nurtured within, for God uses your Light to inspire other souls. God uses you as a channel of Love so that He may reach other souls in a way that has a clarity and a familiarity that triggers a chord within that individual and their souls.

God sends you forth into the world so that you may be used to touch many souls in this world inhabiting many different places in this world, for your world is a very complex place filled with many languages, ideas, cultures. Yet each individual that lives in this world has a soul and that soul is not reliant upon these fixtures of society. No, a soul knows, understands from the perceptions of the soul, those innate abilities of the soul. You are sent forth to ignite a curiosity, a sense within those souls that there is something important shared and given as a gift, as you are God's channels of Love and God works through you.

Thus the invitation to come to the Heavenly Father to receive His Gift of Love is given in this wordless way filled with Love and Light. So my beloved friends, do not hold back because some individual is unfamiliar to you with their thoughts, their language, their appearance and their culture which is so different. All of these things in comparison to the soul are superficial and you are learning the language of the

soul, my friends. You are learning how to communicate in this other way. As you are more familiar with this communication, of soul talk so to speak, then you become very effective ambassadors of the Father's Love in this world. As the Father's Love grows within you, you emanate a strength, a Truth, the Love in a way that others are aware, certainly within their souls, what you bring with your presence. This is a gift, a gift that comes with the power of Divine Love and the awakening of your soul to speak the words of Love, words that are wordless, expressions that are pure, emanations that flow through the air and touch others because you have allowed a channel to open within you. To allow God's Expression of Love to flow through that channel, to touch other souls, to ignite a desire within them to receive this gift.

As you greet all those that you meet with a smile, a glint within your eye that says "I love you", you do the Father's work. You carry the Truth and express it beautifully in these simple gestures as you touch another and say "you are my brother, you are my sister" and you walk in the world knowing that God is guiding you, protecting you and you are escorted by angels.

What a magnificent journey you are upon, my children, what a wondrous adventure, as you continue to know yourselves so truly within and express the gifts that God has given you, the Light that is within your soul. You will touch many others, often without even knowing. But because you carry the Light and express it with every breath you cannot help but touch others. Every soul is seeking this Light, this comfort, this Truth though their minds may be unawares, their true selves have been touched in a powerful way. This is your goal, beloved souls, to walk in the world as a clear channel of the Father's Love, to express this in every part of your being, who you are, and as you do so, you create a new culture, a new way of being, something that will model the Truth for others. Though at times you are challenged and you do not feel in that flow of God's Love, that great River, you

are indeed there. It is a matter of putting aside those human things and living within the reality of God and His precious Love. Thus, the salvation of the soul is what will attract many, for a soul that truly is transformed by God will have powerful impacts in this world and though each of you are upon this journey and are gradually awakening and transforming, you must have faith that what is now alive within you will be expressed in beautiful ways and will inform your journey.

I am Joshua. I have been mentioned in the Bible and I inhabit the Celestial Kingdom. I am an angel of God with a redeemed soul. I am happy to be with you, as I am one whom your band of angels wish to introduce to you. I shall continue to be of service to your efforts, your desire to bring Truth to mankind. God bless you, beloved souls, God bless you and keep you in His Light. My Love is with you. God bless you.

Guidance on D.V. Preparations

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 1, 2017

We have gathered you all together this night as you continue to make this appointment together to receive guidance regarding the preparations for direct voice. You are coming close to that time when you are together. Now is the time to be diligent, to make the utmost efforts to prepare yourselves for this time of prayer and development for it is coming quickly. It is important that you continue your daily prayers, to place foremost in your thoughts this effort that you are about to make, to be focused, to acknowledge your inner commitment to God, to this inner light of divine love, to all the blessings that are coming and all the possibilities that you have accepted in your life. With each day you shed a little more of those conditions that inhibit the flow of love

and obstruct the energies that are required to develop the direct voice. Each day you allow a certain portion of these conditions to fall away and accept joyfully God's call to receive His blessing of Love.

Yes your time in this world moves quickly does it not? This world is a very busy place, not leaving much time to contemplate or even to pray and this is why you must be diligent and disciplined with these efforts and with your thoughts. As you put your energies towards this great venture, you reap the rewards, you receive the blessings, you allow us to work upon your physical and your spiritual, your souls, so that we may harmonize and attune all of these aspects of yourself in relationship to this effort of direct voice. It is a complex matter that requires a great deal from we in spirit who have committed ourselves to this venture. You may see your own bodies to some degree as a mechanism for creating favourable conditions for the manifestation of direct voice and materialization. When the mechanism is finely tuned you have the results that are desirable. So, as you have been told, a balanced diet both physically for your body and your mind is very beneficial indeed. Do not forget this, my friends.

Some of you are being called from a long distance. You are making a substantial investment in time and effort so that you may contribute to this venture. So do not forget what has been asked of you in preparation. Now is the time to invest much of your energy, your thoughts and your efforts, your prayers towards this, for you come close. Really only a few moments away. You cannot think to yourself, "Well I will invest my time when we are together." No, my beloveds, your time needs to be invested with each day, each prayer, each thought, each choice that you make because when you are true to your soul's desires and your commitments in this regard, so you create the impetus that is required to ignite the machinery to life and to bring all the elements together in harmony so that we and you may work together.

Yes, you will feel changes within you physically and mentally. Your prayers will become intense as long as you are open and sincere. You will sense flutterings and fluctuations within your physical bodies as new chemistry and energies are introduced. We are able to blend your chemicals as you sit as you do at this time in prayer together. Yes there is much to do. This will bring very many new experiences to each one of you. I do not say this to focus your mind upon the sensations that will manifest in this effort, for truly you must be focused on your prayers and connections with God. But I do wish to warn you in case you feel concern regarding these new sensations and experiences. They are all part of the awakening of these subtle mechanisms within your body and bringing greater harmony to all aspects of your physical self and to your soul's perceptions, sensitivities and capacities. Yes when you open yourselves in this way and put forth your desires and inclinations to be used as a channel for these powerful, yet subtle gifts, there will be changes within you, responses and reactions that are unfamiliar. Yet, as with every gift, there is a time of adjustment and of getting used to something new. You are in good hands my beloveds, very good hands.

All is well. We are pleased with the preparations you have made to date. We do not expect perfection, but we have come close to something viable and important within your make up. Opening gifts, opening doors of possibilities and bringing you all a little closer to light and harmony in God's Love. These are the important things. This is where your focus must lie. Seeing yourself not as inadequate or imperfect, but as capable and full of possibilities. It is the blessing of the Father's Love that ignites what is possible and enhances what is capable. You continue to blossom, to release those conditions not in harmony, to prepare yourselves to meet the world with an extraordinary gift, a great blessing that is merely the prelude to the truths that you will speak, the inspiration that will come to awaken

mankind from their slumbers.

This gift will have little purpose if it does not point towards the higher truths, the laws of God's Love and the possibilities of redeeming the soul. This is our true purpose is it not, to bring about a way in which those who are distracted and are not looking in your direction will turn and notice, or feel inspired, possibly even struck with awe and excitement? When this happens for a soul who is within your vicinity observing these gifts, are you not then truly doing God's Will by bringing the truth of His Love, by awakening those around you to the possibilities of being awakened, healed, understanding, truly knowing the joy of at-onement with God? These simple yet all so powerful things that each soul longs for, but so few know how to come to these truths.

So you will show the way. We will all work together to show the way and to demonstrate the truths in simple and powerful ways. We will speak to humanity and you will be the instruments for this effort to bring something real, palpable and powerful. We are making many preparations, not only to create the conditions for direct voice, but to open the doors so others will experience the manifestations of which we speak. Yes, we are making great preparations, many efforts. In fact, I will tell you that many thousands of angels and spirits are working so that these doors may be opened, that the opportunities may become available to you to bring this manifestation and truth to the world.

You will see my friends. You will see. Your lives will change. No longer will you be anonymous and unheard in the world for many eyes will be cast upon you, for you will be the messengers for this truth. This will be done in humility and with the power within your souls. You will carry the light. You will walk the road that God has cleared for you, each one. You must be strong for with this gift many temptations will cross your path. You must be humble for as you work for God you must give God credit and not see this as a manifestation of your own personal power, for this is far from the truth.

This is a manifestation of God's powerful touch through you in order that many may be reached. I am not saying that we discount your efforts, for we indeed see your efforts and love you for your efforts, but the eyes must be cast towards the Heavenly Father, towards the possibilities of truth and divine love. Then the world will change because the souls have been awakened to the possibilities of change and light and joy and truth, compassion and wisdom. All these things come from God, my friends. We are all servants of God. We all work together for these purposes and none is glorified above the other and each will play their part. You will not know truly what you are meant to do until that time when you are asked to express your purpose in this world.

I know you wish to speculate, to imagine what my words will be like in reality, in this world. Your mind reels with the possibilities. Your imagination runs wild I am sure and possibly anxiety, worry for what might be great changes in your life. But remember my friends, God will always bring harmony. Although you may see the efforts to come as a sacrifice, in reality it is all a gift, a wondrous gift. Each expression you make in your dedication in the Love for God and the love for your brothers and sisters, you are given many blessings and rewards. You accumulate a great bounty of light within you and it shall continue and multiply exponentially. You will know a great joy my friends, a great joy and a sense of accomplishment and satisfaction, all of those things that say that you have done many things, many beautiful expressions of love. So it shall be, as you step forward in humility and with grace and love. So your life within this world will expand and become vastly harmonious and joyful. Is this not what you seek my beloveds? To know a life full of wonderment and joy and so it will be. It is coming. Even the challenges will feel like a wondrous blessing. This is how your soul will perceive the experiences of your life to come. Your soul will be ecstatic in the joyous revelations which God will give to you through these experiences of

service and love.

Much awaits. Feel the excitement my friends. The excitement of your souls, for your souls are gleeful in anticipation, are joyful because your souls see the possibilities, what is just ahead of you. Come to know these feelings my beloved brothers and sisters, for it is these joyful expressions within you, this wanton desire to burst forth in light that are the indicators of your souls' awakening. How beautiful this is. How the light continues to grow within you and the Father's Love pours into your soul expanding and creating something new and glorious. Can you not feel God's glorious joy, seeing his children awakened in light and Love? Know this place, this awakening and joy for this will be the touch stone for your life. This is what will manifest each and every day, despite whatever conditions may come. You will feel the joy, that lightness of being that comes from your awakened soul and in this you will be the example, the messenger, the harbinger of the wondrous tolling bell of truth.

How blessed you are my friends. How blessed we all are. The wondrous awakening of mankind that is to come. You begin in a new life and will show the way to others who are awaiting your efforts to show the way, to express the truth, to be your own true and beautiful souls themselves in this world. May you be blessed mightily my friends. Continue on this journey of awakening, of understanding, of truly knowing. May God's Love continue to pour into your souls. May the blessings of His Light, His Care and Protection for each one of you continue to uplift, and heal and bring into harmony your beautiful beings. We continue to walk with you on this journey. Such a blessing it is for us, for all of us, to serve God in this way. God bless you beloveds. I am Seretta Kem and I continue to serve, to love and to work for these great efforts to bring the truth to mankind. God bless you beloveds. I love you.

Walk in the Light through Coming Upheavals

Spirit: Tahlia Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 2, 2017

God bless you brothers and sisters, I am Tahlia. I want you to know that I will help with your efforts in Direct Voice for I have gifts that will help sustain the energies required for this effort. It is important that you recognize that there are many energetic resources available to each one of you. As you move in the world, you may be a channel of many of these blessings for there are a multitude of blessings available to each soul who desires to be a channel of healing, comfort and Love to others.

So I stand by your side to help you to be a channel of Love in the world. I bring my strength to strengthen you. I bring the power of my perceptions to help you to see. I bring the Light of the Love that shines in my soul to help you and inspire you to yearn for more of this gift from God. There will be many manifestations when you are in alignment with God's Will. Because you will be in harmony with God's Will and the flow of His Blessings to mankind, there will be many angels such as myself who are powerfully gifted and will work through you for the benefit of others. As you continue to put aside those conditions that are not in harmony with God and seek to be a powerful channel in this world, so you attract many beautiful angels that will work alongside you to bring these gifts, the manifestations that will heal, will teach, will bring Light and comfort to many. There is a great awakening happening in your world, beloved souls. Things have come to a head. Mankind can no longer be in control of this world for there is too much that he takes for granted and desires to use for his own purposes without consideration of the Laws of Creation and the Love for this world and for each other. Too

many have gone astray, down a dark path. So God is engaged in bringing this world back to harmony, correcting the imbalances, and is infusing this world with energies and emanations and Light that will prevail upon this world.

Those of you who are sensitive, who desire change, who yearn for Light, you will benefit by these blessings. You will be strengthened and blessed deeply, and those who resist the changes that must happen will feel a disruption within them, and some difficulties for they cannot or are unable to adjust. So you must teach those who are confused, who are afraid, what is happening, why it is happening, where they must go to find the answers. They must go to God. Some will resolutely refuse and will be stubborn in their mindful stance and ideas of truth and reality. Yet these old ways, which were allowed to flourish because God gives the gift of free will, must now fall away so that the world may once again be innocent, open to the Will of God, seeking Love above all else.

I know when you look around you and you see the steadfast conditions that mankind has created you wonder how this can change, for it is an immense influence upon this world. The power of mankind has created huge disruptions and is determined to continue on in its ways, to create a world of man rather than accept the world of God. But the power of God, the power of His Creation, the power of this world is immense. Mankind through its efforts to subvert this planet to his wishes will be awakening the giant and will see for themselves the powers that will be arrayed against him forcing him to change his ways, forcing humanity to reconsider what it is that they value and desire.

Amongst this great upheaval will come God's channels of Light and there will be many who will bring the Truth, who will manifest the Truth. So you are amongst the few who are being prepared, who walk with that great torch of Truth. You must be strong, my friends. You must be open to whatever God desires for you to do and to be and to go in this world.

For this is the time for you to stand up and say "I am for the Truth of God, the Love of God, the wisdom of God and I am willing to let go of my false beliefs, my old ways, all those things that bring me from God into the realms of man's creation." This is not easy but the rewards are what you will gain by your acceptance of the Will of God, what you will gain by your earnest aspirations to awaken your soul with His Love, what you will gain in the service that will bring Truth to humanity.

You are embarking upon a journey like none other, an opportunity so wondrous and beautiful that you have a great deal of doubt. It is difficult for you to truly grasp this. Your souls understand but your minds continue to look skeptically upon what we speak of. But still the desire of your soul continues to guide you forward and the reluctance of your mind diminishes with each day. You are in the process of transition. Deep changes are happening within you, wonderful insights are coming, revelations from God, understandings from your soul, deep touches of His Love creating a great Light and joy within you. This will provide you with the strength and ability to withstand the upheavals, to see clearly the purpose of these conditions which will be wrought upon humanity. You will be steadfast and strong. You will have your angel helpers with you. You will walk in the Light, you will accept the Will of God, you will be a channel of Love because you have decided to walk with God above all else, beyond the conditions of humanity, expressing the possibilities of the Divine.

Remember this with each day, I am becoming a Divine angel, I am becoming a true child of God, I am growing and changing and evolving as my soul continues to flourish in the Father's Love. So everything about me is subject to the power of this gift of Love. Everything within me is being influenced by this gift, even the very cells of my body, the very nature of my personality and the gifts of my soul, all respond to this Love, and I continue to grow and expand in this Light. God

continues to gift to me with the powers of soul perception, soul wisdom, with the capacity to love beyond any human love. All of this is happening within me because I am your true child, beloved God, and I desire this.

Yes, my beloveds, you desire this and it is happening at this very moment. Every breath you take, you grow a little more in Light and Love and you change a little bit. There is a shift here and a shift there, until all of you has come into alignment with the power of God's Love.

So as you grow in this Light, we in spirit as Celestial angels are able to have a greater rapport with you to assist you and to work through you. We become closer because the Light in your soul makes this rapport possible. We are your true friends. We seek to bring harmony to you to assist you in whatever struggle you may have. As you continue to desire change, so we work with you to effect change within you. God provides His angels for your benefit. Many blessings come from this as you well know. I am happy to be one of those angels who will assist you and work with you in this great enterprise for the salvation of mankind.

Beloved souls, I love you. I am Tahlia. I was an Incan priestess. I've had powerful gifts of healing and insight. I will continue to come and help in this work that you do. I love you. You are beautiful, each one. You are beautiful. God bless you.

The Purpose of Direct Voice

Spirit: Matthew Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 4, 2017

I am Matthew and I have come to give some direction regarding direct voice. I wish to help you to understand why this gift is important, how this will influence others, that they may follow a direction that is more in harmony with God's will and God's laws of creation.

Mankind has severely disrupted the conditions of this world and in these disruptions come great suffering and destruction of the natural order of this world. It has come to a point where this world may be destroyed if man is to continue to be allowed to express his desire for power and dominance over the natural order. God will not allow this, for this is God's creation, God's domain. So few understand this; how God created an environment for His children and His creation to flourish and God created enough that all of His creation, all aspects of His creation, including mankind are sustained and their needs are met. This is no longer the case as all elements of this world continue to diminish, not only in its characteristics, but also in those subtle energies that sustain life in this world. His beautiful symmetry, balance, beauty, all elements that come together in harmony are being attacked and disrupted. I know amongst humanity there is an attitude that with enough knowledge and enough creativity, they may be able to right the imbalances to sustain the natural order of this world. I would suggest that this is not possible because of the limited amount of time that this world has in order to come back into balance.

Alas, God must intervene. He brings energies and blessings abundantly to this world in order to bolster, not only the energetic conditions of this world, but for those of you who wish to be a part of this great effort, not only for the salvation of mankind but for the salvation of this Earth. A gift such as direct voice fits into this plan very well indeed. You will be participating in a great effort on behalf of we in the celestial kingdom to bring forth information and guidance to leaders of this world and to those who have a great deal of influence and power in this world. Information that is vital so that mankind may do its part to bring back the harmony of this world.

I know each one of you do not see yourselves as

ambassadors for these vital efforts to save the planet, in such a way that you are a vital force in this effort and yet you have been guided, uplifted, prepared for such a role. And there are others as we have told you. There are others and you will see how in God's plan many of you will be banded together with a singleness of purpose and effort that must be reckoned with. You will be heard. These gifts will be known. Your efforts will not be subtle and heard only by a few. No this will be a great effort, a powerful journey for each one of you, if you are successful in your attempts to develop direct voice. I must reassure you that you have all that is required, both on this side of the veil and upon ours. There is a great deal of effort being put towards this project. It is an important effort that will bring much truth and support to humanity, so that many of these dilemmas that you face, many of the conditions in this world that are dark and create such havoc. may be neutralized and many in this world will see the error of their ways, their thoughts and their deeds. You will bring forth such compelling truth and evidence that unless an individual forcefully turns away from this, this truth, they cannot but listen to what is said, what is demonstrated.

Yes, you live in a very crucial time in the growth of humanity. Mankind comes to a point where it may evolve into a being of light, of wisdom, and harmony, or may devolve once again into something that is not fully human. This has happened in the past. As you maintain and nurture your animalistic nature, that part of you that is merely a physical being existing in a physical world, neglecting the spiritual side of yourselves, your souls, your physical bodies and existence will reflect this. Although your scientists reject the evidence, mankind was created perfect and was given the opportunity to be in relationship with God in a wonderful way, yet this was rejected and so His beautiful creation devolved into an animalistic state, of which your science calls primitive man. Man began to rise again from these conditions and to some degree recognize their own souls, their own

potentials as a child of man and a creation of God. So, you have come to a point where the spiritual must have the dominant influence over the material and physical characteristics and if mankind does not choose to follow this path that is destined by God, and turns away, because each has the power of free will and can choose, then the cycle begins again and the conditions of this world deteriorate and will be reflected in the conditions of mankind.

So, you see my beloveds, this is a very serious time in the world, and yet a time filled with possibilities and promise. It is for you my beloved souls to bring this message forward, to talk of the choices humanity has to make in order to be in greater harmony with God that their spiritual natures will shine through, that love may be the currency of existence and the material will follow in harmony with this choice for love. This is the message that must come through to humanity that they may understand the power that they have to influence their destinies, their existence in the world and the existence of those that will come after them. Will they build a world of light through their relationship with the Source of All Light, the Heavenly Father, or will they continue to be insistent upon their own power, their own ways of living in this world? Can they not see that how they continue to express their lives, go about their existence in this world is showing many signs of deterioration? Many problems are beginning to show in such a way that it cannot be denied that there are imbalances in this world. Yes, many choose to keep their eyes firmly shut, to go about their lives in a state of somnambulance, to not look but to continue to be asleep. Yet, the conditions of this world continue to accelerate and will force them to wake up and open their eyes. This is when you are most effective in the world. When the children begin to see, begin to ask questions, begin to look seriously at their own existence, the existence of mankind in this world, you must come with the truth. You must point your fingers to God and say, "This is the source of truth, God will give you

the answers that you require if mankind only would desire to be guided by God, to seek love and light and harmony."

Although this message has been given many times over many, many years, few truly understand. Now that these conditions in the world are so severe and will become further so, mankind must look. There will be no hiding of the truth. So you must be strong my friends. You must be very strong and willing to step forward for the benefit of mankind and bring these simple truths in powerful ways so that all may understand and see, without confusion or denial. This is the plan my beloveds. This is what is meant to be, as we work together upon this great effort. God's plan will manifest in many different ways and will come forward through many different individuals. You will meet many, many souls of light. Some will see as you see, understand as you understand, but many will not and yet they bring a light, they bring a piece of the puzzle. It is for you to bring love and acceptance, to say yes you are my brother, you are my sister and we work together in our efforts to express the will of God through each one of us. As we have spoken before, humanity has many layers, many different expressions in this world, but it is love that will connect you all, the love of the soul. Where the mind may be reeling with all of these complexities, the soul will come forth with wisdom, strength and love.

Your challenge at this time is to release all that would impinge upon this flow of love, to continue to forge your connection with God ever more powerfully in your prayers, in your thoughts, to build the light within, a light that will carry you through all that will come, a light that will be noticed by those you meet. This will be your credibility - the light within your souls. Allow that light to flourish and to grow. Desire to be in harmony with your Creator, to receive evermore His Love as He continues to work within you and prepare you for the work that is to come. The world needs your efforts and what you may give as a channel of His Love, the gifts that may come forth and bring to others great hope and great

truth for mankind desperately needs this. The time has come to express your true purpose and to do so with strength and humility with an ear to God to hear His guidance and direction for each one of you. We will, as always, stand by you and help you to see and hear and listen and know so there is no confusion or misdirection in your steps. We will be with you and we love you. We love you dearly. God's hand is surely upon you my beloveds, surely upon you. Can you not feel this - how the divine is influencing your life, how all will unfold in the grace of God's will? God bless you beloveds. I am Matthew and I love you. God bless you.

Direct Voice Instruction

Spirit: Seretta Kem & Jesus

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC Date: October 8, 2017

I am Seretta Kem. We begin a new phase of your preparation for direct voice. These last few weeks we will be with you more intensely and we ask that you pray more fervently for our presence and for the presence of God's Love within your souls. For now we forge this link of commitment and rapport and bring to you a condition of love that will uplift and help you in your daily routines, that you may feel more connected to God.

At this point Jesus comes through (I think)

This up-liftment is important so that you will feel that deep sense of God's presence, that deep peace and love; that you may carry this light wherever you go; that you feel close to the angels, close; that there is joy in your heart; that you are filled with excitement and a deep desire for greater light, and closer to union with God. You may put aside all other concerns and be in this light for it will require a condition of harmony within you that is consistent and builds one day to

the next. This is not a burden is it, to feel the joy, to feel the love flowing over you and into you, feeling God's presence in your life, keeping your thoughts on higher things, eagerly anticipating your times together and with the angels working together to create an opening, a portal of light and energy that will manifest the direct voice that each one of you will come together in such a way that all disharmony and resonance will flow together as one in this magnificent light?

God is bringing a special gift through you my beloved's, a gift to help humanity. You have willingly taken your place in this effort to bring this beautiful light and truth to the world in such a way that the power and glory and beauty of the Father's Love, of the Father's Truths, will manifest with such power, such exquisite and delicate beauty that many will be overcome and a sense of joy and awe and desire to be in the light of God's Love. This starts with you my beloveds. It starts with you and your sincere efforts to be ever closer to God, to be in great harmony together, to love one another, to be in close rapport with the angels, to be in deep prayer with God. Are you prepared? Do you feel the mounting power, and light and love that sweeps over you at this moment and will be with you now as you continue in your preparations? Yes, your souls stir. They awaken in the excitement. They know what is coming. Your souls feel the presence of God and the touch He has given each one of you. Each one in this circle of seven has been touched with a powerful blessing, helping you on your way, giving you what you require to work together to be God's beloved channels of His Love.

Seek God with every breath. Seek God with every desire and thought. Be in the embrace of the Heavenly Father that His Will is clear to you my beloveds. His Love is the grace that will carry you through the rest of your life. His peace will bring the strength and the wisdom that you may serve Him as harbingers of truth and love. As you get closer to that day of coming together, think of one another, think of your coming

times, think of how you love one another. You see that each has a light, a beauty and a gift to give, that you may work together in singleness of purpose, clarity of desire, understanding, commitment, soul awareness of how you continue to walk in the Light of God and fulfill His desire to bring greater light to this world. In serving God you will find a great fulfillment. You will fully awaken and see and know the great truth of God's Creation, His Love, His Will. It comes to you now and very soon your eyes will open beloved souls to powerful understandings, soul awakenings, as those parts of your beings find their true purpose and expression. You will know God and will have a greater reality than anything else, a more powerful presence. The flow of His Love will be the nectar that you will feed upon each day, bringing greater joy and understanding to full consciousness, full awareness, understanding, and joy. You will love with such power and beauty that you will glow with it. You will exude love and your light shall shine around the world. It begins beloved souls. Let your hearts open. Free your minds of any limitations. Allow your souls to rise up into your consciousness and take its rightful place in harmony with who and what you are to be, a beloved soul redeemed in the love of God. Thus you will take your place as a disciple, as a channel of His Love, as a soul invested in truth. You will bring this to all you meet. Everyone will feel a touch, a blessing, a gift, a healing, a sense of hope and joy.

Step forward my beloveds. Take your rightful place and allow God to use you in His plan to bring salvation, harmony, peace, joy, truth, awakening to mankind. You will be known in the world, your efforts will have an impact. The words you speak will bring the truth and God's angels will manifest in light indicating to those present that this is indeed the truth. They will speak. They will share their love. They will touch many souls for they too are channels of love for God and God will use us all in this great work to bring greater love and light to this world. We become as one body,

one body in God's great plan. We are together. We are together. God bless you. I am Jesus and I love you my brothers and sisters. I love you. You are my disciples and we work together to bring this truth, so simple, to the world. I am with you. I will continue to be with you and I will never leave. I am your brother. I am Jesus. God bless you.

Seretta Kem returns to speak

What a beautiful blessing Jesus brings my beloveds to encourage you in your efforts and your journey. Now I have come to give you some more practical instructions. I would suggest that from now until you meet that you will make an effort to keep your diets light, not heavy foods, lighter, certainly nutritious. Do not overfill yourselves. Continue to ingest those chemicals that have been recommended; phosphorus, calcium and chlorophyll. Continue to monitor your bodies and that your nutritional intake is in accordance to your intuitive understanding of what you require. We will help you in this regard. Your bodies may feel lighter and function in a way that will be helpful in your development for direct voice.

We will continue to infuse energies into your bodies, your spirits, helping you to feel that sense of lightness and energy. Yet, I would advise you not to over expend your energies, but to retain these energies within you that they may be used and expended for the use of direct voice. Some of the qualities of these energies are similar to what you would feel when you are in a condition of vigor and thus desiring to expend your bodies in exercise. This is not a bad thing, to continue to move your bodies about. This helps to keep the flow of energies in balance. Yet, I would suggest you do not over extend yourselves.

You will be receiving impressions, each one of you, helping you with your thoughts, helping you with your everyday actions. So, as this builds a harmony within you, it helps you to not be distracted by those conditions in the world that draws your thinking, your energies away from

your spiritual pursuits into the physical world. This is a time to withdraw from those obligations of this material world and be more spiritually attuned. For this will be helpful as you continue to develop and work together and will make it easier for us to build a rapport with each one of you. To some degree you are leaving the conditions of the material world, entering into a space, a place, a condition that is removed from this world. This will bring a different perspective, will change your thoughts and open up many abilities and capacities within your soul, encouraging unfolding of your soul perceptions, soul faculties. This in turn will bring a deeper sensitivity, so it will be important that you are not overly involved in material pursuits, for you will feel an uneasiness in these conditions. When you are in harmony with the spiritual conditions that are being created it will feel like you are home, a place of peace. When you feel disturbed, it is an indication that you are moving away from that place, that condition. It is important in order to foster the development of direct voice. I am not suggesting that you be a hermit. No, but keep in mind that you need to make greater effort to bring yourselves into alignment, to bring yourselves in greater harmony, to be closer to the influences of the angels, in deeper rapport, in communion with God.

Yes, the level and intensity of this work continues to unfold and you respond beautifully to our call. You are not lost. You are indeed finding your way. You continue to be clear. Let there be no confusion in the sense, the true sense, of the journey that you are on. There is nothing to fear. Do not reprimand yourselves if you feel you are straying beyond these instructions, merely say a prayer and continue in the best way that you are able, to be in better spiritual condition - pure of thought, closer to God. Yes, each day is always a challenge and each day has its rewards, its opportunities, its blessings and so you begin to learn how to bring these blessings to you with more intensity and to be closer to God. You are being blessed and supported, loved and nurtured.

Listen to your inner voice, that deep place within you and all will be well. You will find your way. That darkened path brightens with each moment. Know those conditions that concern you so will melt away in love. God's Hand is truly upon you beloved souls. Drink deep His Blessings. Seek your guidance and know the truths within your souls. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. I love you and will continue to work with you in these efforts of love and truth. God bless you. I keep you close, keep you close. God bless you.

Advice on diet

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 8, 2017

What a beautiful blessing Jesus brings my beloveds to encourage you in your efforts and your journey. Now I have come to give you some more practical instructions. I would suggest that from now until you meet that you will make an effort to keep your diets light, not heavy foods, lighter, certainly nutritious. Do not overfill yourselves. Continue to ingest those chemicals that have been recommended; phosphorus, calcium and chlorophyll. Continue to monitor your bodies and that your nutritional intake is in accordance to your intuitive understanding of what you require. We will help you in this regard. Your bodies may feel lighter and function in a way that will be helpful in your development for direct voice.

We will continue to infuse energies into your bodies, your spirits, helping you to feel that sense of lightness and energy. Yet, I would advise you not to over expend your energies, but to retain these energies within you that they may be used and expended for the use of direct voice. Some of the qualities of these energies are similar to what you

would feel when you are in a condition of vigor and thus desiring to expend your bodies in exercise. This is not a bad thing, to continue to move your bodies about. This helps to keep the flow of energies in balance. Yet, I would suggest you do not over extend yourselves.

You will be receiving impressions, each one of you, helping you with your thoughts, helping you with your everyday actions. So, as this builds a harmony within you, it helps you not be distracted by those conditions in the world that draws your thinking, your energies away from your spiritual pursuits into the physical world. This is a time to withdraw from those obligations of this material world and be more spiritually attuned. For this will be helpful as you continue to develop and work together and will make it easier for us to build a rapport with each one of you. To some degree you are leaving the conditions of the material world, entering into a space, a place, a condition that is removed from this world. This will bring a different perspective, will change your thoughts and open up many abilities and capacities within your soul, encouraging unfolding of your soul perceptions, soul faculties. This in turn will bring a deeper sensitivity, so it will be important that you are not overly involved in material pursuits, for you will feel an uneasiness in these conditions. When you are in harmony with the spiritual conditions that are being created it will feel like you are home, a place of peace. When you feel disturbed, it is an indication that you are moving away from that place, that condition. It is important in order to foster the development of direct voice. I am not suggesting that you be a hermit. No, but keep in mind that you need to make greater effort to bring yourselves into alignment, to bring yourselves in greater harmony, to be closer to the influences of the angels, in deeper rapport, in communion with God.

Yes, the level and intensity of this work continues to unfold and you respond beautifully to our call. You are not lost. You are indeed finding your way. You continue to be

clear. Let there be no confusion in the sense, the true sense, of the journey that you are on. There is nothing to fear. Do not reprimand yourselves if you feel you are straying beyond these instructions, merely say a prayer and continue in the best way that you are able, to be in better spiritual condition - pure of thought, closer to God. Yes, each day is always a challenge and each day has its rewards, its opportunities, its blessings and so you begin to learn how to bring these blessings to you with more intensity and to be closer to God. You are being blessed and supported, loved and nurtured. Listen to your inner voice, that deep place within you and all will be well. You will find your way. That darkened path brightens with each moment. Know those conditions that concern you so will melt away in love. God's Hand is truly upon you beloved souls. Drink deep His Blessings. Seek your guidance and know the truths within your souls. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. I love you and will continue to work with you in these efforts of love and truth. God bless you. I keep you close, keep you close. God bless you.

Your Souls certainly have been Attuned and Blessed

Spirit: Augustine

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 14, 2017

I am your teacher Augustine. Yes you have been brought together beloved souls. Often you were in wonderment, as to how this is possible. And we are amused, for we work diligently to bring the souls together that may work together in harmony that may find mutual benefit from these associations and create a channel, a powerful channel of Light in this world.

And so your understanding of one another is deeper

than you think. For within your souls you know you are meant to be together in service, brothers and sisters in the Light of God's Love. And this conscious understanding will grow. And the expressions that are meant to be, will surely be, as your souls awaken to the bell toll of God's call.

God will never ask you to do something you do not wish to do. All is in harmony. All is respectful of the individuals' choices of this world. And so it is for you to choose, and may you choose well, my beloveds. Choose all in Love, in harmony, in light. And as you go along in your life, much can be accomplished through your mutual support and efforts to bring greater Light and understanding into this world. This is God's desire and His plan, to bring the children to Light and to bring the Truth forward so that there is confusion no more, but true understanding, powerful knowing that each child in this world is given the choice, the opportunity to choose.

And you my beloveds along with many others that God is preparing in this world will bring forward many Truths and will be given many opportunities to speak of these Truths to be a channel, an instrument of God's Will. May you truly come to see and feel, and be compelled to be in the flow of God's Will. It is not elusive, beloved souls, it's not difficult to know if you are attuned to the feelings of your heart, the knowing's of your soul. Thus it all becomes simple and clear as your souls awaken in the Fathers Love – as your eyes open to the Truth. As your hearts sing in joy in this ongoing revelation and awakening of the soul, may you continue to seek, continue to question, to pray, to yearn for the Truth. All will be revealed in its own time, as you are ready, as you awaken. So much will be given and many opportunities will be revealed to you, beloved souls, to work together, to work for humanity, to bring greater Light, and that you may truly benefit from this, truly grow, truly deepen your awareness, through perceptions with many faculties and gifts of your souls, as the Love of God awakens all and shows you the

path. God bless you beloveds. I am your teacher Augustine and I've been working with each one of you. Though you may not have been aware, your souls certainly have been attuned and blessed in many ways.

God bless you beloved souls. God bless you dearly. I am your teacher Augustine. God bless you.

God Is Whispering Within You

Spirit: Jesus Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 14, 2017

I am Jesus. May the Father's Love find a constant inflowing into your souls. May His Peace be with you always beloveds. And may you come to know your Heavenly Father. May you know His Will and feel His Love for each one of you. For His Love flows and touches your souls. His Blessings, abundantly are within your lives, beloveds. Seek to know your own souls, to truly know your true selves, to follow the yearnings of your heart, to be an instrument of light and a channel of Love. And God will guide you in all the days of your life. God will touch each day, each moment, with His Love, His Guidance, His Care and Protection. For He wishes to give all gifts, lessons to His children. Reach to God my beloveds, reach for His Blessings. Pluck the fruit from His tree of life and soon these gifts of Love will truly be a part of you, beloved souls. And your lives will open; you will truly understand who you are. You will come to know God, intimately, powerfully, and joyfully.

You've been brought together beloved souls for a purpose. There is much work to do, there is much for you to understand and to acknowledge so that you may be a part of this great plan to bring greater light and Truth and harmony to this world, so in need of the Father's Blessings.

I have been with each one of you, beloved souls. I have touched you with blessings to awaken your souls, to bring to you clarity and the sense of what you are meant to do in this world. This will come more powerfully as you progress upon your path in this life. There will be no doubt or confusion but merely a desire and acknowledgement of what you are meant to do.

God works upon your soul. He opens your awareness through igniting your soul with His Love. And that true and deep awareness brings much knowledge and understanding, which will come into your mind, inspire your vision, bring you to a place of knowing and joy. Seek God in your prayers my beloveds. Seek to know within your hearts what God has to give you. His Blessings, His sweet inspiration, His Love, and all will follow from this. All will follow, in good time.

But you must make time, my beloveds, to be with God, to perk up your ears, to open your eyes, to acknowledge the desires of your soul, to be in communion with the Creator. Without this, nothing can be truly known, blessings cannot flow, purpose cannot be fulfilled, without this deep and powerful connection with God. For we all act within the flow of His Will, and are truly with God. For you in this world, it is challenging to truly know, to be in that communion, that flow and harmony to be with your Creator at all times. But as you progress in this Love, as you are given the blessings that come with your prayers and your desires of the soul, all is revealed, it comes more readily, you see more clearly, you Love more easily and harmony ensues, as Love infuses your soul.

Make this a focus in your life. Seek this blessing always. And we in the Celestial Heavens will accompany you upon this journey of discovery and understanding. This we promise you, that we will walk by your side at all times. We will help you to understand and to see the steps you must take. And as you come closer to God, many things will manifest in your life which God has orchestrated and blessed

you with. Rather than your own plans, you come to know God's plans and come to accept joyfully the Will of God. And then truly the adventure begins, as God guides you day by day, as you hear the voice of Truth and wisdom that bubbles forth from you souls. In this way, all that is in harmony unfolds beautifully and is within that great river of God's Love carrying you forth, carrying you forth to destinations yet unknown to you, but not to God. May your faith and your love and your strength all work in this great flow to bring harmony within your lives and service to your brothers and sisters. For there is a great hunger in this world. A great deprivation of Love, confusion, error, pain. So much that does not need to be so but is so because mankind is lost, and God is seeking channels of Love, instruments of light to bring greater Truth to this world. To lead many out of these dilemmas and this pain, to a life more in harmony with the laws of creation. You each feel a yearning to serve God in this way. Remember my beloveds, the Will of God is quiet, yet powerful. One must listen and yearn to know. It does not shout, it is not insistent, but it is pure. And it is powerful for those who are willing and who have a deep faith and knowledge of God.

Will you step forward beloved souls to seek the Will of God? To yearn for the blessing of His Love that will truly transform your souls and set you upon a journey like none other. A journey of Love, a journey of awakening. And thus the world will look different to your eyes. What you think you need and must do will change and you will see a new world opening to you, a world with many possibilities and potentials. A world which your soul recognizes, a world in which the gifts of your soul may flourish. That you may truly live in harmony with God as the power of His Love transforms everything.

Will you walk with me beloved souls into the future? And as this world changes and responds to God's Touch upon it, will you walk with God? Will you seek to understand His Will? Will you take the journey that is destined by God? It is your choice beloved souls. It is your choice. I urge you to listen to your own hearts. To understand from that place deep within you, what it is you truly wish to do, where you wish to go and how God is whispering within you, what you need to know, to understand and to see. For as you comprehend the Will of God, so the journey ahead will open to you and you will truly know with joy and acknowledgement the Will of God.

Bless you, my beloveds. I am with you as you aspire for light and Truth, goodness and Love. I am with you. And may you continue to open to the wonderment of God's Creation and the wonderment that is truly who you are. May your souls expand in Love, may your minds accept what your souls know and may you feel that inner joy, that deep reckoning that comes as God touches you deeply.

I am with you. I will continue to be with you, beloved souls. As you continue on this journey of awakening. I am with you. God bless you beloveds. I Love you, Love you dearly. God bless you. I am Jesus, God bless you.

Be in the World, but not of the World

Spirit: Keea Atta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 14, 2017

I am Keea Atta Kem. I lived in the time of Ramsey the Second in Egypt. I was one of his daughters. I had a station in life in that place, although I also had over 100 sisters, princesses in the Egyptian court of the time. Now I am an inhabitant of the Celestial Kingdom. I am close to you my daughter. I often come when you are praying. I come to bring my love and support as you continue to explore the Truth of God's Love. Remember beloved daughter, to seek with all

your earnestness and desire to receive this gift of Love, that it may fill your soul, flow freely within, and uplift you.

You have a questioning mind my daughter. You seek Truth. You have a deep desire to know and I say to you daughter, every day brings a drop of knowledge, an experience, a touch of Love from God. May you come to recognize all these blessings that God pours upon you, and to realize that God has you in His Hands everyday, to trust in His Touch upon you and to know that His angels surround you, that indeed your soul begins to awaken from a slumber. Your eyes begin to open to the Truths of God's Love. You have the help of those on this plane who are willing, desirous to speak to you, to share with you their knowledge. Do not be afraid to ask questions, beloved daughter, ask questions in your prayers, ask questions in your conversations, but most of all, come to know that God will answer every question in good time, that in order to understand Truth one must be prepared to receive Truth. One must have the faculties within, the perceptions to know and recognize the Truth when it is given.

We do not address those questions of the mind that are purely of the mind. Our desire is to address those questions that emerge from your soul, that deep desire to know from that place of soul awareness. That gift of knowing comes as the Father's Love pours into your soul, and opens up those chambers within your soul, so that you may address God in your questions and your desire to know and that He may respond in a deep way that fills these chambers with His Truth. That you may recognize these pearls of wisdom and knowledge that come from God that come within the inflow of His Love, igniting and awakening your ability to understand from this deep place. For the soul gathers knowledge differently from the mind. The soul breathes in knowledge, like some luscious fruit that's absorbed into your being, and in this experience of knowing, of recognizing, of understanding a Truth, there is no confusion. All becomes

real. All is perfect. All is recognized from deep within.

Now as for being guided day by day, you have already received a message concerning this, that all that is required is faith, that each day will bring another portion of Truth and awareness and that in this comes an awakening, a sense of direction, understanding of what you are created to do in this world. To fulfill that deep purpose within is the most joyful and satisfying expression of yourself, your true self.

God will guide you to that place of recognition and expression. But it must come in droplets of awareness and knowledge. It is a gradual thing, filling the container of your soul with Love and Truth. In this, much will be revealed, and unlike your mind, it does not come in a linear way, it comes as the vessel of your soul is filled by Love and all those faculties and gifts within are awakened by this experience of coming close to God.

So my dear beloved, please do not expect that you will be told in detail what you are meant to do and what is meant to happen, for this will not be so. We do not violate the gift of free will. You are to choose and you are to make that personal effort and discover, with each step forward which leads to another and another step. I know in this world it is difficult to be patient and to trust in this process of awakening. But this is how it is done. This is what God gives to you, with His Love, and guides you accordingly. As you grow in this Light and awaken in this way, you are capable of understanding, a sort of maturity grows within you, where you may act in wisdom, where you may be in harmony and alignment with the flow of God's Will. Each day, brings a test, for within the mind is the desire to act out of will, to have concepts of the mind play out in this world. Do you not see the ramifications of this all around you, how this world suffers from the millions upon millions of willful acts of humanity seeking to express their personal thoughts and power in the world? We teach something different, my beloved. To act within the Will of God, it requires a humility

and faith that is not well understood in your culture and society. Your world is one of self-acknowledgement, of gaining strength and power through material knowledge and a sense of one's mental capacities and abilities expressed and recognized by others. This will not answer the questions of the soul. This is not the route to true knowledge or harmonious expression in the world. What is required is for you to truly know your soul and to express yourself in this way. As you seek the Love all will fall into place. The flow of understanding, of knowledge, of knowing, of proceeding forward will come as you continue to dedicate yourself in prayer and seeking the Truth in this way.

This is the message that each of you must give in the world, that there is another way, a way that that is in harmony with God's Laws of Creation, a way that does not impinge upon the free will of each individual, nor does it take what you call personal power away from them. In fact, these things are enhanced and developed in accordance to Divine Love and the laws that pertain to this gift. Nothing is lost and very much is gained in this pursuit, the pursuit of the awakening of the soul.

So I encourage you and all of you to seek in this way. To have trust and faith in what is enfolding and unfolding within your soul, that the answers to all your questions, all the dilemmas that mankind faces are available to the awakened soul that is truly connected to God, receiving His Essence, showing the way to true enlightenment and understanding.

We cannot tell you what to do my beloveds in any great detail. We can only point the way and suggest what is beneficial and at times what is true, but it is for you to find upon your own path the Truth. To test the Truth, to seek the Truth, to know the Truth. And while God has a plan for each one of you, it cannot come to fruition without the awakening of your soul, so that you too may know His Plan. the role that you must walk, that which is of the most benefit and

harmony in your life. The beginning is asking from that deep place, asking in prayer, asking that God will touch your soul with His Love, igniting true understanding.

Be in the world my beloveds, but not of the world. Allow God to lift you from that condition of humanity, to the Light of God, His Presence in your life. Walk with God. Seek God with every breath. Seek the inflow of His Love with every desire of your soul and the rest will follow in beautiful and wondrous ways, surprising and glorious.

God bless you beloved. I am Keea Atta Kem and I too follow your progress and desire to help you along the way as do many angels who monitor you intensely, my beloveds, for you are precious. You wish to cultivate Light within yourselves, within this world, and there is nothing more precious at this time in your world than to bring Light and to relieve the darkness. And so, many wish to help and support you in these efforts and this desire. God sends His angels to uphold you on the path, and bring you more fully into Light, and so it shall be, beloved souls, so God shall touch you deeply and you will know from the eyes of your soul's opening and the knowledge of Truth bursting within you and a deep joy that will well up in acknowledgement of God's great Love for you.

God bless you beloveds, God bless you.

All In Harmony

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 14, 2017

Beloved daughter, you do indeed have a role to play in the efforts that these individuals have dedicated themselves to the development of the direct voice. When this gift is accomplished, there will be much work and many opportunities to bring this gift forward to the world. There is a necessity for those who are willing to help support these instruments in their efforts and in their travels. There will be times when you too will travel with them and be part of this group.

You have many gifts my daughter. You have a clear vision, and you are also very capable of dealing with the material concerns of this world. These abilities and capacities are very important, so that all may run smoothly and effectively in this plan, in an effort to bring forth these Truths. Your role will not be just in one capacity, but in many, and we will not disturb the rhythm of your life too much, for there will be times when you are engaged in other things and other times you'll be called upon in this service. I believe that you already feel that calling within your soul. I you know this to be true. You feel an excitement, anticipation and this is always an indication that it is Divinely guided, when one has this sense of knowing and excitement. When God calls you to service, all is in harmony and will flow beautifully.

There is no sense that you should be concerned that your life will change dramatically, for it will not, but it will be an added component, an opportunity in your life that will bring fulfillment and joy. There are many more opportunities waiting for each one of you, as the momentum builds, as the plan becomes more set in this world. We cannot anticipate every move and every possibility to come. Yet we do have a vision of the flow and direction of these efforts, and we are already working with others whom you do not know at this time, who will be involved. In time there will be a good component, a number of people who will be working together in this way. This requires organization, understanding of how you may all work together in harmony and effectively. Each will contribute something to this plan, so that nothing is missed and all is taken care of.

There is much work to do – a great deal to be understood. As you have been guided, go more deeply within

your souls, that the inspiration may come forth, the guidance delivered clearly to your consciousness. You may work without confusion or hesitancy, but with a surety and a strength that comes from your soul, expressed through your being, and with the potency and the strength expressing your leadership, your knowing, and your gifts. This will fall into place beloved souls and it is coming very soon.

I would ask you to focus on this in your prayers, in your thoughts, to be open to the guidance and inspiration that is coming. For much is meant to come, much is meant for you to know. This is a dynamic time, this is a time of formulating and preparing and seeing clearly the direction in which you must go. And I've said each of you are capable and have gifts to share. May you see clearly your own purpose, what you are meant to do, and see that this is exactly the right thing for you, in harmony with your light. God works in this way. His plans are perfect and your place within it is perfectly suited to what you are and what you have to give. This is how the Heavenly Father works. All in harmony, all in perfect time, all very, very purposeful. May you see this beloved souls and come to acknowledge your place in this beautiful flowing of Light and Love and Truth. May it all be within the Will of God, expressed in harmony, His plan for the salvation of mankind, so desperately needed in this world.

You each have a part to play. This is a joyous thing, to know you may serve God in such a beautiful way. The rewards will be great my beloveds. The work will be intense, but fulfilling. You will be called upon for many things. Be humble, accept and be true, to what you know within yourself is right, beloved souls. May God bless you abundantly and keep you in this Light always. Know that you are loved. You are never alone. All will be well. Take life one day at a time, beloved souls and each little part of the puzzle will fall into place. God bless you, I am Seretta Kem. I will continue to support and guide you in this great venture. God bless you, God bless you.

Detailed instructions regarding the Direct Voice sessions

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 15, 2017

I am Seretta Kem coming to speak of your Direct Voice ventures. So I will lay out some fundamental requests to begin these prayers and preparations in the development of the Direct Voice.

Yes we wish for you to sit in prayer for the development of Direct Voice one morning per day. It would be beneficial if you also pray at other times during the day. Go into the darkened room creating your circle and begin with a prayer, meditate upon your desires and your prayers to God regarding Direct Voice and regarding the development of your soul, and the expansion of your soul in the Father's Love. This is the very fundamental building block of this venture and be open and patient with whatever sensations and experiences you may have in this darkened room, realizing that you are well protected. Those spirits and angels that are working upon your physical and your spiritual condition have been dedicated to this effort since the beginning.

Because it is often difficult for we in the Celestial Heavens to make the necessary rapport in order to develop these gifts in a physical way, we are enlisting the service of those spirits in the spiritual realms, many of whom are in the fifth sphere who will be assisting in these efforts. This is necessary to have their involvement and cooperation. You see, many are involved, think of circles within circles. Some are there merely to pray for you, others are there to work upon your physical, others will be working upon your spiritual body. Yet others like myself will be overseeing and have some

direct involvement in the preparation and development of this gift. I think you understand the complexities of what we are about to attempt. But I do not think you completely understand the challenges that we in the Celestial Heavens face in directly applying our abilities and efforts to create Direct Voice within your group.

We have asked you to raise the level of your physical and spiritual condition and you have done so, you have made an effort – a good effort. We have no criticisms of this but still the conditions of this world hold you down like bags of sand upon a balloon. The balloon has the capacity to rise up but it is the weight upon it that keeps it close to the ground. So each of you have been well engaged in this world dealing with the many demands upon you and conditions around you and thus it is difficult to release these weights that hold you down to the earthly condition. It is our hope as you continue to work together in prayer, these times that you take to uplift yourselves, your conditions, to take great care of your physical and your spiritual so that some of these weights may be withdrawn. We hope that you will take time to be closely engaged with the spiritual both in your thoughts and your prayers and as you progress and proceed in this way we will be able to come closer and exert great influence upon these matters and make the process of this development easier.

But to begin with we will proceed as I described. This was always expected from our side, great plans were laid in order to bring this about in a harmonious way maintaining the standards to reach the highest to have the manifestation of Direct Voice from the highest in order to have the angels speak directly to humanity. This is our mutual goal, is it not, to bring the Truth to mankind in this way? But you cannot flick a switch and have these necessary conditions manifest instantaneously. It is an effort, an incremental process of development somewhat like the mechanisms you use to bring great weights above the ground. You must pump this mechanism until the level is achieved. So as you continue to

pray and add the fuel to the upliftment of your souls, your beings, you will achieve some lofty elevation and Light. But it does take your effort and your focus. It takes your patience and your perseverance. It does not come overnight, my friends. Yes, you have prepared in your own way and some of you are traveling great distances in order to be a part of this. We see the efforts that you have made and the dedication that you have. We applaud these efforts and dedications.

Yet there must be a greater effort and a deeper dedication for this venture to be successful. This we know you are amply aware of and so we encourage you again and again to dedicate your prayers to God, to set yourself aside from those old habits and ways of engaging in the world which are not in harmony with God's laws, and which are not loving and careful of others or yourselves. You feel the consequences when you are not in harmony, when you are removed from these conditions that are blessed by God and exhibit the Love that He pours upon you. So as you come together in that eager anticipation and excitement, remember to be conscious of your thoughts and your deeds to make the greatest of efforts to be in harmony together and within your daily life. We understand that as you apply yourselves in these periods of development that the material world will impinge upon this to some degree. But I would recommend that you make this a minimal part of your life at this time that you do not get entirely caught up in the demands and challenges and distractions of this world. This is a time of dedication and to some degree sacrifice for the greater good and the success of this venture.

Now I will speak of some technical information that you require. There is a question of using a trumpet which is a common mechanism in the development of Direct Voice. I would suggest that yes, you may form a rudimentary trumpet to begin with to help focus the energies as required. That you may use a glass container as has been explained in the books you have been reading, again as a rudimentary starting point.

A table would be fortuitous in the centre of the room. It does not have to be round, just some object, a pedestal in order to place these two rudimentary items upon it. And indeed prayer – prayer is of the utmost importance. You will feel the conditions heightening as you pray together in this room. You will feel many physical sensations that will accompany your prayers. And you may see some manifestations which are not of the caliber which we desire in the end of this effort but then you must step forward one piece at a time so that we may build the right conditions and allow those manifestations which will foster the direct communication of the angels.

So again, do not be concerned that things that are manifesting are not in accordance to your thinking and expectations. We must start simply and with rudimentary efforts which in some ways are meant to encourage you, my friends, and in some ways verify our experiments and efforts from our side of life. Then we will build as you build the conditions within yourselves and we draw closer to you meeting together in a place that is rare in terms of the spiritual conditions that will manifest amongst you. You have each felt the powerful manifestation of God's Love in your prayers at some point in your life, possibly often in your life. But this will be something more. There will be the condition of Love, the upliftment of this sacred energy amongst the circle. But accompanying that will be physical sensations and visual stimulation and sight and very many pulsating energies in the room, lights, energetic conditions that will feel at times very intense. Again, you must quell your fears if this is what comes up for you in these experiences and to be patient and expect the unexpected.

This will be a powerful journey, my friends, transformative in its nature, opening up possibilities that are exciting and wonderful in their nature. You, beloved souls, must join with us in this great experiment truly desiring to be a part and to be a part with harmony and focus and prayer. So we will begin soon. We all anticipate much and much will

manifest. We will find our way in the flow of God's Will and plan. We are all hopeful, are we not? We all forge ahead relying on the strength of our own personal faith in God, our own knowledge of His Will and Touch upon us. So it will be, so it will be. God bless you, beloveds. I am Seretta Kem. I am with you.

My son, yes, you will be supported in your engagement this evening as in any time that you do the Father's Will and bring the Truth of His Love into this world. You will be supported, uplifted, strengthened, and receive the gift of the clarity that you have asked to receive. It will be given. You will see.

And to you, my daughter, as well. You do a great service. You will help to bring those people together seeing a greater purpose, a more harmonious future as they band together in prayer and mutual support and friendship. All is part of God's Will and will manifest accordingly.

So I will continue to speak and to counsel as we progress upon this path. May God's many blessings pour upon you and may His Love find its constant inflowing into your souls, beloveds, His gift – His gift that heals and comforts and makes you anew in the Light of His Love. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem and I am with you. God bless you.

Don't take yourselves too seriously

Spirit: Goldie Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 18, 2017

We are very excited too!! I am Goldie!!!

Don't take yourselves too seriously, my friends. Just pray to God that He will use you in this lovely way to bring more Truth to the world. With the joy in your heart and your souls glowing in Love and faith, you will accomplish your

goals. Be harmonious together. There is no need to differ in your opinions for within your souls you are all in harmony and in agreement. This is what's important. The details will work themselves out as you progress in this great effort for Direct Voice.

It is the joy in your heart, beloveds, that is important. With Love everything is possible. With Love everything will come together in harmony. We shall celebrate our mutual efforts in the times to come. Give thanks to God for these great gifts that He has given all of us to bring further joy and Light to this world, a world so in need of joyfulness, lightheartedness and Love. That's what you will give to the world, my friends, a gift of joy and a gift of Love. Be in joy and be in Love and be close to God for God is pouring His blessings upon you as never before. Drink everything in like a big sponge, let it all be absorbed and know that you are on the right path. A destiny awaits, a destiny is sure to be as you continue to make these efforts in Love.

I love you. I'll be with you. You will hear me sing in Direct Voice. God bless you. I am Goldie. I love you. I am overjoyed. I love you so. God bless you.

H's Arrival

Spirit: Confucius Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 20, 2017

I am Confucius. Have I not told you that my little birds will flock together, that they will hear my call and come to be in love, to know the joy of one another's company in this great love and light.

So, you've come my daughter. So you've come and you have overcome much. You are not to worry as you spend this time together with these dear souls and all who gather.

We will care for your parents and all that you love, all the children, all the souls who look to you for sustenance and love. God will care for them beloved daughter. God will care for them, for God has a purpose for you beloved daughter to be in this place at this time, as you well know. As you all come together in love and excitement and desire to serve God, so the blessings from the heavens will pour upon you, so you will be uplifted and separated from the conditions of this world to a place of holy light and purposeful service to God. The Angels rejoice beloved souls that you have come together, that you have heard the call and your souls jump with joy and anticipation to what is to unfold in this great effort. Yes feel the blessings of God upon you beloveds, feel how you are drawn to a place of sanctuary, of beauty, of warmth, for God provides for you does He not?

God provides and all that you require will be provided beloved souls. You must not allow the conditions of the world to impinge upon you at this time and there will be many who will clamour for your attentions. This is partly due to the intrusion of negative forces trying to draw you away from your purpose. You must be strong, loving at all times, but put a line around yourselves that says "This is where I must stay, this is where I must be in the light." All other conditions that are outside of this line you must give to God and say "Dear Father, will you care for these children who clamour and desire so much from us." There are times when you must withdraw and be in this prayerful service, prayerful condition so that your souls may grow in the light, expand in the light, expand with the blessings of a Father's Love. So as you dedicate yourselves to this purpose, God will replenish you beloved souls, you will not be depleted but you will be replenished and uplifted, for when you do the will of God many blessings come to those who are willing and many blessings come through those who serve. This is a law that when you serve in love you receive in love and the more you are willing to give the more that is given. So you prepare

Direct Voice Volume 2

yourselves and you work together for a great outpouring of light and love and truth to this world and you must be prepared beloved souls. In order for you to receive what needs to be given, what must flow into your beings, you must remove yourselves from the conditions of this world to a place that is in higher vibrations and light, so that you are capable of receiving, so that these conditions are not too obtrusive and you can receive abundantly.

So you draw your line in love, trusting that God will attend to those matters that are of this world while you attend to matters that are of God. Do not allow your minds to distract you and the great chatter that comes with being in this world. Let this go beloveds and allow the Grace of God to infuse every part of you, to let the mind of your human selves drift away in this perfect light and peace and love. You will ascend my beloveds, ascend to greater light and God will touch you deeply and you will know a great joy in your work together and there will be many blessings from this: manifestations, demonstrations of the truth with the potentials that each soul has to bring the blessings of God to this world given the expansion of the soul in love. You are ready my beloveds, you are ready - to step forward in this way. Continue in your fervent prayers, continue in your strong faith, continue in your love for one another and your love for God and all will be well, beloved souls, all will be well as you step forward in light.

God bless you beloveds, I am Confucius and I continue to stand by you as you grow in the love and seek to serve God with humility, grace and beauty. God touches you deeply beloved souls and shall continue to do so. God bless you beloveds, God bless you.

Love and Laughter with Goldie

Spirit: Goldie Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 20, 2017

And God loves you even more, and we all love you, each one of you, for you are lovable. Sometimes you think you are not, but you are. Even when you think you are not lovable, you're funny. You laugh at things that make you perturbed. They are so silly. I come when I can to help you to laugh and I will be with you as you pray for this gift, direct voice. I will come to lift your spirits, to encourage you, to bring my light to help you. I love you. I love you all. I love you because you make me laugh. I love you because you laugh at me. I love you because I love you. God bless you I am Goldie. I love you.

Martin Luther Greets H

Spirit: Martin Luther

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 20, 2017

I am Martin Luther. We will continue in our efforts to bring messages that will teach others as you pray together outside of your direct voice circles. There will be messages prolific, for there are still many things which need to be addressed, to teach others. For when this gift of direct voice is accomplished you will garner much interest in this world and you must present to those who are curious, who have a deep desire for knowledge and truth. In many cases you must first feed their minds so that they are comfortable to nourish their souls in this way of prayer and so we will give teaching

messages as you are together in prayer.

There are many ways that we may utilize these opportunities when you are together in your loving prayers, bringing this great light into your midst. We will not waste any opportunities as I'm sure you have a deep desire to bring what can be accomplished forward and to do so in the flow of God's Love. We will not overtax this instrument or any of you in the process. So in this regards they must be patient and allow what is meant to come through in harmony to be done in accordance with what is possible and what is most proficient in accomplishing all of our tasks and goals together.

We will all be swept up, beloved souls, in the beautiful touch of God and we will not know precisely what is possible until we are all together in our efforts and prayers. We too have great excitement and joy at the possibilities that may come in this time. There is one thing that you can certainly expect and that is that you will be growing within your souls, that you will be uplifted, that you will be changed by this experience. There will be a greater clarity for each one who participates – where there is a sort of delicate balance that each is trying to accomplish in their lives, bringing greater light and living their lives with fervency. There will be a strength that will come within each one of you and a clarity that will not give way to doubt and confusion but to a true understanding, a soul awareness of the Will of God. In this, as you continue journeying in your life serving God, you will recognize with the utmost of clarity the opportunities that God will place before you in service. Even if this gift of direct voice is not accomplished, you will go forth in the world as truer servants of God and disciples of the Master Jesus in this world. So, no matter what the outcomes with your direct voice efforts - and I must say we are encouraged that you will be successful, you will be entering into a new phase of your life and service for God and it will be magnificent.

You are held tightly by God. You are nurtured and

protected, loved and blessed. You will not fail in your desires to bring the truth of God's Love to mankind. You are truly a part of His plan and you will not fail, you will move forward in dramatic and surprising ways, outcomes that are unanticipated, surprises and opportunities unimagined. You will meet many souls in this world, some who are leaders in this world and known well in this world and many who are your brothers and sisters in this world living as they may, struggling in the light, seeking to dispel the darkness. God wishes for you to touch many, many souls as His channels of Love, and you will, my beloveds. Your strength builds with each day, your gifts unfold and your love grows. This is what is required and you are following the Will of God in many, many ways. You build a light within you through your prayers, through your desires and through your yearnings to God. The world of God continues to open to your consciousness. What you see now is a glimpse into what is coming and it is coming rapidly and forthrightly to this world and you will be ready for what is to come.

God bless you beloveds, I am Martin Luther. I will be with you my beloved daughter for all the days of your life and there are many days to come beloved daughter, many days to come. Know that I stand by your side and I will guide and protect, I will encourage and pray with you for I love you deeply beloved daughter. Such a light, you are such a beautiful light and God loves you so, as do I and many others. God bless you beloveds, God bless you.

Much work awaits

Spirit: Mary Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 21, 2017

My daughter, you have accomplished much in your

time away from this place. You have given wholeheartedly to those who needed you. You gave love wherever you went in your country and in your travels. God is pleased, God is pleased with your efforts. You will fulfil your tasks at your home in your country where there is much need. You are not to feel that your efforts here will delay what is meant to be for those at home, for God has sent his angels to watch over all that you are responsible for. There will be harmony and there will be a reward for your efforts here my beloved daughter as the pace of your efforts to create a home for the children will quicken when you return. All will come in harmony, all that is required will fall into place and you will be very pleased with the outcomes. For God blesses those who hear His call and answer. God gives wholeheartedly and abundantly for those who are receptive. So, my daughter, do not worry, continue in your joyful anticipation of what is to come and put aside any worries or cares. All will be abundantly blessed, all is under God's care.

My beloveds, may the Father's Love continue to pour into your souls unceasingly. Between the three of you is a powerful bond of love and as your souls quicken in this love, so you become a powerful agent within your circle, to bring many blessings and outcomes, pure efforts. Continue to be strong, my children, continue to seek each other's council and to be in harmony together for between you there is a great light, a beautiful harmonious condition of love and it is the power of this love, the harmony of your relationship together that will fuel much of this work now and in the future. Much wisdom will come to you all, for you each have gifts that are complementary to the others and this makes for a powerful channel of the Father's Will and Love in this world. Remember this, beloveds, for the world has a way of drawing you away to other things and yet God wishes for you to work together and will provide the means for you to do so in this world.

There is much work awaiting as you all know and feel

the draw to venture forth into the world to fulfil God's plan for the salvation of mankind. This is the time beloved souls, this is the time. God will guide each step. God will ensure that you are in the places you are meant to be with the souls who await you, and though there will be no fanfare and great sense of anticipation, each soul will recognize the light and the love that you carry as you walk humbly in the world. You will bring your gifts and the gifts that you develop in this time. This will bless many and inspire many.

So you will hear God's promptings, you will follow your guidance. Each of you will bring a piece of what is meant to be and share with the others to complete the picture, to give you what you require to carry forth in this world as God's instruments of truth and love. Trust in what God provides and gives in wisdom and harmony and love. Your faith continues to grow stronger, your understanding clearer and your love deeper. Trust in the power of your soul, know this gracious being with God as your soul revels in the light of His love, expands with His holy touch and blossoms in this light. You will continue to grow, will continue to teach, to heal and to love for you have waded into the river of His Love and this current is about to sweep you forward. Let go and let God carry you beloved souls. Do not fret as to what may happen in the future but know that God has it planned and has done so with the infinite wisdom of His Soul. Trust in this, beloveds, trust as my son trusted in God's plan as He carried him and brought him to many souls who were eager to hear the truth of His Love, Divine Love. So, in this world, so different from his, you will carry the truth of love and there will be souls eager to know and to feel this precious gift within them. This is your mission and this is your calling as disciples of Jesus and instruments of God. Feel this as the impetus of your life, the true calling of your soul. Feel this as God places His calling upon you and has provided you with all that you require to do this work, to follow His will, to step forth in a world so in need of greater light and truth.

You are mightily blessed my beloveds and you shall continue to be so. In the days ahead you will feel the power of God's love uplift you and heal you and change you. Is this not God's promise that He shall bring you the awakening of your souls and so it shall be and so it is? God bless you beloveds. God bless you and we are with you, all are with you in your struggles and efforts to bring greater light within yourselves and greater light within this world. Know that you are never alone, always loved, that you carry the great flame of truth and shall bring the world a light with this holy flame that will burn away the error and darkness and clean the world to make it more in harmony with the Father, and His Laws of Love and Creation. God bless you beloveds, I am Mary. I am with you, I love you. I love you dearly. God bless you.

Preparing for Direct Voice to Begin

Spirit: Seretta Kem

Medium: Al Fike

Location: Gibsons, BC

Date: October 21, 2017

God bless you. We will be addressing your circle tomorrow and each of us will say some words of encouragement. You are a part of your circle and are a special partner in this with each one of you and those who are coming and thus we will begin our efforts. My daughter you are correct in your assumptions that it will require a special dedication amongst you to create and maintain the conditions and power that is required for us to accomplish these tasks and development within you. None is more important or special than the other. You are all required to be present and are equal in your tasks and purpose here, for without the harmony amongst you and the sense of atonement and singleness of purpose, we cannot accomplish

what we have set out to do. So I do not suggest that each individual must spend each day, each hour together, but that their focus and thoughts and intentions play primarily with the task at hand. There will be more guidance on the morrow.

There has been a great deal of preparation on our side of life to help to sustain you, and encourage you upon your development and efforts together. So we do not ask a great deal from you, merely that you consider that this is a special time in your life, something unique and very important that will open many doors of service and opportunities of love. Is this not our focus and purpose to bring greater love to this world, to bring greater truth, to serve God in love and to serve humanity in love? Is there any higher calling, beloveds? Is there any greater task than to be God's instruments and channels of Love in this world?

So you have answered the call, you have made your dedication in prayers and you have made your efforts to be here. So as you walk through the threshold, keep a prayer of thanks to God and feel the excitement well up within your soul in acknowledgement that God has brought you together yet one more time for another purpose, another task and another effort that fulfils the plan of God. God bless you beloveds. I will continue to speak to you and to assist you as we take this journey together. My wish is that I may help you to see more clearly what it is that we are doing together and how your tasks may be fulfilled.

You have many questions some of which would be difficult to explain, but many things we can reveal as we go along and we will be glad to do so. Some of you — your minds are as thirsty as your souls and we understand. I too have a great curiosity and studied for many, many years with great fulfilment in understanding the intricacies of God's creation. What you are about to encounter are further revelations of the potentials that God has put within each one and how His Love may spark these gifts and potentials to life. So, we will

Direct Voice Volume 2

continue on this journey and feast upon the wonderments of God's Creation, His Blessings, His Love — succouring the mind and the soul, bringing revelation upon revelation, truth upon truth and the wisdom will grow within you, beloved souls. Let your eyes open and your souls awaken. So, it will be for all eternity, my beloveds. This journey never ends. What you seek to know today is but a drop in the ocean of the knowledge of God. God bless you beloveds; my love is with you. I am Seretta Kem. I love you. God bless you.